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Definitions
=R

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the

following expressions shall have the following meanings:

“associate(s)

“Board”

”

“Chia Hsin Cement

“CHPL”

“Company”

“Director(s)”

“Group”

has the same meaning as ascribed to

it under the Listing Rules

the board of Directors

Chia Hsin Cement Corporation, a
parent company of a substantial

shareholder of the Company, CHPL

Chia Hsin Pacific Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and a substantial shareholder of the

Company

TCC International Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the
Ordinary Shares of which are listed on

the Stock Exchange

the director(s) of the Company

the Company and its subsidiaries
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“HK$”

“Hong Kong”

“Independent Third

Party(ies)”

“Listing Rules”

“Convertible Preference

Shares”

“Ordinary Shares”

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency

of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

person(s) or company(ies) which is
(are) independent of the directors,
supervisors, controlling shareholder,
substantial shareholder and the chief
executive (such terms as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or an associate

of any of them

the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange

the restricted voting convertible
preference shares of HK$0.10 each in

the share capital of the Company

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in

the share capital of the Company
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“PRC”

“BMB”

“SFO”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Stock Exchange”

“subsidiary”

the People’s Republic of China, which
for the purposes of this annual report
excludes Hong Kong, the Macao
Special Administration Region and

Taiwan

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of
PRC

Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

a registered holder(s) of Ordinary

Shares

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

has the meaning ascribed to that
term in the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32 of the laws of Hong Kong)
and “subsidiaries” shall be construed

accordingly
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“substantial

shareholders’

“T’Cement”

“TCcar

“Us$”

“op”

has the same meaning ascribed

thereto in the Listing Rules

Taiwan Cement Corporation, a
company incorporated in Taiwan,
the shares of which are listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange and which,
through its wholly owned subsidiary,
is holding approximately 56.5%
of the issued share capital of the

Company

TCC International Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and a substantial shareholder

of the Company
United States Dollars, the lawful
currency of the United States of

America

per cent
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Chairman's Statement
TIERSEE

The Group enjoyed favourable results for the year 2013 after
consolidating its interests in Southwestern regions and turning
it into a significant profit centre. The Group’s other regions also
performed satisfactorily with strengthened ASP and revived
demand, compounded by the Group’s improved operation

efficiency.

Being a corporation with a long-term vision, we should not be
overwhelmed by periodical success or drawback. The Group has
been emphasising on operation efficiency and cost-effectiveness
in administering its activities. Our constant investment in
technology and facility enhancement, and our effort in fine-
tuning production process and management systems, contribute
to a formidable foundation for us to remain agile and highly

competitive, as well as to move further ahead.
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The Group began its aggressive penetration of the Mainland
China market about 10 years ago. During the “Golden Decade”
of the Mainland’s cement industry, the Group managed to
establish a prominent market presence in the Southern and
Southwestern regions in Mainland China and has emerged as
one of the country’s leader players. During the past decade,
the Group had navigated through a number of industry cycles
and had grown even stronger in terms of operation scale and

geographical exposure.

The cement industry in Mainland China is undergoing a
transformation into a higher efficient and more environmental
friendly sector. Expedited elimination of obsolete facilities and the
introduction of stringent environmental protection regulations are

expected to accelerate the industry’s restructuring.

On the other hand, the State’s promotion of industry
consolidation under a handful of massive regional cement
conglomerates and leading players with nationwide market
coverage is expected to bring along better regulated operating

environment and more efficient utilisation of resources.

The State’s policy of creating a cleaner and healthier environment
has raised the barrier for survival in the sector. Smaller operators
are unlikely to afford the resources required for compliance with

the State’s strict environmental requirement.

Enormous capital and sophisticated technology required for the
possession of limestone resources, the installation of energy
saving residual heat power generation unit, the stepping up of
emission control and application of know-how for intensified
denitration in cement production are expected to expedite
the industry’s consolidation process. Smaller operators under
mounting financial pressure are either going to be target of
merger and acquisition by leading players, or forced to be

phased out.
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Chairman's Statement
TRERSE

Such a development presents the Group with the opportunities
for extending its market influence by filling in the vacuum left by
evacuation of incompetent operators. The Group will be able
to utilize its expertise in applying energy saving and emission
reduction technologies in cement manufacturing to contribute to
the upgrading of the industry. Our state-of-the-art know-how in
employing cement production plant for urban waste treatment will
make us a preferred partner of municipal governments seeking

“healthy” economic growth.

BREDLIRARERERSE ERMATES
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Being a corporation with a respectable market presence and
a vision for long-term development, the Group is pursuing an
elevation of corporate status by intensifying its contribution to

technology and environment improvement.

We are adhering to our objective of building up a capacity that
enlisting us in the forefront of the industry. Apart from organic
growth through expansion of facilities with approval, we are
actively seeking merger and acquisition opportunities that can

complement our strategy of entrenching our regional dominance.
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Many are expecting a relatively favourable year of 2014 for the
cement industry as ASP continues to stabilise against a backdrop

of strong consumption from both the public and private sectors.

The Group realises that one could only survive the industry’s
consolidation with an enormous capacity build-up and significant
regional market dominance. To maintain the Group’s forefront
position in the sector, it needs to keep up with its commitment
in technology enhancement and capacity enlargement. A strong
cash flow and a healthy balance sheet are, thus, necessary for

the Group to stay on track of its corporate expansion.

Leveraging our edges in scale of operation as well as state-of-
the-art production and environmental protections technologies,
we strive to broaden our market influence on the cement sector.
We are confident that the Group will be able to further benefit

from the industry’s steady development, given our improved

operation efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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MARKET OVERVIEW

The resumption of massive infrastructure development and
smooth progress in the construction of affordable housing during
the year ended 31 December 2013 created substantial cement
consumption in the public sector. A favourable sentiment in the
property market, on the other hand, served to sustain strong
private sector demand for cement.

Mainland China cement output increased by 9.6 per cent, year-
on-year, to 2.41 billion metric tons during 2013. A substantial
portion of the additional capacity of 95 million metric tons of
clinker was released in the Northwestern region. In the Eastern
and Southwestern regions, additional capacities were largely
absorbed by the strong demand in the regions, particularly during
the second half of the year.

Total fixed asset investment (excluding agricultural investment) in
2013 amounted to RMBA43 trillion, while investment in property
development reached RMB8.6 trillion. The figures represented a
nominal growth of 19.6 per cent and 19.8 per cent respectively
when compared with those of the previous year. Substantial
capital outlay in the public and private sectors had fuelled the
gradual recovery of cement average selling price (‘ASP”) in
many parts of the country since the second quarter of the year.
Although the overall cement ASP declined by 3 per cent in 2013,
price in Southwestern and Eastern regions remained strong, and
reported a 9 per cent improvement and 1 per cent downward
adjustment respectively.

Coal prices, on the other hand, stayed at a low level
and contributed to reduced production costs in cement
manufacturing. As a result, profit margins of most leading cement
producers had been widened during the year under review.
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REVIEW OF OPERATION

A broadened geographical coverage and enhanced capacity
resulted from recent acquisition and organic expansion offered
the Group room for further exploitation of economies of scale.
In addition, continued improvement in operation efficiency in
the Group’s facilities and lower fuel costs had brought along a

favourable performance for the Group’s 2013 results.

Optimum utilisation of fully operational facilities in Southwestern
region had begun to generate significant profit contribution
from the territory where ASP stood at a relatively high level.
The turnaround of the Southwestern region and improvement
in the performance of Southern and Eastern regions had led to

improvement in the Group’s sales volume and gross profit.
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The Group reported a total sales volume of 44.7 million metric
tons, which was 11.2 per cent higher than that of the previous
year. Although the Group’s overall product ASP only improved
by 3.2 per cent during the year, the Group registered a 14.7
per cent surge in full year revenue to HK$12,970.8 million due

to enlarged sales volume. Gross profit margin had been lifted
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by 8.9 percentage points to 27.5 per cent year-on-year. Robust
performance in its major markets in Southwestern, Southern and

Eastern regions had brought along a 174.5 per cent leap in profit

attributable to owners of the Company to HK$1,674.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Southern Region

Sales volume generated from the Group’s Southern region
operations amounted to 22.0 million metric tons, representing a
8.9 per cent upsurge from that of the previous year. The Southern
region remained the Group’s largest market, contributing about

half of the overall sales volume.

During the year under review, the Group’s two plants in Yingde,
Guangdong province together sold 13.3 million metric tons
(excluding 520,000 metre tons of clinker supplied to Fuzhou
grinding mills) of cement and clinker, which was 9.9 per cent
higher than that of the previous year. Moreover, rebound in ASP
in Guangdong during the second half of the year and resumption
of full operation of the Yingde Dragon Mountain Cement Co.,
Ltd.’s production plant since March 2013 had significantly

enhanced the operating profit of the province.

In Guangxi, the Group’s plant in Guigang reported a sales volume
of 8.7 million metric tons (excluding 220,000 metre tons of clinker
supplied to Fuzhou grinding mills), which was 6.1 per cent higher
than that of the previous year. About half of the output from

the Guigang plant was shipped to Guangdong during the year.
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Healthy demand in the Guangxi province and recovery of the
Guangdong market in the second half of the year had supported
a strong ASP in Guangxi. Compounded by reduced coal costs,
the Group’s Guigang plant enjoyed substantial improvement in

operating profit during the year.

The Group’s 25 per cent interests in the associate, Prosperity
Conch Cement Company Limited, continued to generate

favourable earnings during the year.

Southwestern Region

The Southwestern region had become a major profit contributor
to the Group during the year under review. The total sales
volume amounted to 14.2 million metric tons, which was
29.1 per cent higher than that of the previous year. Enhanced
operation efficiency derived from optimum utilisation of facilities
had contributed to a satisfactory performance of the Group’s

Southwestern region operations.

The Group’s Chongging plant, and Guangan plant in the Sichuan
province had both operated above their rated capacity and
together reported a sales volume of 7.1 million metric tons.
Although the sales volume only reflected a 6.0 per cent increase
from that of the previous year, significantly reduced production
costs had widened the gross profit margins of these facilities and

led to noticeable improvement in operating profits.

BREREBERAT
2013 F3R

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFmIk o

HRRRAANE - TR AEEEEHEDN
AR5 M F R RIE B o

AREBERRBEBENEERE TR A HI25%5H
ERAEERFRAEERASERAATER

AEtE
REBEFERN AMEEKARERHE R —
ExEFEERR - B EREFILNMN29.1%
%14,200,00072 W - 3% ja FE RE TT 10 e 1B 2 4 &
MEBURA BEASEAEMREKER
AHIFRIE -

REBMREEMNRE RAEIEER DK
FEERNEBEEE  #5E8 £7,100,0007 B ©
HAEEREFELFA6.0% BEEKREKIF
THRSZERBEMNERES BELEEMNE
R

17




18

TCC International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENmR DI

Following the completion of the acquisition of Scitus Cement
(China) Holdings Ltd.

control over the Scitus Cement plants in Sichuan, the Group

(“Scitus Cement”) and taking effective

began to incorporate the results of these plants during the year
under review and had, thus, further strengthened the Group’s

market position in the Southwestern Region.

The cement and clinker production line in Xuyong, Luzhou under
Scitus Cement only commenced production in the second half of
the year and registered a sales volume of 230,000 metric tons, in
addition to 330,000 metric tons of clinker supplied to the Group’s
grinding mills in Naxi and Hejiang. Operation below optimum
utilisation and the booking of start-up costs had led to loss for

the Luzhou plant.

The two grinding mills in Naxi, Luzhou under Scitus Cement,
generated a sales volume of 620,000 metric tons during the year.
A third grinding mill under Scitus Cement, of a smaller scale,
in Hejiang generated an insignificant sales volume of 120,000
metric tons during the year. Since the Scitus Cement grinding
mills were running below their rated capacity and had yet to meet
required efficiency, they suffered from operating losses during the

year under review.

The Group’s two production lines in Anshun, Guizhou Province
were in full operation throughout 2013. The two production lines
in Kong On and Kaili respectively were both running at optimum
utilisation. Favourable market environment and high operation
efficiency had generated for the Group a sales volume of 6.1

million metric tons from Guizhou in the year 2013.

Massive infrastructure development and heavy property
construction in Guizhou sustained a strong ASP in the Province
during 2013. The favourable effect was multiplied by low coal
costs and improvement in operation efficiency. As a result, the
Group’s Guizhou plants had turned around and provided an
enormous operating profit with substantial improvement in gross

profit margin.
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Eastern Region

The Group’s Eastern region operations reported a noticeable
leap in operating profit despite mild retreat in sales volume,
when compared with those in the previous year. Less additional
capacity launched in Eastern China and restriction on utilisation
of high energy consumption production facilities had resulted in
tightened supply in Eastern China and a stable ASP throughout

the year.

In Jurong, the Group’s cement and clinker production plant
achieved a sales volume of 3.6 million metric tons (excluding
325,000 metre tons of clinker supplied to Fuzhou grinding
mills) and a substantial operating profit, as compared to a mere
break-even position in the previous year. Gross profit margin of

the Jurong plant was further enhanced by dipped coal costs.

In Fuzhou, Fujian Province, the Group’s grinding mills sold a total
of 1.4 million metric tons of cement. About 1.1 million metric
tons of the clinker processed by Fuzhou plant were supplied
internally from the Group’s production lines in Yingde, Guigang
and Jurong. Significant supply of raw material from internal
sources allowed the Fuzhou grinding mills to achieve higher cost-

efficiency and report an improved full-year operating profit when

compared with that of the previous year.
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Northeastern Region

Sales volume of the Group’s Liaoning plant declined by 15.8 per
cent from that of 2012, to 1.6 million metric tons. This was due
partly to slowdown in construction during the first and fourth
quarters as a result of extreme weather in the Northeastern
region. A down-scaled sales volume and lower ASP led to a

retreat in operating profit.

Others

The Group’s two slag powder non-wholly owned subsidiaries in
Wuhu, Anhui Province and Liuzhou, Guangxi Province, together
reported a sales volume of 1.3 million metric tons, which was
basically the same as that of the previous year. However, the two
subsidiaries resumed their profitability as gross profit margins

were widened by reduced production costs.
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Hong Kong

The Group’s cement trading operations in Hong Kong enjoyed
a remarkable improvement in operating profit due to a 19.6 per
cent upsurge in sales volume to 550,000 metric tons with ASP

remaining stable.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

During the year under review, there was a gain on disposal
of available-for-sale investments amounting to approximately
HK$136.1 million (2012: Nil).

disposal of the Group’s entire interests in a joint venture

In 2012, there was a gain on

amounting to approximately HK$116.6 million (2013: Nil). As at
31 December 2013, a net increase in fair value of approximately
HK$0.6 million (2012: increase in fair value of approximately
HK$7.5 million) was recognised for held-for-trading investments
upon stating them at market prices. As at 31 December 2013,
the carrying amount of held-for-trading investments was
approximately HK$49.3 million (2012: HK$49.1 million).
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND NET GEARING
RATIO

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in managing cash

resources and bank borrowings.

The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2013 are as

RBET MBER EXRBRF
EERERLR

AEERABERZEBBRRATEREERRK
RITEE-

AEBR -_ZE-—=F+-_A=1t—HZR&

follows: S I N
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT FAET
Current assets MEEE 9,919,201 9,327,449
Current liabilities mEAE 9,013,728 7,562,724
Current ratio Ve 1.10 1.23

The Group’s current ratio as at 31 December 2013 was 1.10
(2012: 1.28). The change in current ratio in 2013 was mainly
attributable to the cash outflow for the capital expenditure during
the year and the change in maturity profile of the Group’s bank
loans as at the financial year end. The liquidity position is still

maintained at a healthy level.

Total cash and bank balances of the Group as at 31 December
2013 amounted to HK$3,087.6 million (2012: HK$3,075.9
million), of which HK$20.7 million (2012: HK$180.6 million)
was pledged for general banking facilities or as performance
guarantee in relation to certain sales or purchases contracts.
Highly liquid short term investments, classified as held-for-trading
investments, with a market value of HK$49.3 million as at 31
December 2013 (2012: HK$49.1 million), were also held by the
Group.
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The maturity profile of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 December

2013 are repayable as follows:
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2013 2012

—_E—=F —E——-%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FET

Within one year R—FA 5,752,612 4,924,279
More than one year but not exceeding BB —FENEAMRTF

two years 4,158,255 3,483,441
More than two years but not exceeding BB FETRBBAF

five years 2,841,863 5,885,371

Total bank loans RITERARFT 12,752,730 14,293,091

There was no material effect of seasonality on the Group’s
borrowing requirement. As at 31 December 2013, HK$6,347.3
million of the bank loans was denominated in HK$, HK$5,845.1
million in US$ and HK$560.3 million in RMB. All of the bank loans

are of floating rate structures.
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The net gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2013 are

REER _ZT—=F+_A=+—BZFEE

as follows: BELERWAT:
2013 2012
—_E—=F —E——-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Total bank loans RITE KRBT 12,752,730 14,293,091
Less: Cash and bank balances, IR e MR
time deposits and EHFHR R
pledged bank deposits EEBIRITER (8,087,607) (3,075,946)
Net borrowings BEEFE 9,665,123 11,217,145
Equity attributable to owners of NRNFIER AELEZ
the Company 17,405,067 15,413,360
Net gearing ratio FEEAERE 55.5% 72.8%

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s net gearing ratio,
expressed as the ratio of net borrowings divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company, was 55.5% (2012:
72.8%). The change in the Group’s net gearing ratio was mainly
attributable to the significant decrease in net borrowings due to
the substantial net repayments of bank loans during the year and
the increase in equity attributable to owners of the Company as
a result of the significant increase in profit for the year. The net
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2013 maintained at a healthy

level.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$1,447.0 million.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has completed all the regulatory
registration procedures for the acquisition of the majority
90%/75% equity interests of and has obtained effective control
over the Luzhou Companies. Since then, the financial results
of Luzhou Companies were consolidated into the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.

On 26 August 2013, the Group has completed all the regulatory
registration procedures to acquire the remaining 16.11% non-
controlling interests of TCC Liaoning Cement Company Limited
(“TCC Liaoning” the Group’s 83.89% owned subsidiary), at a
consideration of RMB144.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$181.3 million). As a result, TCC Liaoning became the indirect

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

In December 2013, the Group has completed to acquire the
remaining 2.06% non-controlling interests of Scitus Cement and
the remaining 10%/25% non-controlling interests in the Luzhou
Companies at a consideration of RMB19.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$24.7 million) and RMB53.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$67.0 million) respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has
disposed the Group’s entire equity interests in the Guizhou
Companies to Southwest Cement together with the assignment
of the shareholder’s loans at a total consideration of
approximately RMB813.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,009.1 million). Accordingly, a gain on disposal of these
equity interests which are accounted for as available-for-sale
investments to the Group amounting to approximately HK$136.1
million was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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Save for aforesaid, the Group had no other significant

investment, material acquisitions or disposal.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, bank deposits amounting to HK$20.7
million have been pledged by the Group as security for the letters
of credit and similar obligations provided by banks in regard to
the Group’s purchase of plant equipment and as performance

guarantee in relation to certain sales or purchases contracts.

As at 31 December 2013, certain property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments and mining rights have been pledged
to secure bank loans of the Group with the carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,572.3 million, HK$140.7 million and
HK$101.6 million respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURES

The Group utilised various methods to mitigate foreign currency
exposures arising from the currency mismatch of construction
material purchases and sales. To protect the benefits of the
Shareholders, cost-efficient hedging methods will be considered

in future foreign currency transactions.

No foreign exchange contracts were outstanding as at 31
December 2013.

MAJOR CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s capital expenditure in
respect to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
contracted but not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to approximately HK$1,252.6 million. The
Group anticipates funding those commitments from its internal

resources and bank borrowings.

B EXFTlEIN REEMBEEMEAKRE &
REBERHESRR-

EREE

WZZE—=%+=-A=+—H" 20,700,000/
TZRITEREAEAEEERIEAREAEER
ERMEREZERABERBTREHEUETEZE
HARIERRE THERRBEHN ZBARE -

R-ZT—=F+-A=+—8B KELES 5
#)/1,572,300,0007% 7t * 140,700,000/ 7T &
101,600,000/ T2 & TWE  BE &k 78
RHEERERIREED FEIT - L RAREER

BRITER

S % L B
AEEERTRTEAREAEERY 2 5%
$A T A A 2 NS R » IR TE IR A28 - O F
BIETTINGE X 516 % BB B A R s 2
Jk e

R-Z—=6+-A=+—B UEEDRE
B2 SV S A 4 o

FRENARE

R-E—=Ft-A=1T—H KEEZEFTHD
BRRGAVBREBEZBEDNE BE M
F AR 4 /1,252,600,00078 7T 0 AN 5 [E
BHUNEABERRRITEEBRNZSFAE-



CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2013, the Group provided a corporate

guarantee jointly with other shareholders of an associate to a
bank in respect of banking facilities granted to that associate
in aggregate amounted to RMB400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$512,000,000), of which RMB246,158,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$315,082,000) has been
utilised by the associate. Pursuant to the corporate guarantee
agreement, the Group has provided the guarantee amount
proportioned to its equity interest in the associate, which
represents RMB120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$153,600,000).

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material

contingent liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 9,009 full-time
employees. Total expenses in wages and salaries of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to HK$650.6
million. Discretionary bonuses, recommended by management
and reviewed by the remuneration committee, are payable to
employees in Hong Kong and senior management of subsidiaries
based on performance. In addition, the Directors may invite
employees, including executive Directors (in which case approval
of independent non-executive Directors is required), of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and associates to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. During the year,
no share options were granted to Directors or employees. As at

31 December 2013, 30,940,000 share options were outstanding.
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The State government is determined to restructure Mainland
China’s cement industry, with an aim to transform the sector
into an environmental-friendly and high-efficient industry. This is
being attained by stringent control of new capacity development,
ruthless elimination of obsolete capacity and lifting overall cement

output quality standards.

According to China Cement Association’s estimation, a total of
65 million metric tons of clinker capacity will be added in 2014.
The figure reflected a 30 per cent downward adjustment from
that of 2013. The decline in amount of additional capacity and a
relatively stable market demand are expected to sustain healthy
product ASP in 2014.

As a further step to upgrade the Mainland cement industry,
the State government is expected to issue a directive on
the abolishment of the category of PC 32.5 grade cement in
mid 2014. Such a development would not only expedite the
phasing out of low-technology facility, but also accelerate the
consumption of clinker due to the requirement of a higher clinker

to cement ratio.

Fixed asset investment, which is considered as a reliable
indicator of cement consumption, is expected to maintain its
momentum. According to various sources, fixed asset investment
for infrastructure and property development are expected to
increase by 20 and 18 per cent respectively in 2014. Such
capital commitment should serve to sustain stable demand for

construction material in the current year.
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Although there is no sign of the State government’s loosening
its austerity measures aiming at curbing the property market,
property development in most cities are commencing
construction and market launch according to schedule. Property
developers’ more aggressive approach in replenishing their land

bank is also indicating a relatively optimistic market sentiment.

In the public sector, the railway department has earmarked a
RMB630 billion budget for fixed asset investment for the current
year. The State’s commitment to affordable housing and squatter
settlement redevelopment will continue to complement the
government’s accelerated urbanisation plan. The State Council’s
plan to escalate urbanisation rate in China is expected to further

drive cement demand in 2014.

With less additional capacity released and favourable economic
development, cement players in Southern and Eastern China

regions are expected to enjoy robust growth in the current year.

The Group has begun to realise its strategy of establishing silos
and distribution facilities in proximity to its key markets in its
Southern region. A series of silos in the Pearl River Delta have
been developed to strengthen the Group’s distribution network in

the area.

To extend its market reach to the northern part of Guangdong
Province, the Group is in the process of satisfying the Shaoguan
government’s requirement for applying the development of a new

cement production base in the city.

To capture the booming market in Guizhou, the Group’s second
production line in Kaili is under development and is scheduled for
operation in the last quarter of 2014.

In addition, the Group’s overall capacity would be further
elevated with the full year operation of Xuyong, Luzhou’s
production line, which was only inaugurated in the third quarter of
2013.
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The State, as well as, the general public’s growing concern
over Mainland China’s environment has pressed for intensified
measures on pollution control and energy saving for the cement
industry. The requirement for improved denitration, and reduced
waste emission and energy consumption in cement production,
has forced market players to invest further in their manufacturing
equipment and technology. All these would mean higher
barrier for smaller manufacturers to remain competitive in the
market. Leading players, on the other hand, would be able to
capitalise on their niches in technology and capital resources for

compliance of the latest statutory requirement.

In addition to the standard provision of energy saving residual
heat generation units to all of its production plants, the Group
also stepped up its investment in more environmental-friendly
production processes. Furthermore, the Group has been actively
negotiating with local governments on introduction of urban

waste treatment in the process of cement manufacturing.

The Group considers its input in environmental protection not
only a corporation’s fulfilment of its social commitment, but also

an investment in a better future for the generations to come.

With a formidable scale of operation and broadened geographical
scope with further entrenched regional dominance, the Group is
staying on track to elevate its competitiveness through enhancing

its operation efficiency, capacity, as well as market coverage.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie

Mr. Koo, aged 59, is the Chairman and an executive Director.
Mr. Koo is responsible for the overall policy and direction
of the Group. He became a director of Hong Kong Cement
Manufacturing Company Limited (which carried on the Group’s
cement business in Hong Kong prior to the Group’s re-
organisation in September 1997) in July 1991. He is also the
vice-chairman of Quon Hing Concrete Company Limited (“Quon
Hing”) and director of Hong Kong Concrete Company Limited
(*Hong Kong Concrete”), both being associated companies of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from
the University of Washington and a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania, USA. He is currently the Chairman and president
of T'Cement, the ultimate holding company of the Company.
Mr. Koo also serves as the Chairman of China Synthetic
Rubber Corporation, Chairman of Taiwan Prosperity Chemical
Corporation, a director of China Steel Chemical Co., Ltd., a
director of CTCI Corporation, the Chairman of Synpac (N.C.)
Limited, USA and the Chairman of Continental Carbon Company,
USA. T'Cement, China Synthetic Rubber Corporation, Taiwan
Prosperity Chemical Corporation, CTCI Corporation and China
Steel Chemical Co., Ltd. are companies listed on the Taiwan

Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wu Yih Chin

Mr. Wu, aged 59, is the Managing Director and executive
Director, the deputy managing director of Hong Kong Concrete
and a director of Quon Hing and Yargoon Company Limited.
He joined the Group in November 1993. Mr. Wu is responsible
for the overall management, strategic planning and business
development for the Group. He holds a Bachelor Degree in
Accounting from National Chengchi University, Taiwan and a
Master Degree in Business Administration from the Wharton
School of the University of Pennsylvania, USA. He has more than

30 years of experience in cement-related businesses.
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Non-executive Directors

Dr. Shan Weijian

Dr. Shan, aged 60, chairman and chief executive officer of
PAG, an investment firm. He is also a director of a number of
companies including T'Cement, Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited, BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited and Taishin Financial
Holdings Co., Ltd. He was a senior partner of TPG, co-managing
partner of Newbridge Capital, managing director of J.P. Morgan,
an assistant professor at the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania and an investment officer at the World Bank in
Washington DC. Dr. Shan graduated from the Beijing Institute
of Foreign Trade with a major in English in 1979. He obtained
a Master Degree in Business Administration from the University
of San Francisco in 1981, and received a Masters of Arts
in Economics and a PhD Degree in Business Administration
from the University of California at Berkeley in 1984 and 1987

respectively.

Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson

Mr. Chang, aged 61, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Koo, Cheng-
Yun, Leslie who is the Chairman and an executive Director. Mr.
Nelson Chang is also the uncle of two non-executive Directors,
Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung, Jason and Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth.
Mr. Nelson Chang graduated from New York University with a
Master Degree in Business Administration. Mr. Nelson Chang is a
director of T'Cement, a director and vice chairman of Chia Hsin
Cement and a director of CHPL. In addition, Mr. Nelson Chang
is directors of China Synthetic Rubber Corporation and Taiwan
Prosperity Chemical Corporation. T’Cement, Chia Hsin Cement,
China Synthetic Rubber Corporation and Taiwan Prosperity
Chemical Corporation are companies listed on the Taiwan Stock

Exchange.
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Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung, Jason

Mr. Chang, aged 42, is the nephew of Mr. Chang, An-Ping,
Nelson, a non-executive Director and the cousin of Ms. Wang,
Lishin, Elizabeth, also a non-executive Director. Mr. Jason Chang
graduated from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology,
Boston, U.S.A. with a Master Degree in Management of
Technology. He also holds a Bachelor Degree of Arts from Carroll
College, Helena, U.S.A. Mr. Jason Chang is a director of Chia

Hsin Cement, a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth

Ms. Wang, aged 40, is the niece of Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson,
a non-executive Director and the cousin of Mr. Chang, Kang-
Lung, Jason, also a non-executive Director. Ms. Wang graduated
from the Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan with a Master Degree
in Organization Restructuring. She also holds a Bachelor Degree
of Science in Finance from Boston College, Boston, U.S.A. Ms.
Wang is a director of Chia Hsin Cement, a company listed on the

Taiwan Stock Exchange.

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald C.B.E., J.P.

Dr. Liao, aged 84, has been an independent non-executive
Director since August 1997. He was educated at The University
of Hong Kong and the University of Durham, the United Kingdom.
He received a degree of Doctor of Science from the University
of Durham, the United Kingdom, in 2011. He is a senior advisor
to Mitsui & Co (HK) Limited. He retired from the Hong Kong
civil service in 1989 and was the former Secretary for District
Administration and the Secretary for Home Affairs. He served
as a non-executive director for The Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited and The HSBC China Fund Limited.
He has served on the Council of the Stock Exchange between
1991 and 1995. Dr. Liao was also appointed as an Official
Member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council in 1980 and of the

Hong Kong Executive Council in 1985.
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Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth

Dr. Chih, aged 59, has been a Chief Architect Global Purchasing
and Supply Chain of General Motors Corporation (“GM”) in
Detroit US from 2007 to 2009. Before joining GM in 2007, Dr.
Chih was the director and Chief Information Officer of Orient
Overseas Container Line Ltd., a subsidiary of Orient Overseas
(International) Limited (“OOCL”) which is a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. He also served as executive
committee member of the board of OOCL and was globally
responsible for IT strategy, information systems development,
information technology infrastructure, business process and
ISO9000 facilitation. Dr. Chih also served as director of several
OOCL subsidiary companies such as Cargo Smart Limited and
IRIS Systems Limited. Before joining OOCL in 1993, Dr. Chih was
the Senior Principal at American Airlines Decision Technologies.
Dr. Chih also had extensive consulting experience in the US
railroad transportation industry. Dr. Chih received an M.A. and a
Ph.D. from Princeton University, an M.S. from the University of

Texas at Austin and a B.S. from National Taiwan University.

Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger

Mr. Shieh, aged 56, started his career with Ogilvy & Mather
Advertising Taiwan since 1982. In 1999, he became managing
director of Enterprise 1G, a consultancy company and a
subsidiary of one of the world’s largest communications groups,
WPP Group plc. In 2001, Mr. Shieh was relocated to Shanghai
to set up Enterprise IG China and further develop its business
and operations in the Greater China Region. He retired from WPP
Group plc in 2005. Mr. Shieh has over 20 years of experience
in advertising, public relations, corporate image and identity

management.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mao, Deng-Fa

President of TCC Yingde Cement Co., Ltd

Mr. Mao, aged 51, holds a College Degree from Huainan Mining
Institute. He has nearly thirty years of cement engineering and
production management experience. He joined the Group at the

beginning of 2011.

Mr. Liu, Chih-Jen

President of Jurong TCC Cement Co., Ltd.

Mr. Liu, aged 42, holds a Master Degree in the Department
of Chemical Engineering from Yuan Ze University in Taiwan,
and joined T'Cement in 1999. He has more than 15 years of
experience in cement-related engineering. He joined the Group in
May 2011.

Mr. Huang, Yi-Meng

President of TCC (Guigang) Cement Ltd.

Mr. Huang, aged 46, holds an Associate Degree in Electrical
Engineering from National Taipei Institute of Technology in
Taiwan, and joined T’'Cement in 1991. He has over 20 years of
experience in electrical and automation engineering businesses
in cement industry. Between 2002 and April 2008, he had
joined the Group as a leader of electrical sect in construction
department in TCC Yingde Cement Co., Ltd and TCC Fuzhou
Cement Co., Ltd. and was responsible for electrical and
automation related fields during plants construction phase. He
serviced in TCC (DongGuan) Cement Company Limited since
November 2009. Mr. Huang then joined TCC (Guigang) Cement
Ltd. as a leader of electrical department in September 2010 and

was appointed as President of the plant in July 2011.

Mr. Lin, Miin-Shyong

President of TCC Fuzhou Cement Co., Ltd.

Mr. Lin, aged 42, was graduated from the Mechanical
Engineering department of Hwa Hsia Institute of Technology in
Taiwan, and joined Koos Group in 1997. He has more than 10
years of relevant experience in marketing and management. He
joined the Group in October 2009.
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Mr. Zhang Peng Xiang

President of Anhui King Bridge Cement Ltd.

Mr. Zhang, aged 41, graduated from the Anhui Building Materials
Industrial School. He has joined a large-scale cement group
since 1991 and has more than 20 years of relevant experience in

cement manufacturing. He joined the Group in September 2012.

Mr. Wu, Chih-Feng

President of TCC Liuzhou Construction Materials Company
Limited

Mr. Wu, aged 55, graduated in Marine Engineering from National
Taiwan Ocean University. Mr. Wu has joined T'Cement since
1988. He has acquired practical experience through holding
various posts responsible for plant construction planning,
product dispatching management, storage and transportation
management, standardized plant operation and advanced plant

management. He joined the Group in October 2007.

Mr. Tzou, Din-Ji

President of TCC (DongGuan) Cement Company Limited

Mr. Tzou, aged 43, holds a Bachelor Degree in Agricultural
Engineering, an on-the-job education program in the Institute
of Economics and a Master Degree in the Institute of Applied
Mechanics from National Taiwan University, and takes an
advanced study in Anam/AMKOR Semiconductor in South Korea.

He joined the Group in September 20183.

Mr. Zhan Jiagan

President of Yingde Dragon Mountain Cement Co, Ltd

Mr. Zhan, aged 38, graduated from Tongji University in Shanghai.
He has joined a large-scale cement group since 1998, and has
many years of expertise in planning, design and construction of
cement projects. He has been working as a general manager
and a director in various cement companies in the PRC, and was
responsible for the expansion work for overseas projects. Mr.
Zhan has extensive experience in the construction, production,
operation and management of the cement industry. He joined the
Group in October 2012.
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Mr. Yao Chengfu

President of TCC New (Hangzhou) Management Company
Limited

Mr. Yao, aged 43, graduated from Xiangtan Mining Institute
in Hunan Province specialized in Mining Engineering. Mr. Yao
had held senior management positions in large-scale cement
companies in the PRC and has extensive experience in the
planning and engineering construction, production operation
management and mine management of large cement clinker

production lines. He joined the Group in April 2008.

Mr. Nie Dalin

Assistant President of TCC New (Hangzhou) Management
Company Limited

Mr. Nie, aged 45, graduated from Anhui University of Technology
specialized in Program Statistics. Mr. Nie had held senior
management positions in large-scale cement groups in the PRC
and has extensive experience in operation management and
marketing management of cement enterprise. He joined the
Group in August 2010.

Mr. Shen Dingbao

President of TCC Liaoning Cement Company Limited

Mr. Shen, aged 49, graduated from Chaohu Teachers’ College
(HHMENE = SERER) . Mr. Shen had held technical and
management positions in large-scale cement groups in the
PRC and has more than ten years of experience in equipment
management, engineering construction, cement manufacturing

and production management. He joined the Group in June 2008.

Mr. Yang Zhonghoug

President of TCC Chongqing Cement Company Limited

Mr. Yang, aged 42, graduated from Huaibei Coal Industry
Teachers College specialized in Foreign Language, and holds an
university diploma qualification. Mr. Yang had held management
positions in large-scale cement groups in the PRC and has
more than ten years of experience in cement manufacturing and

production operation. He joined the Group in September 2013.
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Mr. Zhang Luping

President of TCC Guangan Cement Company Limited
Mr. Zhang, aged 41, graduated from University of Science and
Technology of China specialized in Business Administration,
and from Anhui Polytechnic University specialized in Textile
Machinery successively and obtained a MBA degree in business
administration. Mr. Zhang had held senior management positions
in large-scale cement enterprises in the PRC and has extensive
experience in corporate operation management, administration
and human resources management. He joined the Group in
December 2010.

Mr. Wang Bing

President of TCC Anshun Cement Company Limited

Mr. Wang, aged 45, graduated from Ningguo Radio and TV
University specialized in Law. Mr. Wang has held management
positions in large-scale cement companies in the PRC. He
has more than 20 years of experience in corporate planning,
engineering construction, cement manufacturing and operation

management. He joined the Group in April 2010.

Mr. Zhang Wenchao

President of Guizhou Kong On Cement Company Limited

Mr. Zhang, aged 35, graduated from Anhui Commercial College
(ZBEESSHERIER ) specialized in Marketing. Mr. Zhang had
worked in market development in large-scale cement groups in
the PRC and has more than ten years of experience in corporate
management and market planning. He joined the Group in
February 2008.

Mr. Tian Xiaojun

President of Guizhou Kaili Rui An Jian Cai Co., Ltd.

Mr. Tian, aged 36, graduated from Hefei University of Technology
specialized in Civil Construction. Mr. Tian had held management
positions in large-scale cement companies in the PRC and has
more than ten years of experience in engineering construction,
cement manufacturing and operation management. He joined the

Group in September 2007.

REEFEE

B (BZ)KEERL AHBEE
REERF4 TRFEERPEMRAET
BEREXEMTBIREREHEARRER T
BEEMBAS AL SREA BEF B AR IR
%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ'&ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ\ﬁﬁ%
BCANERERFNEAAEENLR - R
:%-?i+:ﬂ%k$%g°

ITR%E

B (ZIE)KEE R L A #AEE
TRAERFISm EXRERERERABRE
BEX - TRLECHEPEREIKREARELE
BB EEEMRE TEER KERERE
EEBETEHERE _TE2FOKB BN _F
—EFEMNAMAKREER -

RXHEEE

BMEZ KB RL A B A&
REEHFHR BERLHBESSERSR
RS EHEE - REELEFBRREKESE
EMAETIBAR I EoEEE mHERESF
FEBEETEFNER - BER_ET)/\F_A
MMARER -

HMNEXRE
EMNAEGH LT BN ERAL A BREE
HELRFI6R EXNALETIERELESRE
Fo-BAAEECEPREARINRERREEEER
B ETRER KEREMKEERETHE
BTZ2FMER-BR_FTLFNLAMAR
£H-



BEREEERA

2013 F3§

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Gao Qiyin

Executive Vice President of Scitus Hejiang Cement Co., Ltd.
Mr. Gao, aged 36, graduated from Anhui University of Technology
specialized in Accounting. Mr. Gao had held management
positions in large-scale cement companies in the PRC and has
more than ten years of experience in production, operation,
management and cement manufacturing. He joined the Group in
December 2010.

Mr. Xie Yubing

President of Scitus Luzhou Cement Co., Ltd., Scitus Naxi
Cement Co., Ltd. and Scitus Luzhou Concrete Co., Ltd.

Mr. Xie, aged 45, graduated from Anhui Building Materials
Industrial School specialized in Cement Technology. Mr. Xie
had held technical management positions in large-scale
cement companies in the PRC and has more than ten years of
experience in cement manufacturing, production operation and
engineering construction. He joined the Group in September
2012,

Mr. Cheung Chi Wah, Patrick

Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Group

Mr. Cheung, aged 43, joined the Group in September 2010
and is mainly responsible for the accounting and financial
management and company secretarial matters of the Group.
He holds an Honours Degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a Master Degree in Information
Technology Management from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, he had worked
at a leading international accounting firm for about 5 years and
had served senior management position in a listed company for
over 10 years. He has over 15 years of professional experience
in corporate finance, financial management, accounting and

auditing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the value and importance of
achieving good corporate governance standards to enhance
corporate performance, sound internal control, transparency
and accountability to the Shareholders. The Board and the
management of the Company are committed to adhere to the
principles of corporate governance and adopt good corporate
governance practices and procedures to meet the legal and
commercial standards by focusing on areas such as internal

control, fair disclosure and accountability to all Shareholders.

Save as disclosed below, the Company has complied with all
code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”)
as set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange throughout the year ended 31 December 2013. In
respect of code provision AB.7 of the CG Code, three non-
executive Directors and two independent non-executive Directors
were not in a position to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 24 May 2013 due to other overseas
commitments. In respect of code provision A4.1 stipulate that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term
and directors should have formal letters of appointment. The
non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term
and do have a formal letter of appointment but they are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the provision to the
Company’s Articles of Association, and their appointment will be

reviewed when they are due for re-election.
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CODES OF CONDUCT ON DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions and dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. The terms of the Code of Conduct are no less exacting
than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct
applies to all the relevant persons as defined in the Model Code,
including the Directors, any employee of the Company, or a
director or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the
Company who, because of such office or employment, are likely
to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Company or its securities. Having made specific
enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
of 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decisions and performances and is responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its
affairs. In practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision
making in all major matters of the Company include approving
and monitoring of all policy matters, setting of objectives,
annual budgets and overall strategies, material transaction,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The Board delegates its authority and
responsibilities to the senior management for the day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group.
These responsibilities include the implementation of decisions
of the Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-day
operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by these senior executives
and the Board has the full support of them to discharge its

responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established and
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions such as developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies, practices on corporate governance and continuous
training and development of directors and senior management

etc.

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2013 and up to the date of this report,
the Board comprised two executive and seven non-executive
Directors of whom three are independent as defined by the Stock
Exchange. The number of independent non-executive Directors
and the non-executive Directors represents 33% and 44% of the
Board respectively. To enhance independence and accountability,
the role and responsibility of the Group Chairman, Mr. Koo,
Cheng-Yun, Leslie and the Group Managing Director, Mr. Wu
Yih Chin, is separated. The Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of the Board
functions. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention
to the Company’s affairs. The Board believes that the ratio of
executive Directors to non-executive Directors is reasonable and
adequate to provide checks and balances that safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole. The
profiles of each Director are set out in the “Biographical Details of

Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual report.

ERERHAE

VTERIGEEARZE® MEEGREET
RERBE Wﬁﬁm&ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂZﬁ”
CEERERUANEERSRERBABZFHE
AR RS-

EETEM

R-E—=F+-A=+—BREEARER
H EEZSaMENTESTRERIFRTES
B ER =R EEMRAER 2B B
EMITEERFRTEZTCHEDILESS
233%K44% o mnsa B M REE N £BE
FBERATEREBREFRLEREREEZ
AERBECHEED BEF (BIEBUIERITE
B)MABRBCMEBEECEBER MBLEX
B EHESSEARLaBULBEITERE -
PREZHNEACRERENRERARSE
B-BEZGHEE ATESLERTEST 2 LA
MBS WRAFEEHERRHIE 2R -
NRERREEAAFZERBIR - SEFZE
BEAAFRZEERGRELREEE] —-



Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company had three independent non-executive Directors
representing not less than one-third of the Board. One of the
three independent non-executive Directors have the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence and
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

The family relationships among the board members, if any, have
been disclosed under “Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management” section in this annual report.

Through the insurance plan of the Company’s parent company,
T’Cement, the Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability Insurance for the directors and officers of the
Company for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate

activities.

Appointments, re-election and removal

According to the Articles of the Company, the Board has the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as
a Director either to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. The nomination should be taken into consideration of the
nominee’s qualification, ability and potential contributions to the

Company.

In accordance with the Articles, all Directors appointed to fill a
causal vacancy should be subject to election by Shareholders at
the first general meeting after their appointment. At every annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by

rotation.
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Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means
of communication at least four times every year. The Board
is responsible for overseeing the Group’s businesses and
development, formulating long term strategies and policies.
The Board also monitors and controls operating and financial
performance in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. At
least 14 business days’ notice of regular Board meeting are
given to all Directors, who are all given an opportunity to attend
and include matters in the agenda for discussion. Apart from
regular meetings, senior management from time to time provides
Directors information on activities and development of the
businesses of the Group. The company secretary takes detailed
minutes of the meetings and keeps records of matters discussed
and decision resolved at the meetings. Individual attendance
records of each Directors at the respective Board and committee
meetings are set out in the table on page 46 of this annual report.
All Directors and Board committees have recourse to external
legal counsel and other professionals for independent advice at
the Group’s expense if they require it. The Board has delegated
the day-to-day management and operation of the Group’s

businesses to management.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development Programme
Pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. The Company has provided

timely regulatory and technical updates to the Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective on
1 September 2013. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. Selection of candidates will be based on merit
and contribution which the selected candidates will bring to the

Board with the consideration of the above diversity attributes.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 9 directors of
which one is a woman. The Board is characterized by significant
diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, nationality,

professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, three Board
committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, were established to

oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

ESTHFEERRH

Details of the attendance of individual Directors at the Board EEERNFARESEeRR=-AZEgeR
meetings and the three Committees meetings during the year are ZHBEERFBHN TR
set out in the table below:
Meetings Attended/Held
HE/BTES
Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee

BEsg EREBE FHMEEE REZES
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie 2R ks 4/4 N/A i F 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wu Yih Chin REWLE 4/4 2/2* 1/1 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Dr. Shan Weijian BREEEL 4/4 N/A i N/A i F N/A i F
Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson REFEAE 2/4 N/A TiE A N/A i@ N/A i@
Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung, Jason oK B4 o = 4/4 1/2* N/A i F N/A i F
Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth Tubzt 4/4 2/2 N/A i@ N/A i@
Independent non-executive Directors B FHITES
Dr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald BAEEL 3/4 2/2 1/1 1/1
Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth MERET 2/4 1/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger Rk E 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1

* The Director is not a member of the committee at the relevant time

but attended the meetings by invitation.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and
to assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established three Board Committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Independent non-executive Directors play an important role in
these committees to ensure independent and objective views are

expressed and to promote critical review and control.
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and its members
comprise three independent non-executive Directors and a non-

executive Director:

Dr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald (Chairman of the Committee)
Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth

Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger

Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth

All committee members possess diversified industry experiences
and appropriate professional qualifications as required under the

Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year. Their
major duties and responsibilities are set out in the terms of
reference and the work conducted by the Audit Committee

included the following matters:

1. Reviewed the Group’s 2012 annual and 2013 interim
reports, internal controls and corporate governance issues,
financial and accounting policies and practices and made

recommendations to the Board,;

2. Recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and to develop policy
on the engagement of an external auditor to supply non-

audit services;

3. Discussed with the external auditor their independence and

the nature and scope of the audit; and

4. Discussed with the external auditor any material queries
raised by the auditor to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control

and management’s response.
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The Committee reviewed the Group’s internal control based
on the information obtained from the external auditor and
Company’s management and was of the opinion that there are

adequate internal controls in place in the Group.

To comply with the requirement under the CG Code in respect
of the responsibilities for performing the corporate governance
duties, the Board has delegated its responsibilities to the
Audit Committee to develop and review the policies and
practices of the Company on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; to review and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct applicable to the Directors and employees;
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management and to review
the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set out in
the CG Code contained in the Listing Rules and disclosures in

the corporate governance report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors and two executive Directors:

Dr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald (Chairman of the Committee)
Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie

Mr. Wu Yih Chin

Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth

Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger

Its major terms of reference are summarized as follows:

1. To formulate and recommend to the Board the policy for
the remuneration of the executive Directors and other senior

executives as designated by the Board;

2. To determine the individual remuneration package of each
executive Director including basic salary, annual bonus plans

and allocation of share options;
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3. To consider and recommend to the Board any payment
or compensation commitment to be made to an executive

Director on termination of his contract;

4. In formulating its policy, the Committee shall give due regard
to the contents of the Listing Rules and shall also consider
market forces and compare between different remuneration
packages paid to directors of other companies of a similar
size in comparable industries. The executive Directors may
attend meetings of the Remuneration Committee when
invited to do so, but not when their own remuneration is

being discussed; and

5. To determine any performance related remuneration

schemes and executive share option schemes.

The Remuneration Committee is authorized by the Board to seek
any information it requires from any employee of the Company in

order to perform its duties.

In connection with its duties, the Remuneration Committee is
required by the Board to select, set terms of reference for and
appoint remuneration consultants, at the Company’s expense
as the Remuneration Committee deems necessary in order to

perform its duties.

The Remuneration Committee sets the remuneration policy for
the executive Directors and senior management. Specifically,
the Remuneration Committee agrees their service contracts,
salaries, other benefits, including bonuses and other terms and
conditions of employment. It also agrees terms for their cessation

of employment.

One meeting was held in 2013, with the attendance rate of
100%. No executive Director takes part in any discussion about
his own remuneration. During the meeting, remuneration of the
Directors has been discussed and no significant change has
been proposed to the remuneration policy and the directors’

remuneration.
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established in 2012 and its
members comprise three independent non-executive Directors

and two executive Directors:

Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie
Mr. Wu Yih Chin

(Chairman of the Committee)

Dr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald
Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth
Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger

Its major terms of reference are summarized as follows:

1. To review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s

corporate strategy;

2. To identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

3. To assess the independence of independent non-executive

Directors; and

4. To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for

Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee is authorized by the Board to seek
any information it requires from any employee of the Company in

order to perform its duties.
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The Nomination Committee shall have the authority delegated
by the Board to engage independent professional advisors, at
the Company’s expense, to assist the Nomination Committee in

order to perform its duties.

Member of Nomination Committee can call for a meeting anytime
when it is necessary. One meeting was held in 2013, with the
attendance rate of 100%. Issues concerning the structure, size
and composition of the Board were discussed and no change

has been proposed to the structure, size and composition.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees charged to the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the non-statutory audit services
amounted to HK$833,000. The non-statutory audit services
consist of financial due diligence, tax compliance and the interim
review. The cost of statutory audit services provided by external
auditor was HK$7,387,000. The responsibilities of the external
auditor with respect to financial reporting are set out in the

section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 71 to 73.

FINANCIAL REPORTING
Pursuant to the code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, it

stipulates that management should provide all members of the
Board with monthly updates giving balances and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and

prospects in sufficient details.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the management
of the Company has provided to all Directors (including non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors)
monthly reports which provided sufficient details in relation to the
Company’s performance, position and prospects. In addition, the
management has also provided all Directors, in a timely manner,
updates on any material changes to the performance, position
and prospects of the Company and sufficient information for

matters brought before the Board.
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The Board recognizes its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view and are in accordance
with generally accepted accounting standards published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

judgments and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
maintaining an adequate internal control system and reviewing
its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The Company
management maintains and monitors the systems of controls on

an ongoing basis.

Based on the assessment made by the Company’s management
and external auditor during its statutory audit, the Audit
Committee satisfied that the internal control system is sufficient
to provide reasonable assurances that the Group’s assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
transactions are properly authorized and proper accounting
records are maintained. In addition, the Board considered
that the resources, qualifications and experience of the staff
responsible for the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, their training and budget are adequate. The system
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than

eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational system.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Cheung Chi Wah, Patrick was appointed as the company

secretary of the Company since 27 September 2010. He is
responsible to the Board for ensuring the board procedures
are followed and that the Board is fully briefed on all legislative,
regulatory and corporate governance developments. Mr.
Cheung is also responsible for the Group’s compliance with the
continuing obligation of the Listing Rules and other applicable

laws, rules and regulations.
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The biographical details of Mr. Cheung is set out in the section
of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on page 39 of this annual report. Up to the date of this annual
report, Mr. Cheung has undertaken not less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meeting of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. The requisition must be lodged with

Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the company secretary at the
Company’s office in Hong Kong at 16/F., Hong Kong Diamond
Exchange Building, 8-10 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there is no change in

the Company’s constitutional documents.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a wide range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting, the
annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and circulars

and the Company’s website at www.tcchk.com.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group consist of the import and
distribution of cement in Hong Kong and the manufacture and
distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder in other areas of
the PRC. Through its associates, the Group is also engaged in
the production and distribution of ready-mixed concrete in Hong
Kong. There were no significant changes in the nature of the

Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 74 to 75. The Directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK11.5 cents
per ordinary and preference share to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of ordinary shares or
the register of members of preference shares of the Company on
7 May 2014, estimated to be HK$435,847,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the ordinary share
capital and non-redeemable convertible preference share of the
Company are set out in Note 39 and Note 40 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing Shareholders.

EFEUMAZRAEBEE_T—=F1+_
A=Z+—BLEFEZFRARKEEZM B R
=

FTEEK
AEEZIEXRBRERELENEEAR
DHER MR B E iR KR - AR R
BEMRERDHFEG -AKETEBEB S
REAEBRBREBLEERDHBEHER L - AEH
RAFEZITBEXRBHESEETMNERNES -

XERKRE
AEEHE-_Z—=ZF+_A=+—HILEFE
CEBEHNETABERTSAZ A BEREME
ElmxR EFRERARN T —NFRALH
B 51 AR B i AR AR R A i oA S IR AR 3R i
Z R R AR AR B AR AR R B R k11.5
(L TEET & A435,847,00078 7T ©

- BERRE
ARBRAFEZDE BERREL DS
RG2S B SRR E15 -

S
RRATRAREE 2 & B A & 7] & B 7] 4%
BEER B E BN S I B REM 39
Bt 540 o

BRBRE

ADFEZ DTGB IRMA KA S BRI
EHEADTARLHIARERESEEHRG
2 BB -



RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 78.

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserve, including the
share premium and contributed surplus accounts, available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, computed
in accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$14,609,889,000. Under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, a company may make distributions
to its members from the share premium and contributed surplus

accounts under certain circumstances.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report are:

Executive Directors:
KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie (Chairman)
WU Yih Chin (Managing Director)

Non-executive Directors:
SHAN Weijian

CHANG, An-Ping, Nelson
CHANG, Kang-Lung, Jason
WANG, Lishin, Elizabeth

Independent non-executive Directors:
LIAO Poon Huai, Donald

CHIH Ching Kang, Kenneth

SHIEH, Jen-Chung, Roger
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The Company has received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors as regards their
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent to the

Company.

In accordance with Article 114 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Wu Yih Chin, Ms. Wang Lishin, Elizabeth and Dr. Liao Poon
Huai, Donald shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out on pages 31 to 39.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding companies, any of its fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on
23 May 2006 (the “Scheme”), the Company had on 27 May 2011
granted to certain Directors the rights to subscribe for shares
at an exercise price of HK$4.42 per share exercisable during
the period from 27 February 2012 to 26 May 2014 (both days

inclusive).
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A summary of movement of the share

options granted to

Directors during the year is as follows:
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FARTESZEREZESHHMBNT:

Number of share options

BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding
at Exercised at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Name of Directors Date of grant price Exercise period 2013 the year 2013
RZE-Z% RZB-Z=%
—-A—-H +=A=t+-H
B4 RHAH THEE TREE e RAT B ERETE i K17
HK$ (note)
BT (Krit)
KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie 27 May 2011 4.42 27 February 2012 to 10,450,000 - 10,450,000
E ZE——F 26 May 2014
TAZt++H —T-Cf
ZAZTtHE
—E-mF
AAZ+H
WU Yih Chin 27 May 2011 4.42 27 February 2012 to 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
REH —E——F 26 May 2014
EAZt+H —T-Cf
ZAZTtHZE
—T-mF
TAZ+<H
12,450,000 - 12,450,000
note: The exercisable period of an option granted under the Scheme Biat: WREBEZFERL cEREZTEREREE

commences on the date falling nine months after the date of
grant of an option and expiring at the close of business on the
day falling immediately prior to the third anniversary of the date
of grant in respect of such option. Special restriction apply to
the exercise period of these options: up to 20% of the share
option held by each Director/employee may be exercised from
27 February 2012, a further 30% from 27 February 2013 and
the entire balance from 27 February 2014 onwards. These
share options will not lapse when the Director leaves the Group
and returns to his original employment with T'Cement; their
termination is determined by reference to the date when the
Director subsequently ceases to be employed by T'Cement.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under the provisions of the SFO) or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein or which had otherwise been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the Ordinary Shares as at 31
December 2013

EERTHARRRG HERNO
REzzRaRAR

R-E—Z=ZF+-_A=+—H EFKAQA
THBERARRSEMBEEZE (EXEE
% R EEEBIEXVED) 2 Bin - ARG RESH
REBREEF KB EGROIIEXVBETRESD
HEAMGERRAI LBz ER AR (B
HERBEZFAFARAGBRIGXCEEESERES
ZRmNKRE)  HIREBEFF KRB KA E352
BESAZGRLz SRl @as AR =X
BEETBITAETEFETELARHINFETA
([MRESFRA]) BRG AR R R PT 2z &

KRBT

() R=ZEBE—Z=FE+ZH=Z+-—-H REBER
ZHR

Number of Approximate
Capacity and Ordinary percentage of
Name of Directors nature of interest Shares held shareholding
BEEpgA BORERME FBEBER™E REMOB DL
KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie Directly beneficially owned 66,061,019 2.00%
Z 0 HEREEZESR (note 1)
(Bt7E1)
WU Yih Chin Directly beneficially owned 5,650,000 0.17%
REA ERERER
CHANG, Kang-Lung, Jason Directly beneficially owned 3,000,000 0.09%
o Ml 4@ ERERER
74,711,019 2.26%




(ii)

note:

(1) 40,215,000 Ordinary Shares were directly beneficially owned (1)
by Mr. Koo. An additional 17,828,019 and 8,018,000 Ordinary

Shares were also held by two corporations which are 49.85%

and 49.44% beneficially owned by Mr. Koo respectively.

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the

Company are separately disclosed in Note 41 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations as at 31 December 2013

T’Cement
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Biat:

ERTEE B EA40,215,0008 E B
PR 2EEDHEHEE49.85%
NA49.44% M &5 2 P A &) 2 Bl 5 A 58 S

17,828,019/% %28,018,0004% & i [i%

BB mRM TR

EERNAREBEE 2 #mD

7l B B8 10 AR

(i) R=FB—=F+=B=+—8 REBKZE

EROREBRRO 2HFR

T’Cement

Number of shares held,

capacity and nature of interest
FEzRAME SORBEEME
Directly Through Through Approximately
beneficially spouse or controlled percentage of
Name of Directors owned  minor children corporation Total shareholding
EARED EB REBL
Es=ps ERERER AEREFZ ZEHEE it BAk
KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie 42,827,543 91 183,538,052 226,365,686 6.13%
EXR (note 1) (note 2)
(Hizt1) (Htit2)
CHANG, An-Ping, Nelson 156,573 3,069,817 7,165,821 10,372,211 0.28%
wEF (note 1) (note 3)
(Htit1) (H1323)
LIAO Poon Huai, Donald 12,616 789,293 - 801,909 0.02%
BEXE (note 1)
(Hrt1)
CHANG, Kang-Lung, Jason 190,000 - - 190,000 0.01%
Rl 4
notes: Kt at -
(1)  The shares are held by the respective Directors’ spouses as (1) BNBASESFIRBEAZLEREZRE

the registered and beneficial shareholder.

o
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(2) Koo, Cheng-Yun, Lesile, is interested in companies controlled
by him, which held an aggregate of 183,538,052 shares of

T’'Cement.

(8) Chang, An-Ping, Nelson, is interested in companies controlled
by him, which held an aggregate of 7,155,821 shares of

T’'Cement.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no person
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein or which had otherwise been notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the details as disclosed under the share option
scheme disclosure in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year, there were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by the Directors; or was the Company, or any of its
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in

any other body corporate.
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SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2013, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and, so far as was
known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, the
persons or entities, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, who had an interest or a short position in the shares
or the underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of the Company or any other company which is
a subsidiary of the Company, or in any options in respect of such

share capital were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the Ordinary Shares as at
31 December 2013
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BRARREZ ZIRR

RZEBE-—Z=ZF+_A=+—H REARTR
B s M BRI ZE3361EMIFE 2 &R &
BESFAARATHRARMA TIALHE
B (EFHARRITRAEKIN RARE Z K
M EERO P HEAARERE S MG GRDE
XVEBHE2 R B30 B Z R E R AR RIKE Z
BAEFRAR NERXAHEEHEAMSENAR
EABEATEARAXSARBNEB AR ZE
AEMARZBRAEG LR Z EAERIRA
E{E5% A LA % M A RN Z (R BB AR
M

() R=ZZFB—=F+=A=+—H REER
2R

Number of Approximate
Capacity and Ordinary Shares percentage of
Name of Shareholders nature of interest held shareholding
IR R & B SO RERME FREEBERHE REBOE DL
TCCI Directly beneficially owned 1,861,802,000 56.49%
BEERERER
T'Cement (note 1) Through a controlled corporation 1,861,802,000 56.49%
T'Cement (#13£1) FHBRZIESEE
CHPL Directly beneficially owned 521,899,500 15.84%
BEERERER
Chia Hsin Cement (nhote 2) Through a controlled corporation 521,899,500 15.84%
BN (H1et2) FBBXEHEE
notes: Bt it -

(1)  T'Cement is interested in the shares of the Company by virtue
of its beneficial ownership of the entire issued share capital of

TCCL.

(2) Chia Hsin Cement is interested in the shares of the Company

held by its subsidiary, CHPL.

(1) T'CementAEz=# A TCCIEIME BT A
A AN R 2 %

2 EFKEREWBARCHPLIFES ZAR
AP -
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(ii) Long positions in the underlying shares of the

Convertible Preference Shares as at 31 December 2013

Name of Shareholders

(i) A-ZE—=F+=ZA=+—HB RuEH

BERZHEBRDZHER

Percentage of

the Company’s

Number of total issued
the underlying Ordinary

Ordinary Shares held Share capital

AR T B BT
TERBRAHEE
BREREZE FrEEREERYE ZBEDL
TCCI 494,251,511 15.0%
T'Cement (note 1) 494,251,511 15.0%
T'Cement (H1:E1)
note: izt -

(1)  T'Cement is deemed to be interested in the underlying shares
of the Convertible Preference Shares held by TCCIl as TCCl is

wholly-owned by T'Cement.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no person
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or a short position in the shares or the underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any
other company which is a subsidiary of the Company, or in any

options in respect of such share capital.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
sales revenue. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

(1) TCementHZ&AMBTCCIMER BB
TCCIFTFFA 2 Al S #E 5t iR 2 MBI 19 2
T2 o

BREXFIEEEN RZT—=F+=-A=+—
B #EAL (UIFEFHAARRTHAT) R
ARBZBORAABBR DT EEEREES M
HIE R I SEXVER 2 K 37 88 2 1R 3R E R A
RAEABBEZEGIRE  REERIHEEEEN
SN MERBR TEARRH SRR R M
BRARZEMEMARZBERAS LREZE
] ¥R AR A E5 % 3 A Esk B 5 & B B A
ARSI Ye ok 5l
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None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, had any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during

the year.

RELATED PARTIES AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions, which fall within the definition
stipulated in the Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24 “Related
Party Disclosures”, undertaken by the Group during the year
are set out in Note 50 to the consolidated financial statements.
The transactions included in Note 50 items (i) to (iv) to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Details of such transactions conducted by certain
subsidiaries of the Company with connected parties during the

year are summarized below:
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AEEN EFLREZEABRALREE
$HR A A D ABAS%N |2 B
BEm A A R BB AR S R R A A
36 -

BAEATIRFERERS

AREBRAFERNETZBRE LS ERE
A [BEANTRBEIFTRZERZCHEALR
SEINNER A MWK M0 < &R A BB !K
FfEEB0SE (V2 (V) EFME 2 X 2 AR HEK LW
RABUABFIREZHERER S - FA - K
RAETHBAREBEALTETHNERRS
BB T

Annual cap
under the waiver

granted by the

Amount Stock Exchange

RIEH PR

¢E FRB2ZEELR

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT
1. Leasing of a site on Tsing Yi Island, RAAF—ERAZHE A
Hong Kong, from a fellow subsidiary of HERRBXRE UK

the Company 4,968 4,968
2. Leasing of a site in Tondo, Manila, mARAR AR RME AT
the Philippines, from a fellow subsidiary of MEFAEES/ETondo

the Company — R 1,221 1,221
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Annual cap
under the waiver

granted by the

Amount Stock Exchange
BB X A
tE FRRRZEELR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
3. Purchase of cement in Hong Kong from the MAREZ ZEERRAR
Company'’s ultimate holding company and its HEWBARERBEAKE
subsidiaries 70,826 100,000
4, Purchase of cement and/or clinker in MARRZ ZREERARR
the PRC from the Company’s ultimate holding HIMERRERBEEA
company and its subsidiaries KRR/ SR - 10,000
Receive of transportation and management WEBRAAR ZRZEMBARRE 2
services from fellow subsidiaries of BRREERY
the Company 285,235 475,000
Receive of maintenance service and WRBERRAZAZMERARRRZ
one-off implementation service of ERBHZRBERBR
a computer software system from fellow — B AR
subsidiaries of the Company 34,863 143,200

Leasing of a site on Tsing Yi Island, Hong Kong

On 11 September 1997, the Company entered into a
lease agreement with TCC Development Limited, a fellow
subsidiary of the Company, under which the Company
agreed to lease that part of the property known as Tsing Yi
Town Lot No. 119 on which the cement operation facilities of
the Group in Hong Kong are located for a term of 30 years
with effect from 11 September 1997. The rent payable was
negotiated on an arm’s length basis between the parties
with reference to the agreements signed. Details of the
continuing connected transaction is set out in greater details
in the prospectus of the Company dated 23 September
1997.

HEEBEERE LK

R—AREFhLA+—B ARAFRELRR
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Leasing of a site in Tondo, Manila, the Philippines

On 1 September 1997, TCC Cement Corporation (“TCCP”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
contract of lease with Taicorn Minerals Corporation, a fellow
subsidiary of the Company, under which TCCP agreed to
lease a site in Tondo, Manila for a term of 25 years with
effect from 1 September 1997. The rent payable was
negotiated on an arm’s length basis between the parties
with reference to the agreements signed. Details of the
continuing connected transaction is set out in greater details
in the prospectus of the Company dated 23 September
1997.

Purchase of cement in Hong Kong

On 15 November 2012, the Company, on behalf of itself
and its subsidiaries, entered into a purchase agreement
with T’'Cement, on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, for
the purchase of cement in Hong Kong. The agreement has
a term commencing from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2015. The price of the transaction was determined between
the parties with reference to the agreements signed. Details
of the continuing connected transaction is set out in greater
details in the announcement to the Shareholders of the

Company dated 15 November 2012.

Purchase of cement in and/or clinker in the PRC

On 15 November 2012, the Company, on behalf of itself
and its subsidiaries, entered into a purchase agreement
with T’Cement, on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, for
the purchase of cement and/or clinker in the PRC. The
agreement has a term commencing from 1 January 2013
to 31 December 2015. The price of the transaction was
determined by reference to the prevailing market prices,
and no less favourable than those available to the Group
from Independent Third Parties. Details of the continuing
connected transaction is set out in greater details in the
announcement to the Shareholders of the Company dated
15 November 2012.
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Receive of transportation and management services

On 15 November 2012, the Company, on behalf of itself
and its subsidiaries, entered into a transportation and
management service agreement with Ta-Ho Maritime
Corporation, on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, for
the transportation of cement, clinker, coal and/or gypsum
and for the transportation-related services provided. The
agreement has a term commencing from 1 January 2013
to 31 December 2015. The price of the transaction was
determined by reference to the prevailing open market prices
of road transportation and shipping services. Details of the
continuing connected transaction is set out in greater details
in the circular to the Shareholders of the Company dated 6
December 2012.

Receive of maintenance service and one -off
implementation service of a computer software system
On 30 December 2011, the Company, on behalf of itself and
its subsidiaries, entered into a master agreement with TCC
Information Systems Corporation (“TCC Info Systems”), on
behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, a fellow subsidiaries of
the Company, (i) for the provision of general management
information system support, network and software
consultation and hardware maintenance services, the
payment agency services, the system virtualization and data
disaster recovery services and other related services as may
be agreed upon by the Company and TCC Info Systems
from time to time for the operations of the Group’s business;
and (ii) for the one-off installation and/or integration of
the information systems for the new production facilities
and the newly acquired subsidiaries of the Group. The
agreement has a term commencing from 1 January 2012
to 31 December 2014. The price of the transaction was
determined between the parties with reference to the
agreements signed. Details of the continuing connected
transaction is set out in greater details in the announcement
to the Shareholders of the Company dated 30 December
2011.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have

been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on
normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable than

those available to or from Independent Third Parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing the following findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule

14A.38 of the Listing Rules:

(i)  the transactions have received the approval of the Board;

(i) the transactions were in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve provision of goods or

services by the Group;

(i) the transactions have been entered into in accordance with

the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) the transactions have not exceeded the cap disclosed in

previous announcements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the

year.

THE OFFER
On 26 November 2013, the Company received a letter from TCC

International Limited (the “Offeror”) in relation to a pre-conditional
voluntary cash offer to acquire all the issued ordinary shares
and issued preference shares of the Company (other than those
already held by the Offeror) and to cancel outstanding options
and warrants of the Company (the “Proposed Offers”) which
Standard Chartered (Hong Kong) Limited will be making on behalf
of the Offeror. Details of the Proposed Offers is set out in further
details in the composite offer and response document dated 21
March 2014.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21
of the Listing Rules, the following disclosures are included in
respect of the Company’s loan agreements, which contain
covenants requiring performance obligations of the controlling
Shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to a loan agreement and an amendment to loan
agreement dated 30 July 2009 and 30 June 2010, respectively,
between the Company and certain banks relating to a three-year
term loan facility of HK$750,000,000 and further extended for
another two years, a loan agreement dated 3 September 2010
between the Company and certain banks relating to a three-year
term loan facility of HK$1,920,000,000, and a loan agreement
dated 14 December 2011 between the Company and certain
banks relating to a five-year term loan facility of US$550,000,000,
a termination event would arise if (i) T'Cement ceases to
own legally and beneficially, at least 30% of the shares in the
Company’s capital or (i) the Group fails to meet the financial

covenants stipulated in the loan facility.
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Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 27 December 2013 between
the Company and a bank relating to a two-year loan facility
of HK$128,000,000, and a loan agreement dated 22 June
2011 and further extended for another two years between the
Company and a bank relating to a three-year loan facility of
US$40,000,000, a termination event would arise if () T'Cement
ceases to own legally and beneficially, at least 30% of the shares
in the Company’s capital or (i) the Group fails to meet the

financial covenants stipulated in the loan facility.

Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 8 May 2013 between
the Company and a bank relating to a one-year loan facility
of HK$40,000,000, a loan agreement dated 23 July 2012 and
further extended for one year between the Company and a bank
relating to a one-year loan facility of HK$40,000,000, and a loan
agreement dated 17 June 2013 between the Company and a
bank relating to a one-year loan facility of US$15,000,000, a
termination event would arise if T'"Cement ceases to own legally
and beneficially, at least 30% of the shares in the Company’s

capital.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 40 to 53.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Details of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 40 to 53.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules throughout the

year ended 31 December 2013.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and its assets and liabilities for

the past five years is set out on page 216.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
5 March 2014
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Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
TCC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 74 to 215, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

5 March 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-—F—=F+=-A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—=f —ET—_F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
g3 TERT FET
Revenue e & 6 12,970,794 11,304,232
Cost of sales & AR (9,406,920) (9,199,250)
Gross profit E7 3,563,874 2,104,982
Investment income "EWA 7 38,977 26,185
Other income, gains and losses H g A - Yok N Es e 8 223,463 283,006
Selling and distribution expenses  $§& & 5 #5 X (638,985) (599,358)
General and administrative — B RITHRAX
expenses (771,726) (717,651)
Finance costs B & B AN 9 (316,638) (485,325)
2,098,965 611,839
Share of profits of associates FE(HER &N T 2% T 91,612 154,910
Share of losses of joint ventures EREE A NAlZER (261) -
Profit before tax f& F AT 355 10 2,190,316 766,749
Income tax expense EREY s 12 (475,675) (152,141)
Profit for the year NEZ 5T 1,714,641 614,608
Other comprehensive income, Hi 2wz
net of income tax ?D PR
ltems that will not be SEFIEEEEZ
reclassified to profit or loss: IEH :
Exchange differences arising BREAZHEE
on translation to presentation EECIERZ=%
currency 673,028 137,705
Gain on revaluation of property HEWERE 2,770 7,434
Income tax relating to EMBEHYWEZ
revaluation of property e (356) 1,293
Share of other comprehensive FE(REEE N Al 2 H A
(expense) income of 2m (B Wz
associates (477) 12,301
Other comprehensive income AEEEMEEmINEE
for the year, net of income tax MK ER 674,965 158,733
Total comprehensive income AREEZE @MW RETE
for the year 2,389,606 773,341
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z T —=F+_-HA=+—HIF/ZF

2013 2012
=—F—= —E—_F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt it FET FET
Profit for the year attributable to:  JE{5 A E % 7 :
Owners of the Company PiNNETEF SN 1,674,569 610,000
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR AE 40,072 4,608
1,714,641 614,608
Total comprehensive income FEE MK S8 :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABHEA A 2,336,008 765,636
Non-controlling interests FE 12 IR 4 2 53,598 7,705
2,389,606 773,341
2013 2012
—_E—=F —E——-%F
Earnings per share STl 14
- Basic —H K HK43.5 centsi#fll  HK14.8 centsi& 1l

— Diluted — g HK43.5 centsi& 1l HK14.8 centsi 1l
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At 31 December 2013 R=-F—=F+=A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET——F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
K1t FH& T FABT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB kEE 15 17,045,737 16,193,824
Prepaid lease payments B E A 16 1,882,811 1,817,385
Intangible assets mEE 17 3,179,788 2,898,405
Mining rights PR HE 19 441,630 401,163
Interests in associates B & A A 20 1,711,627 1,537,007
Interests in joint ventures BERNAED 21 12,800 21,700
Other financial assets HEibemEE 22 105,798 88,203
Deposits paid for acquisition of RUWEDE - BE X
property, plant and equipment BEREMEE
and other assets YRt ZE & 312,376 291,637
Deposits paid for acquisition U B AR 2
of subsidiaries HIEA - 74,400
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 23 45,193 614,167
Amounts due from investee U 1% B N R FE
companies 24 - 144,075
Pledged bank deposits BHEFRITER 25 10,217 4,578
Deferred tax assets EIERIEE E 26 39,547 866
24,787,524 24,087,410
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 27 1,285,513 1,198,413
Prepaid lease payments FENHERE 16 51,998 49,365
Prepayments, deposits and FENRE ek
other receivables H h i U5 R I8 28 1,422,821 1,920,626
Trade receivables JEWE SRR 29 4,025,362 2,380,070
Tax recoverables A] Uy B %18 6,830 19,013
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 23 = 599,361
Held-for-trading investments BIERSRB2EE 30 49,287 49,137
Pledged bank deposits DB ITER 25 10,436 175,990
Time deposits EHTFE R 25 - 18,600
Cash and bank balances B & MIRTTHE % 25 3,066,954 2,876,778
9,919,201 9,287,353
Assets classified as held for sale D AFIEHE 2 BE 31 = 40,096
9,919,201 9,327,449
Current liabilities yI =R
Trade payables FERTE 5 IR 32 1,274,580 971,208
Other payables and H fth JE S 308 K
accrued liabilities JEEtBE 33 1,756,492 1,603,697
Tax payables e B IR 230,044 49,810
Bank loans RITE R 34 5,752,612 4,924,279
Amount due to a non-controlling FEAS — L FEVERR
shareholder AR B FRIR 35 - 13,730
9,013,728 7,562,724
Net current assets REBEEFE 905,473 1,764,725
Total assets less current liabilities BAEERAE & & 25,692,997 25,852,135
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2013 2012
—E—=f —ET——F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
K1t FH& T FET
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank loans IRITE R 34 7,000,118 9,368,812
Amount due to immediate N BB AR FIE
holding company 36 635,500 325,500
Long term payable REAFE SRR - 11,755
Derivative financial instruments - T4 &g T A —
warrants R EE 37 5,780 6,669
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFHIERE 26 365,298 354,812
8,006,696 10,067,548
17,686,301 15,784,587
Capital and reserves R R
Share capital — ordinary shares A% AR — i 39 329,565 329,565
Share capital — non-redeemable B&AS — 7~ AT B B 7] 4
convertible preference shares B i 40 49,433 49,433
Reserves [ 17,026,069 15,034,362
Equity attributable to owners of ZAATHEE AELER
the Company 17,405,067 15,413,360
Non-controlling interests FERER 281,234 371,227
17,686,301 15,784,587

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 215 were BI4R21I5B 2B MERE N E—M4F

approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 5 “ATBEEFeHAERKERR THAUAT
March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: AERBEE:
KOO, CHENG-YUN, LESLIE WU YIH CHIN
ERA RERK
CHAIRMAN MANAGING DIRECTOR

FIE EFBEE
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BREREBERAT
2013 F3§

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mT.l_\ I%@!JILE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z T — =+ -HA=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REETHHEME
Profit before tax B 750 B Al 2,190,316 766,749
Adjustments for: LA AR
Interest expenses FER 316,638 485,325
Interest income FLEMA (38,545) (25,599)
Dividend income from ERAEEFERERA
listed equity investments (432) (586)
Depreciation of property, ME - BELZETE
plant and equipment 1,060,216 1,003,290
Amortisation of prepaid lease TENEERIEEE
payments 57,456 49,542
Amortisation of intangible assets M EEHE 11,263 21,790
Amortisation of mining rights PR 5 30,713 24,004
Allowance for doubtful debts of JEWE ZERA 2
trade receivables RIBER AR 7,514 -
Equity settled share-based VAR 2N #5 E ARR 19
payment expenses SENE 5,465 13,363
Impairment losses of A SR EREEE
available-for-sale investments 13,072 -
Impairment losses of property, WE BERFEZ
plant and equipment BB E B 58,819 -
Impairment losses recognised BRERKER R
in respect of loan and other H A EWRIE 2
receivables BRI EEE 103,517 -
Written off of deposits paid for WU ZE - BB
acquisition of property, BB NE®
plant and equipment 38,005 -
Written off of intangible assets sk 3 %fﬁ - 8
Written off/loss on disposal WiE HEWE BE R
of property, plant and equipment BREZIES Té 2,901 10,541
Change in fair value of derivative MTHESR T H—RARE
financial instruments — warrants "‘“‘Z B @J (889) (13,680)
Gain on disposal of HERBIEREEEZ
assets held for sale W (69,291) -
Gain on disposal of HEMHRDERE Y
available-for-sale investments I = (136,051) -
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—HMAEERAZ
uﬁzﬁé (116,576)
Share of profits of associates F’Eff .%.*’ a2 5@ (91,61 2) (154,910)
Share of losses of joint ventures EiHaERAIZER 261 -
Written off of amount due to Wﬁﬁfﬁ v
a non-controlling shareholder FEVE IR AR R AR (13,730) (53,362)
Exchange adjustments PE H & (25,266) 20,387
Operating cash flows before EEESEFA 2
movements in working capital KEBERE 3,520,340 2,030,286
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (8 md (65,973) 309,977
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, TENFRIE e REAM
deposits and other receivables FE W IE (420 8 (58,697) 80,351
Increase in trade receivables JE WY 5 BR FRAE N (1,634,351) (131,979)
(Increase) decrease in held-for-trading #H{EX ZR®BRZLE
investments (3 hn) (150) 35,749
Increase (decrease) in trade payables  JEfTE SZBRFE 1 CR4) 254,986 (305,686)
Increase in other payables and HAh ﬂ‘%ﬁ%ﬂ(lﬁﬁ
accrued liabilities FEEH B FE L 156,832 241,456
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z _-—F—=F+_-H=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
k23 FHET FiET
Cash generated from operations KEMBIRE 2,172,987 2,260,154
Income taxes paid BRATEER (300,707) (221,478)
Withholding tax paid on FLUEREEE N E] B A A
dividends/interest received from BB/ MBS 2 FEMH
associates/subsidiaries (14,762) (2,347)
Net cash generated from operating KEFREE2REFE
activities 1,857,518 2,036,329
Cash flows from investing activities WEEHZRERE
Interest received 2 A2 43,938 20,555
Dividends received from associates =) LlﬁZH“" NSl 246,143 20,970
Dividends received from listed equity B U RS A% éf f&% 8
investments 432 586
Purchase of property, plant and EEME BE KB
equipment (616,963) (1,049,116)
Payment for prepaid lease payments S EMNEERIE (33,103) (105,423)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEBTEE (19,116) (6,508)
Purchase of mining rights i B IR (61,961) (18, 472)
Payment for acquisition of associates 2 f- Ug BE Bt & N A1 08 (14,497)
Proceeds from disposal of HEwE- V%&E&Lﬁ
property, plant and equipment Z 1S 534 3,025
Proceeds from disposal of & AT ’% "EZ
available-for-sale investments Fr 18 308 23 807,311 -
Proceeds from disposal of HE—MEaERARIZ
a joint venture Fri5 508 - 116,576
Proceeds from disposal of assets HERE uﬂ EEEL
held for sale FRAS 50OR 54,194 -
Deposits received for assets BIELE éfFZ BUlET &
held for sale - 51,767
Capital injections in joint ventures BERNAIZERZEA - (21 ,700)
Capital injections in an associate —RBE AR ZEREA (85,835)
Advance to an associate B —HBE QR (57,696) (685)
Advance to joint ventures BEEERNF (8,463) (9,920)
Advance to investee companies 5 ?xé A (483,854) (24,000)
Advance to loan receivables B EWE (19,103) (37,799)
Repayment of loan receivables EEEWRER 208,825 9,840
Repayment of advance to an associate — EHi < N FE BB 82,600 -
Placement of pledged bank deposits & 2 iR 1 T/TJ\ (8,135) (113,523)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2B IR ITFER 171,208 68,758
Withdrawal of time deposits IREUE BT 3K 18,600 9,690
Net cash outflows from acquisition of Uk B & K 5fe
Scitus Cement as defined in (E&RMFE23) 2
Note 23 e mE s 23 = (1,276,530)
Net cash inflows (outflows) from BB AR ZIRE
acquisition of subsidiaries WA O ) #58 38 29,154 (67,435)
Net cash generated from (used in) KEEEFE (A2
investing activities Re F8 399,213 (2,429,344)




BREREBERAT
2013 3§

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HolREREE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z T —=F+_-HA=+—HIF/ZF

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cash flows from financing activities BEEDCRESRE
Interest paid 2R E (815,657) (496,486)
New bank loans raised B IRITE R 2,885,756 4,307,643
Capital contributed by —RNB ARz L
a non-controlling shareholder of FEERARR HE
a subsidiary - 8,160
Repayment of bank loans EBEERTER (4,492,334) (3,254,234)
Repayment to BEZ G E SN
a non-controlling shareholder - (7,001)
Repayment to immediate holding MEBERARER
company (325,500) (933,600)
Advance from immediate HEEERARRRK
holding company 635,500 325,500
Payment for transaction costs ST EIT TR
attributable to issue of ordinary AIEE B L R B (L 2
shares/convertible preference R B
shares - (122)
Dividends paid to owners of ERNAREHEARE
the Company (231,188) (284,248)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B FEERERRK S
shareholders (12,150) (21,200)
Preferred distribution paid to B AT s i@ S ik
convertible preference shareholders &% 4B 5Tk (24,222) (12,111)
Payment for acquisition of SHMERKB AR
additional interests in subsidiaries RE SN 25 5008 (246,737) -
Net cash used in financing activities REREFA RS TR (2,126,532) (367,699)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and FRREEABELEE
cash equivalents for the year B OR L) F5E 130,199 (760,714)
Cash and cash equivalents FHzReRIAEEE
at beginning of year 2,876,778 3,620,077
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes %M [ &R & &) » 5 £ 59,977 17,415
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBEABE2FE
at end of year, represented by B3R & M ER1T 45 84
Cash and bank balances 3,066,954 2,876,778

81
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
F OB FS IR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #ZE - F—=F+_-H=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) consist of the import and distribution of
cement in Hong Kong and the manufacture and distribution
of cement, clinker and slag powder in other areas of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Through its
associates, the Group is also engaged in the production and
distribution of ready-mixed concrete in Hong Kong. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate

Information and Key Dates” section to the Annual Report.

The parent company of the Company is TCC International
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Cement Corporation). In
the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
Taiwan Cement Corporation (“T’Cement”), a company
incorporated and whose shares are listed in Taiwan, is the

Company’s ultimate holding company.

The functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries and associates is Renminbi (“RMB”). However,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group are
presented in Hong Kong Dollars as the Directors consider
this presentation is more useful for its current and potential

investors.

—REH
ARTA—RRESHEEMRLZ AR
BRAA HBRHREBHARFHAER
NF ([T LT

ARBREMBLAR ([REE]) 2ETEHE
BERERBRENBEARD HER R
FEREARKME ([HE])HEiihmRg e
IO B RIRB M RIE R D HER - A%
BEBEBERARERTBRELERD
HEHERL FAAKETIZEBMHE
BMEEANEH-

ARBZEMPERRETBLEWHDR
RERIAPEHMNEEZHS ] —6HHE-

KRR ZEABATCC International
Limited (R EBRE L FSTMK LI B E
EXRERNDERATBZEZEMBAR) o K
RRAZEF([EF)RR EBEIMAK
URERNDERE T AEKERNDE
fRAR] ([T'Cement ] ) BN A G) 2 &%

ARBRRETEZHBARRBE AR ZI
EEBRARE (TARE]) - RMAKE
ZIREMBRRABTEY RARES
RRAUE2INHRAENBEZREEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &% —ZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
Application of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new

and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12

HKAS 19

(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27

(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011)

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Recoverable amount
disclosures for
non-financial assets

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and
financial liabilities

Consolidated financial
statements, joint
arrangements and
disclosure of interests in
other entities: Transition
guidance

Employee benefits

Separate financial statements

Investments in associates and

joint ventures

Consolidated financial

statements

Joint arrangements

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z _-—F—=F+_-H=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests
in other entities
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20 Stripping costs in the
production phase of a

surface mine

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”, HKFRS 11
“Joint arrangements”, HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests
in other entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) “Separate
financial statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
“Investments in associates and joint ventures”, together with
the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group

as it deals only with separate financial statements.

R REBTERMBER
FEA([ERUBREED])
(4)

FEFAH T RSB B RM RS R ()

BB R EER BRENEMEEDN
F125% s
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FRme R BEQLARKEZH
7] R AR T 2 A
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HEZH BEARLEEZABEERIA
B BREAMBREENFIOR 4546
FigmR] BV BRSERNE IR K
Rk BEP G REERFE125 [HE
REMERNERS | BB ST ERFE27H
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ORI HREM s

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z T —=F+_-HA=+—HIF/ZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)
HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and separate financial statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC)-INT 12
“Consolidation — Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor has
control over an investee when (a) it has power over the
investee, (b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and (c) has the ability
to use its power to affect its returns. All three of these
criteria must be met for an investor to have control over an
investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has
been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has

control over an investee.

The Directors has made an assessment as at the date of
initial application of these standards (i.e. 1 January 2013)
and concluded that the Group exercised control over its
non-wholly owned subsidiary and its investments in joint
arrangements are classified as joint ventures. As a result,
the Directors adopt these new and revised Standards
on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates in its
accounting policy and concluded that these standards had
no material effect on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the current or prior accounting period except
that the application of HKFRS 12 will result in disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements as set out in Notes 20,
21 and 51.

2.

FE R FTE] RAEETT B R MK R
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B BAENE - REENARE LR
AZEEE FHRIAT BAEIE- 8
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BRIGEBR b E G E SR ERF
o BB WA ERIF 105 EMARS
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EEEORVTERZEENBH (I ZF
—=F—-A-B)ERTHIFHER A
SEATHEIEZEKN B A R TEE S
MERLRZHZREBRDEREE A
Ale Bt EERE S BERPERNARL
GHRE RALRH BE QAR ZZENIR
IEETER WBH R RS ENHAE
BRAGHEHERX - Bz EREH
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % — %

2.

SIS HREM s
—ZE+ZAZF—HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology for
statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Upon application of the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group’s “statement of comprehensive income” is renamed
as a “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income”. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option
to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. However, the amendments to
HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the
other comprehensive section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments do
not change the existing option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The
amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence
the presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of
the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total

comprehensive income.

FE R F el RIERT BB E |
HEA([EBMBREED])
(#)
EBGHERNEIRE (BTXR) 20 HM
2HEWFER ]
EBGFERNER (BFIAR)sIAZEHEK
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mrR|EERBEakHEMEEKER] -
BBRGETERNE1R (BFIAR)REBAILAE
—HERSIUMES AEEENREZ25E
R EH MR 2 B AT BAGE
HREH (BRI AR) EREE M2 E K
—EAEH BN R - B H M 2 E YR IE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &% —ZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single
source of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements, and replaces those requirements previously
included in various HKFRSs. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad, and applies to both financial instrument items and
non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, subject to a few exceptions.
HKFRS 13 contains a new definition for ‘fair value’ and
defines fair value as the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market
at the measurement date under current market conditions.
Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. A fair value measurement of a
non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best

use.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS
13, the Group has applied the new fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements prospectively. Other than the
additional disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not
had any material impact on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 36 “Recoverable amount

disclosures for non-financial assets”

The Group has early applied amendments to HKAS 36
“Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets”
in advance to its effective date (i.e. 1 January 2014). The
amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit
(“CGU”) to which goodwill or other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has
been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the related
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy,
key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was determined
based on its fair value less costs of disposal. Accordingly,
the Group has not disclosed the recoverable amounts of the
Group’s CGUs to which goodwill had been allocated. There

is no other impact to the consolidated financial statements

of the Group.

Except described above, the application of these new
and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the

consolidated financial statements of the Group for the

current or prior accounting period.

The Group has not early applied other new or revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for

the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle’

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle?

Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and transition

disclosures?

Investment entities?

Financial instruments?

Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions?
Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities?

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting?

Levies?
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z _-—F—=F+_-H=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014.

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date
will be determined when the outstanding phases of
HKFRS 9 are finalised.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

e  With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss

was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is available for earlier application and the
mandatory effective date will be determined when the
outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised. The Directors
anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have impact on classification and measurement of
available-for-sale investments reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets but not on the Group’s financial
liabilities. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, available-for-
sale investments as at the date of initial application are
required to be measured at fair value, with fair value changes
either accounted in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. The new requirements for hedge accounting are not

expected to have material impact to the Group.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

financial performance and financial position of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z _-—F—=F+_-H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties
and financial instruments, that are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the principal accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are

described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z _-—F—=F+_-H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liablilties, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and

attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. The
amounts previously recognised in the other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, i.e. are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as

specified by applicable HKFRSs.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at

the acquisition date, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”,

respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or the share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered into
to replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are

measured in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a

bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation is initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s

identifiable net assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages

When a business combination is achieved without the
transfer of consideration, the Group determines the amount
of goodwill using the acquisition date fair value of the
Group’s interest in the acquiree in place of the acquisition
date fair value of the consideration transferred, and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest

were disposed of.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations achieved in stages (Continued)
When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest

were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that

date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented as

an intangible asset.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s CGUs (or groups of CGUs) that are

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than the carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy of goodwill arising on the acquisition of

an associate is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing

control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate
or a joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion
thereof) is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture and
the retained interest is a financial asset within the scope
of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at the date when the Group lost significant
influence or joint control and the fair value is regarded as
its fair value on initial recognition. On disposal or partial
disposal of an associate or a joint venture which resulted
in discontinuation of equity method, the difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the
date the Group lost significant influence or joint control,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a partial interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal or

partial disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not

related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset

and its sale is highly probable.

Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale

within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value

less costs of disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes.

3.

ORI HREM s
—SEFZAZH—AILEE

FESHBE 2)

I

REEAARSEADZRE ()
W EEEREAEENBELEATRA
BATRS (MHEREEEE)  HR
BARRARATRSHEENBRES
R TN R NG o £Y3Fi
EEBOER T 18 EAEE RSB
BEERER-

[

BEHEZERDEE
MERESBEREIZERLERS (M
FRFEFER)WE - AL IERSEES
RF/FIEHE - EEERR AW ERAETH
’HHE@%FZ—E&E%{%&‘H B

CBHEBEZATREMRA IR
ﬁﬂfﬁﬁkﬁﬁw

BEEVERNNHEE BEAREER
DHEEE-FRAERSTHRIHE-

DEARIFHEZINDEEREERE
FHERMATFERBEERNAZBEEA
E\EO

K

EY

W 2
Wit Wk BB A TFEE A

M”ﬁkﬁPﬁﬁ&uﬂE&'ﬂ&Fﬁ?ﬁfﬁHEWZﬁﬁ
WORTERIT R B M E MR IE 2 8
o

103



104

TCC International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= 4

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z — %

3.

SRR LM
—ZE+ZAZF—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all

the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant

risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated

with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the

transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on

initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and office buildings held for use in the
production or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that would
be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting

period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the land and building revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to the profit or loss to
the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease
in carrying amount arising on revaluation of such land and
buildings is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, held in the land and building
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
asset, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the
land and building revaluation reserve is transferred directly to

retained earnings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (other than leasehold land
and office building and construction in progress) are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other assets, commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
fair value of assets other than construction in progress less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as

a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating lease in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the

inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as

property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong Dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that year, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (exchange fluctuation
reserve). Exchange differences resulting from translation of
non-foreign operations to the Group’s presentation currency
accumulated in equity is reclassified to retained earnings

upon disposal of relevant group entity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for the intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants (Continueqd)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme
including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and the
employee’s pension schemes of the respective municipal
government in various places in the PRC where the Group
operates are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will

be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for business combination.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted

for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &% —ZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised of their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated

useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the profit or loss in the period when the

assets is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and the costs necessary to make the

sale.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established

by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e jtis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Held for trading investments are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend

earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other
receivables, loan receivables, amounts due from investee
companies, time deposits, cash and bank balances and
pledged bank deposits) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment

losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity

investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting

period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit period of 90 — 180 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
trade receivables and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables, bank loans, amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder, long term payable and amount due to
immediate holding company are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Warrants

Warrants that will be settled other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instrument
are accounted as derivatives. The warrants are initially
recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares in which the
Group has no contractual obligation to redeem and will be

only settled by the exchange of fixed number of the Group’s

own equity instruments is classified as equity instruments.

The balance will be transferred to share capital and share
premium once preference shares are converted. Any excess

of par value of issued ordinary shares will be transferred to

share premium.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to

make payment when due in accordance with the original or

modified terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently
measured at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under
the contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets”; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,

cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the

revenue recognition policy.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit

or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a

corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share option

reserve.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

option reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z T —=F+-HA=+—HIF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

increase under that standard.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
estimates based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. The estimates are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES (continuead)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets within the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired required the
Group to assess the recoverable amount of the CGU. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and the value in use. It is determined by an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation required the Group to
estimate future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
values. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or when there is a revision to the estimated future
cash flows due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
20183, the carrying amount of goodwill is approximately
HK$3,146,449,000 (2012: HK$2,875,125,000). No
impairment loss has been recognised. Details of the value in

use calculation are disclosed in Note 18.

THREMITZEEZRR 2

AT RRBERRAELEBARARZER
RERGH T EERZCHEHETEZRR
W ABHEE R A AEEBAR MEM K
FEAEEZRHEEFLERFHE-

BERE

ErfERtREREEASETHREE
EB A REERE - AIRESEAAT
BEREENAETHAEACBRSE -HiB
BHEBROIREER ZREEABU
EREEELGMET RNAEEAE
BN AREEGHREESSBUMES
BEARRBERERABETREUAER
B MERRRERSRE DN TEBRESK M
B ReRENBREZTERBREDM
EEEET BIATEE A EARRBEREE R
=+ -A=+—H BHEZEEA
B 49/43,146,449,0008 7T (= — =4
2,875,125,0008 7T ) - L B BRI E
B-FRABEFGEZFBEI R F18H

==
& ©



BEREEERAH

2013 F3§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &% —ZF

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES (continuead)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables, loan and
other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows from the trade receivables, loan and other receivables.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2013, the carrying amount of (i) trade receivables is
HK$4,025,362,000 (2012: HK$2,380,070,000) (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$7,514,000 (2012: nil));
(i) loan and other receivables is HK$182,588,000 (2012:
HK$659,057,000) (net of accumulated impairment of
HK$103,517,000 (2012: nil)).

4.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of the other operating segments. Summary details of the

reportable segments are as follows:

()  the import, distribution and handling of cement
segment which is the import, distribution and handling

of cement in Hong Kong;

(i) the manufacture and distribution of cement, clinker and
slag powder segment which is the manufacture and
distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder in the
PRC; and

(iiiy the investment holding segment which invests in listed

and unlisted equity securities.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2EEFR (&
Segment revenue and results ﬁ%ﬁl&ﬁ}i%%ﬁ
The following table presents revenue and results by TREJNIZAZERSBE D 2 W K
reportable segments. B
Import, Manufacture and
distribution and distribution of cement,
handling of cement clinker and slag powder Investment holding Consolidated
EO-A¥R HERAHAE
BREKR REREER REER R&
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
-§-zf -T--£ ZB-Zf -3-- “g-zf -%-= -2-zf -%-C
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAL TEx TAL Tén TEL TEn TEL
Segment revenue 7 HE
Sales to customers HEFEP 355,378 292,339 12615416 11,011,898 - - 12970794 11,304,232
Segment profit loss) AHEH (EBE) 58,773 42,706 1,921,747 804,833 (13,277) 41,216 1,967,243 888,755
Gain on disposal of HETREERE 2 ha
available-for-sale investments 136,051 -
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE-BAENR K - 116,676
Unallocated central administration costs AARPRTBRAE (17,936) (32422)
Unallocated other income and gains RAREMRBMA RN E 330,245 124,255
2,415,603 1,097,164
Finance costs BERA (316,638) (485,325)
Share of profits of associates EEBELNE R 91,612 154910
Share of losses of joint ventures EEARDAIZER (261) -
Profit before tax BHAERN 2,190,316 766,749
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the

same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note

3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
(including Directors’ salaries), certain other income and
gains, gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments,
gain on disposal of a joint venture, finance costs, share of
profits of associates and share of losses of joint ventures.
This is the measure reported to the executive Directors,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

There are no inter-segment sales for both years.

The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% of

the total revenue of the Group for both years.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
segments is disclosed as it is not regularly provided to the

executive Directors for review.

Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas —
Hong Kong and the PRC. The following table provides an
analysis of the Group’s revenue by location of customers,

irrespective of the origin of the goods and services:

TEER (&)
DU K& ()
MR T 1 8 5 SR s &

M8 4F S 7K 52 [0 15 4 A 7R o 1) 4 W 2% B R
10% A EZ2EF-

AEBWEEHREENHE D ZEER
BEZAOMBEE DEEYEEHERT
MITERUHEEN-

-1
<P

i & & K

AEBRMETIFEHNR -FBERTERL
L - TRAEBEFHMEMONZ AEE 2
Wak (T emr KRS 2 REM)

The PRC Consolidated
H &E
2013 2012 2013 2012

“2-=f —"T-_-% ZIZB-=f —T-_F%

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TEL THET TET

Hong Kong
5
2013
—E-=F gz
HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx TR
Segment revenue 2 EHE

Sales to customers HETRF 355,378 292,339

12,615,416 11,011,893 12,970,794 11,304,232

Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by geographical

location of the assets are detailed below:

Hong Kong
B

2013

—g-zZ§ _T-_F%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T

NEEBREBEMEMRE D ZIERDEE
DT

The PRC Consolidated
H &
2013 2012 2013 2012

“Z-=§ <-"T--F ZB-=f C-T--%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Tz FEL TiEx TET

Non-current assets FRBEE 62,602 62,715

22,799,740 21,614,099 22,862,342 21,676,814

note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, interests
in joint ventures, other financial assets, available-for-sale
investments, amounts due from investee companies, pledged

bank deposits and deferred tax assets.
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Other segment information

Import,
distribution and

5.
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FPRSEIFEE eSS
FZHEF A=+ —AIEE

handling of cement slag powder Investment holding Consolidated
B0 28R RERAEKE
REKE AHREER REER &
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
-“2-=f <-%--§ <=C-E-=f <C-%--f <CZE-=f <C-T--f CZB-=f C-T--f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR T TR T TR TR
Amounts included in the measure of STEABRFRMEAZ
segment profit: &8
Allowance for doubtful debts of EWRESER
trade receivables REGEE - - 7,514 - - - 7,514 -
Change in fair valug of held-for-trading BEXSREL
investments RENTELRE - - - - (552) (7,522) (552) (7,522)
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 1,985 4,246 1,156,618 1,093,738 1,045 642 1,159,648 1,098,626
Dividends income from listed equity TIRARERSMA
investments - - - (432) (586) (432) (586)
Loss (gain) on disposal of held-for- LERERSRRZ
trading investments HEZEE Wa) - - - - 7 (4,474) 7 (4,474)
Impairment losses of available-for-sale THEEREL
investments REEE - - - - 13,072 - 13,072 -
Impairment losses of property, nE BEREREZ
plant and equipment HEEE - - 58,819 - - 58,819 -
Impairment losses recognised in EREUERREMER
respect of loan and other receivables FEZEERRERE - - 103,517 - - - 103,517 -
Written off of amount due to WS — R RBRR
a non-controlling shareholder B - . - - (13,730) (63,362) (13,730) (53,362)
Written off of deposits paid for HERREDE BER
acquisition of property, plant and REIR T2
equipment - - 38,005 - - - 38,005 -
Written off/loss on disposal of property, i/ L &M% BERE
plant and equipment pd g 9 3 2,892 10,515 - 23 2,901 10,541
Amounts regularly provided to THRETTZLEREE
the chief operating decision maker BARRGEAHEFFE
but not included in the measure of AZEH:
segment profit:
Bank interest income FATEYN (1,439) (748 (31,569)  (16,831) (405) (0236) (33413 (19813
Change in fair value of derivative fTEEBIE-RRER
financial instruments - warrants JATEE - - - - (889) (13,680) (889) (13,680)
Finance costs BERKA 3 2 204,436 381,240 112,199 104,083 316,638 485,325
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—RAERazWE - - - - - (116,576) - (116,576)
Share of profits of associates il NG - - - - (91,612 (154,910) (91,612 (154,910)
Share of losses of joint ventures ERARNAIZER - - - - 261 - 261 -
Income tax expense FEH 25,366 8,090 432,967 125,159 17,342 18,892 475,675 152,141
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6. REVENUE

Revenue represents invoiced amount of sales of cement,

clinker and slag powder, net of discounts, returns and sales

related taxes.

6. Wi

Watg MR- EERAREEREKZ
KRR RBEENHEETR-

7. INVESTMENT INCOME 7. REWA

2013 2012
—E-=F —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET

Dividends income from listed equity EHRAREEREWRA
investments 432 586

Interest income from an associate RE—HEEEREZ

A BHA 5,132 5,786
Bank interest income HRATH B WA 33,413 19,813
38,977 26,185

Investment income earned from financial assets, analysed by

TREEMBEMIBRERAREERRZ

category of assets, is as follows: DT

2013 2012
—E—=F —z—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Held-for-trading investments BIEXSRB2RE 432 586
Loans and receivables BRI FIE

(including cash and bank deposits) (BREBEe MRITHER) 38,545 25,599
38,977 26,185
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OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Ht A - kEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Change in fair value of derivative MESR T H—
financial instruments — warrants RREFE AT EED 889 13,680
Change in fair value of BIEXSR®Z
held-for-trading investments WERNFEEE 552 7,522
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale HERFEHEEE 2 S 69,291 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEERE 2 ke
investments (Note 23) (H77#23) 136,051 -
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—HAEERR 2 W=
(note a) (Ktita) - 116,576
Government grants (note b) AT 8L (A7 atb) 27,623 46,134
Handling charges FEER 2,364 2,416
(Loss) gain on disposal of HERERSREZ
held-for-trading investments wEZ (EE)lE (7) 4,474
Management fee income BEEBUA 1,251 1,201
Net exchange gain PE 55 2= 151,252 3,366
Rental income Ha A 1,688 1,264
Written off of amount due to M85 e AN — L IE PR PR
a non-controlling shareholder (Note 35) I% B RI8 (A 5235) 13,730 53,362
Allowance for doubtful debts of EWE SHER RBREH
trade receivables (7,514) -
Impairment losses of available-for-sale A ERE 2 REEE
investments (Note 23) (Hi77#23) (18,072) -
Impairment losses recognised RIS B A fE U
in respect of loan and HIB 2z ERRESERE
other receivables (Note 28) (Hi7#28) (103,517) -
Impairment losses of property, Y% BB REEZ
plant and equipment (Note 15) WIEEE (Hit15) (58,819) -
Written off of deposits paid MW B E - BB &
for acquisition of property, REI N ZET®
plant and equipment (Note 15) (Hit15) (38,005) -
Others Hit 39,706 33,011
223,463 283,006
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8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES
(Continued)

notes:

(@)

The Group’s joint venture, Guangzhou K. Wah Nanfang
Cement Limited (“Guangzhou Nanfang”) remained inactive
since date of acquisition. As Guangzhou Nanfang made
recurring losses and resulted in net liabilities in prior years,
the carrying amount of the interest in Guangzhou Nanfang
amounted to zero on the date of disposal. Due to the
change of business plan of the Guangzhou Nanfang and
which is not align with the principal activities of the Group,
the Group disposed of its entire equity interest to a wholly-
owned subsidiary of another joint venturer. Major assets of
Guangzhou Nanfang included leasehold land and buildings
located in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interest in joint venture,
Guangzhou Nanfang, to a wholly-owned subsidiary of
another joint venturer at a consideration of RMB95,000,000
(equivalent to HK$116,576,000). Upon the disposal of the joint
venture, a gain on disposal of a joint venture amounted to

HK$116,576,000 is recognised in profit or loss.

The amount represents the incentive subsidies provided by the
PRC local authorities to the Group to encourage investments
in certain specific locations. There is no specific conditions
attached to the grants, the Group recognised the grants upon

receipts.
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AlZz2BWBRAR -BNEHIZETEEE

BEMATEEE+REF

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE"

REERBEREGERAEMNER 225
RELNEFS—HEERAZE2AME
naERERAREIS000,0007T (HHE
116,576,000 7T) - R EZ A L QA
B HE—HAe% ARz 116,576,000
BTN BENHER -
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FINANCE COSTS 9. RE KA
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest on: AT ZRE
Bank loans wholly repayable within five HARAFATEER
years IRITER 311,822 478,461
Loan from immediate holding company EREBIER AR ZER 4,816 12,188
Total borrowing costs MEERA 316,638 490,649
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction 7)52 TRERIERERE
in progress Gk - (5,324)
316,638 485,325
Borrowing costs capitalised arose on specific borrowings to REBE_E——F+-A=1+—HILFE
finance the construction in progress during the year ended =¥\ Zfiat I AR E RERETIIZREM

31 December 2012.

B oHERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-F—=#+-A=+—AUFE

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BRF AR R
2013 2012
=B =4 —E——-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Profit before tax has been arrived R &0 A& A B kR
at after charging the following: T3 &8
Director’s remuneration (Note 11) BEEME (HiF11) 7,176 9,809
Other staff cost H B IR
Salaries and other benefits FahHMRM 584,274 493,415
Other pension costs and mandatory HRARE KRR
provident fund contributions BESHK 56,661 45,960
Equity settled share-based AR A 88 & DARR 19
payment expenses THRAX 2,469 7,684
Total staff costs = AN 650,580 556,868
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BB REETE
equipment (note) (Hi&) 1,060,216 1,003,290
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T A & SR8 8 57,456 49,542
Amortisation of intangible assets (included #EFEE#E (Dt AHE
in cost of sales and general and AR —BITH L)
administrative expenses) 11,263 21,790
Amortisation of mining rights (included in AR HE#H# (25T A
cost of sales) HEMKA) 30,713 24,004
Auditor’s remuneration 2% 85 B BN & 7,387 6,708
Operating lease payments in respect of HEMEZKEHERS
rented premises 12,885 13,558
Written off/loss on disposal of property, M/ HEDE BB K&
plant and equipment BB 2,901 10,541
Written off of intangible assets WigmEEE - 8

The Group has no forfeited contributions from the retirement

benefit scheme for both years.

note:

Depreciation charge of approximately HK$959,000 (2012:

HK$2,288,000) relating to plant and machinery used
in buildings under construction was capitalised under

construction in progress.

NN iSRRI ER IS S I & )
/o

HBEZEFEAREREEFEBZIT
B & #H959,0008 L (Z T ——fF:
2,288,000 L) ERTERITEET T MU
B -
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Directors’ emoluments

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z T —=F+-HA=+—HIF/E

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors are

MEEZEREEMS

EEME
ENXENTRESZHMEMT

as follows:
K00, CHANG, CHANG, WANG, LIAO CHIH SHIEH,
Cheng-Yun, wu SHAN An-Ping,  Kang-Lung, Lishin, ~ Poon Huai, Ching Kang,  Jen-Chung,
Leslie Yih Chin Weijian Nelson Jason Elizabeth Donald Kenneth Roger Total
3 REN BRE EZY RH% Tud BEE HEE #HEm &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFEL ThL TEL TERL Tk TR TEL TEL T TEL
2013 F-=
Fees foka 220 - 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 1,760
Other emoluments Efie
Salaries and other benefits e REMEE - 1,360 - - - - - - - 1,360
Performance related HRBE L
incentive bonus REEA 660 400 - - - - - - - 1,060
Equity settled share-based DRALEE UK
payment expenses IRAX 2,515 481 - - - - - - - 2,996
Total emoluments FEE 3,395 2,241 20 20 220 220 220 220 220 7,176
2012 —F-C%
Fees e 220 - 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 1,760
Other emoluments Eftfe
Salaries and other benefits EeREMRE - 1,360 - - - - - - - 1,360
Performance related HERBENZ
incentive bonus RENEAL 660 350 - - - - - - - 1,010
Equity settled share-based  MBRAEE MR
payment expenses TRA% 4,767 912 - - - - - - - 5,679
Total emoluments ams 5,647 2,622 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 9,809

The performance related incentive bonus is determined with

reference to the performance of the Group’s operation.

The remunerations of Directors is determined by the

remuneration committee having regard to the performance

of individuals and market trends.

HRIBHD 2 REEANREAEEEE
KB MERE °

EEFMOIRTHEER2E/MARAR
mIZBERMEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z _-F—=F+_-H=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 11.

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees’ emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid individuals included
two (2012: two) Directors, details of whose emoluments
are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining three

(2012: three) highest paid individuals are as follows:

BEEREEME &)

EEMS
AFENRAERSFMHATRERE (ZF
——F -MB)ES HEMNFBEEHINN
ENCEBZE(ZE—ZF =82S
HBA T 2 FMESI AT

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET
Salaries and other benefits e M EMbERL 2,213 3,327
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K48 K| 5 &4 7% 76 81
Performance related incentive bonus BRI EN 2 BRENIEAL 759 997
Equity settled share-based AR AR 45 B AR (0 2 B 2

payment expenses 132 251
3,180 4,656

Their emoluments were within the following bands: HFHFeNFTHEE:

Number of employee

EEB A
2013 2012
—E—=F —z—=
Up to HK$1,000,000 7~ % 1,000,000 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T —
1,500,0005% 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T —
2,000,000 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T —
2,500,000 7T = |

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2012: nil). None of the
Directors has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2012: nil).

RARER ARELEREIFNESHAA
REFMA LTINS REREMAS
MEBAEE  BEHFRRER 2 ME (=
T_F ) MEEFNAFAREN
RENZEEFAME (ZF——F &)
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FrSB X H
2013 2012
=B =4 —E——-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FETT
Current tax: EHTIE

Hong Kong BB 10,654 8,220
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR ERER 456,616 159,319
Other jurisdictions H i mlA#E R 14,911 25
Withholding tax Bk 69 10,634
482,250 178,198

Under(over)provision in prior years: BEFERBTR (B8E) :
Hong Kong A (120) (259)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI RIS 7,097 (19,565)
Withholding tax Bk 224 (58)
7,201 (19,882)
Deferred tax (Note 26) BERTE (B it26) (13,776) (6,175)
475,675 152,141

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
has paid a withholding tax of HK$10,314,000 (2013: nil)
regarding the dividend received from a Taiwan subsidiary.
Under the Rule of Law of Taiwan, a 20% withholding tax is
imposed on dividends paid to a non-resident.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company are exempted
from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting from
their first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction
for the next three years. The preferential tax exemptions and
reduction were expired in December 2012.

FRNGRIRBEMESFE 2 G ER
i MIR16.5% 2 T KT E -

RIBHEARAMBEEEMRFHL ([1R%
FSTOE]) REEMEREZERRA &
BEBARZHEA _—TENF—A—H
HR25% °

HE-_Z——F+ZA=1+—HIEFE"
REERKRE GENB QA 2K EH
MIEM 10,314,000 L (Z T —=4F:
) BIEREEE BNIERREER
R20% 2 FEIOFL ©

BEREEBEERRER AARZET
FEEAR A EEERNFEEREERF
BRMMTBRDEMRSH MER =F%&
BF¥ER-HERCEEENR T —=F
+ZAEIH-
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to the
preferential tax treatment for Western Development Policy
(the “WDP Policy”). The applicable reduced preferential
Enterprise Income Tax rate under the WDP Policy is 15% for
an effective period up to 2020.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

12. Fi88 X H (#)
AARZEFHANBLRGEREDA
BB ECE ([ABABBEE]) TARWE
BHoRBE-T-TFE I AN BIEE
BAFBBEER 2 SR BEC LG
R AB15%

B R 2 BB YR M FUAE
ZRTBEHE -

FAZHERXEGESBRahEME2mEmiK
R AR AR A A 2 $IER 0T

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Profit before tax B 58 A1 g Al 2,190,316 766,749
Tax at PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of  JAR B (> ¥ FT 185 K25%
25% (2012: 25%) (note) TE—TF:25%)
AEZRIE () 547,579 191,687
Tax effect of share of profits of associates  J& (kB & 2 al3% 5| 2
HBze (22,903) (38,728)
Tax effect of share of losses of N = P
joint ventures Ms e 65 -
Tax effect of expenses that are not FA S TE JE FR B 5 ) BE 1 A
deductible in determining taxable profit MMz HBBETE 80,114 48,615
Tax effect of income that are not taxable in 75 & & 2% 54 3 FII 65 3 78
determining taxable profit A ZIMAZ B E (56,052) (50,260)
Under(over)provision in prior years BAEFERETE (B8) 7,201 (19,882)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZBBEEZ
MBTE 28,306 40,302
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRI R IER 2 T IB 8
recognised (32,534) (310)
Income tax on concessionary rate REENEFTEZMER (98,519) (19,888)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E M ELEER KL 2
operating in other jurisdictions MBARTRME 2 FE (2,220) (6,800)
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings &% Bt & | 2 FE i 22,194 5,078
Others Hity 2,444 2,327
Tax expense for the year REFMBZ N 475,675 152,141

note: The Group’s major operating subsidiaries are located in the

PRC and accordingly, income tax rate of 25% is adopted.

B AEEZ EBEEMBATSCREE
B bt 57 F25% 2 FF 18 B 3 -



BREREBERAT
2013 F3§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &% —ZF

13. DIVIDENDS

The 20183 final dividend of HK11.5 cents (2012: HK4.5
cents) per ordinary and preference share, totalling
approximately HK$435,847,000 (2012: HK$170,549,000)
has been proposed by the Directors to be payable to
ordinary and preference shareholders and is subject to
approval by the ordinary shareholders in the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

The 2012 final dividend of HK4.5 cents (2012: 2011
final dividend of HK7.5 cents) and 2013 interim dividend
of HK1.6 cents (2012: nil) per ordinary and preference
share, totalling approximately HK$231,188,000 (2012:
HK$284,248,000) was recognised as distribution during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The 2013 preferred distribution to convertible preference
shareholders totalling approximately HK$24,256,000 (2012:
HK$24,222,000) was also recognised as distribution during
the year ended 31 December 2013.

ORI HREM s
—SEFZAZH—AILEE

13. R B

EEOEHER ﬁ@ﬁiﬁ&%&%?ﬁﬁiﬁ&ﬁ»f&
BT -—FREAREERTBRREE
AR 11,57 1l (:;f:¢:4.5;%ﬂh> :
4BEEH) BA35,847,0008 L (— T — —4F
170,549,000/ 7T ) - WAF T BIRRER
FEERFRAF ARG L ER  HaEE-

N E_E—=F+-_A=+—HLHF
CARNFEHRAR-_T—_FKH
REEREARLRELERISBW (=
—F - —FRHARBT.5E
1m>&:%—5¢qﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁiﬂ%%ﬁﬁi
REEBRIGEW(ZTE—ZF &) 4
% #)5231,188,0008 L (=T — = F :
284,248,000/ 7T ) °

;m%

T

H
|

RBEZE_ZEZ—=Ff+-A=+—BLLF
B ARARNMEER-_ZT—=ZFEBEHK
T A B 5t AR IR SR 4B B 4924,256,0007%8
JL (=& — —4F 1 24,222,000/ T ) °
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BIREF|
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share KRB ANEBLEEBRERREERFTY
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BIEUTEIRTE

following data:

Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings AUGHESREARBERAZER
per share
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET
Profit for the year attributable to owners of A2 A A A FE{S
the Company A i A 1,674,569 610,000
Less: Preferred distribution to convertible & : 18 %t 7 Jk T ] & i
preference shareholders EERRRR (24,256) (24,222)
Undistributed earnings attributed to AT e E R E(E 2
convertible preference shares R IR & T (215,253) (97,468)
1,435,060 488,310
Number of shares gl 4=
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
‘000 ‘000
T F A%
Weighted average number of ATESREARRESET
ordinary shares in issue FrRzE#TERK
for the purposes of basic and hnAEF g

diluted earnings per share 3,295,643 3,295,641
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z T —=F+-HA=+—HIF/E

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not

assume the following:

() the exercise of the Company’s outstanding options
because the exercise price of those options was higher
than the average market price for the corresponding

year;

(i) the exercise of the outstanding warrants because the
exercise price of those warrants was higher than the

average market price for the corresponding year; and

(i) the conversion of the outstanding convertible
preference shares because their exercise would result in

an increase in earnings per share.

14. 5REF (&)

AAESRESRNELELTERR:

(i

(ii)

TTERRBEARITEZBRE (BR
HRAFEAZEBEREZTEESR
FHHE)

TTERRITE 2 RAEE (HRAERH
FEANZSRBBEEZTEESNF
BmE) &

RBERTEZATEBRELER (AR
HITRHEHERANIEN) -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ %

"BERRE

Cement Leasehold Furniture,
plant land and fixtures
and office Plant and and office Motor Construction
facilities building ~ machinery  equipment vehicles Lighters  in progress Total
Bi-#E8
KER HELH BER RBAE
REfE RELZEEP B B} AE 2 hEIR 8y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL FAT FHL TR Fi#n TR Ti#n
COST OR VALUATION RASGE
At 1 January 2012 R-F--4-F—-H 5,933,917 39,000 11,355,521 82,986 204,800 7,731 961,383 18,585,338
Additions RE 9,404 - 32,434 4,352 15,073 - 1,032,767 1,004,030
Avising on acquisition of subsidiaries WM BAABEE 17,551 - 132,297 1,892 3,585 - - 155,325
Reclassified as assets held for sale ENABARELEZEE
(Note 31) (H31) (51,040) - (35,911) (1,156) - - - (88,107)
Written off/disposals Wi/ e (2,539) - (16,658) (2,590) (10,089) - 81) (30,907)
Transfers E 630,061 - 789,573 3,896 19,329 - (1,442,859) -
Surplus on revaluation BERH - 7,000 - - - - - 7,000
Exchange adjustments EHAE 56,094 - 104,891 972 2,278 - 4,447 168,682
At 31 December 2012 WZZ-Z5+ZA=+-H 6,593,448 46,000 12,363,147 90,352 235,026 7,731 565,657 19,891,361
Additions RE 60,508 - 31,288 5,562 9,918 - 302,229 409,505
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WEBHBARBEL 219,426 - 153,840 1,051 7,919 - 655,257 1,037,493
Written off/disposals /e (1,008) - (7,317) (4,074) (1,488) - - (13,887)
Transfers it 612,417 - 358,119 10,216 10,825 - (991,577) -
Surplus on revaluation EHEH - 2,000 - - - - - 2,000
Exchange adjustments EH 228,560 - 416,827 3,586 8,295 - 23,202 680,470
At 31 December 2013 BW=B-Zf+-A=1-8 7,713,351 48,000 13,315,904 106,693 270,495 7,731 544768 22,006,942
Comprising: BfE:
At cost RAE 7,713,351 - 13,315,904 106,693 270,495 7,731 544,768 21,958,942
At valuation 2013 RZZ-Z%{E - 48,000 - - - - - 48,000
7,713,351 48,000 13,315,904 106,693 270,495 7,731 544768 22,006,942
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RAHERAE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2012 R-E--5-8-H 561,706 - 2,060,980 37,430 52,616 7,653 - 2,720,385
Provided for the year REERE 199,502 434 752,342 10,142 43,158 - - 1,005,578
Elimination on revaluation BiERH - (434) - - - - - (434)
Reclassified as assets held for sale ENABARELEZEE
(Note 31) (Hit31) (29,071) - (17,784) (1,156) - - - (48,011)
Elimination on written off/disposals s/ LR (616) - (6,013) (2,152) (8,560) - - (17,341)
Exchange adjustments ERHE 8,745 - 26,903 613 1,099 - - 37,360
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z%+ZA=1+-H 740,266 - 2,816,428 44,877 88,313 7,653 - 3,697,537
Provided for the year RERRE 221385 770 784,806 14,827 39,388 - - 1,061,175
Elimination on revaluation EGpaks - (770) - - - - - (770)
Impairment loss recognised in the year ~ AEE R BB BER 46,137 - 7,560 - - - 5,122 58,819
Elimination on written off/disposals W/ LERE (1,008) - (4,216) (3,748) (1,480) - - (10,452)
Exchange adjustments EiBRE 32,590 - 116,412 2,366 3,444 - 84 154,896
At 31 December 2013 RZB-ZF+ZA=1+-8 1,039,370 - 3,720,989 58,322 129,665 7,653 5,206 4,961,205
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=f+-B=1-H 6,673,981 48,000 9,594,915 48,371 140,830 78 539,562 17,045,737
At 31 December 2012 WZE-ZF+=Zf=+-H 5,853,182 46,000 9,546,719 45,475 146,713 78 565,657 16,193,824
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or fair value
of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress), less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
Cement plant and facilities 30 years

Leasehold land and Over the unexpired term

office building of lease
Plant and machinery 15 years
Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Lighters 10 years

The leasehold land and office building is situated in Hong
Kong under long term leases and was revalued on 31
December 2013 at HK$48,000,000 (2012: HK$46,000,000)
by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent firm
of qualified professional valuers, at open market value on
existing use basis. The resulting surplus arising from the
revaluation at 31 December 2013 of HK$2,770,000 (2012:
HK$7,434,000) was dealt with in the land and building
revaluation reserve. Had there not been any revaluation of
this property, its carrying amount at cost less accumulated
depreciation at 31 December 2013 would be HK$1,370,000
(2012: HK$1,406,000).

15. % -BERRKRE 2)

NEESREME BFELRE (ERTERE
SM)IEB TR A AER - EHIRGEIEE
(A& - ERERETEAMBERA
HNFEPARANIE AT AFEROT

KR 2 5% s 30%F
HMEL R

MAREF R KK E W F
T 55 Ko 1 2% 15%F
TR -EER

MAERME 5
E 5Z104F
B 104F

BYGERBEMEMITHIBITHER
RARZE—=F+_A=+—HHAX
FREABANUNBESZHE T
EMAERF RARERE 2 AMM
B &= 14 /48,000,000 0 (ZE—=F:
46,000,000 L) - RZE—=F+= A
=t —-BZEMHER2,770,000% 7T
—ET—Z4%:7,434,000 L) ' ER L
Hh 2 4 F A A R IR o i 0 S T k)
E¥EHANER RZTE—=F+=A
=t+—BZRAREAERRTINEEK A
1,370,000 70 ( ZZF — 4 : 1,406,000/
JT) °

i
]
-
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% MERRE &)

(Continued)

The fair value of the leasehold land and office building was
determined on the direct comparison approach. There had
been no change from the valuation technique used in prior
year. The fair value is assessed by reference to the recent
transactions of similar properties in the neighbourhood with
no significant adjustments to the observable inputs (i.e.
recent transaction price) and the fair value measurement
is categorised in Level 2. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, their current use equates to the highest and best
use. There have been no transfers into or out of Level 3

during the year.

The management reviews the valuations performed by
the independent valuers for financial reporting purposes
and reports to the audit committee the valuation process
and result of the valuation at least every six months, in
line with the Group’s interim and annual reporting dates.
The management will also verify all major inputs to the
independent valuation report, assess the property valuation
movements when compared to the prior year valuation

report and hold discussions with the independent valuers.

During the year, the management conducted a review of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment and determined
that a number of those assets were impaired, due to the
management’s plan to suspend the usage and continuous
development of these assets. In particular, the management
determined to discontinue the use of certain port facilities
located in one of its cement manufacturing plants at
Jurong in the PRC and the suspension of the construction
project of a railway line adjacent to one of the Group’s
cement manufacturing plants located at Yingde in the PRC.
These assets are used in the Group’s manufacture and
distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder segment.
Full impairment loss of HK$58,819,000 (2012: nil) has been
recognised for these assets as the estimated recoverable
amounts of these assets, if any, are minimal. The impairment
losses have been included in profit or loss in the “other

income, gains and losses” line item.

HET RPN EF A FEDRAEEL
BAEE N E—FERAZGERMNE
BEEMEH - ATFEDLENTREAE
WUME 2 TER 5 F T B EE a8
REAYE (AT HARZE)ELHEKRH
B MAFEFTEDEAE MR- NEZ
EMEZATER DEZRAERERNK
B RERERR - NAFE AL EE A LE
HE=4

EREERNB L EEMAYERRMAET
ZhE YELBAREA (FaXAKEZH
HRFEREA AERZE@REM
BERRAEER EEENHZEEL
fBEREZABEERBAER FHEEE
FREERESALEZYREEZSH LA
SR EEETT A

AEERN ERBHAEEME BER
REETRN ETETEECRERE
B EEERAREEERZEEAETRA
B-LH BREREFACLAFEQR
He—fXRRERE 2 & T80 RER
BE— N R REAREEE R —E
KERERE 2 HEREEEE - ZEE
EARMERSHERAEEZKE 2R
BEN DXL BHRZEEE 2
WE&RE(ME)EM BEAZTEERR
2 30 (B B51858,819,0008 L (=T —=
Fo/E) ZRBEEBEBERIETHMK
A WERkEEl —BZEEAN -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16.

(Continued)

In addition, as a result of the suspension of a construction
project of a railway line adjacent to one of the Group’s
cement manufacturing plants located at Yingde in the PRC,
the Group wrote off the corresponding non-refundable
deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment for that project amounting to HK$38,005,000
(2012:nil) during the year.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15. % -BERRKRE 2)

UEoN R E I — RO R EE A —
AP EREKERERE 2 HEKEE
RIEE  ANEE D AT E R MR E
MHEEEZ2WE BERJBHEZ L 2TA
RiE R $ £ 538,005,000 T (ZFE—=
Fom|) o

16. FEFHHERE

2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET

Leasehold land in the PRC 32 7 R B LA R B AR 4Y
Medium-term leases HE 2z 1,934,809 1,866,750

Analysed for reporting purposes as: ATEEmAE

Non-current portion E R ) 1,882,811 1,817,385
Current portion b %) 51,998 49,365
1,934,809 1,866,750
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17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Customer Computer
Goodwill base software Total
me EFER BB Y my
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAET TAET TAT FAT
COoST 2%
At 1 January 2012 W-_ZE——F—H—H 6,332,792 83,886 26,526 6,443,204
Arising on acquisition of WERBARRES
subsidiaries 264,972 - 1,016 265,988
Additions NE - - 6,508 6,508
Written off /i - - (24) (24)
Exchange adjustments BEE 3¢, 38 - - 286 286
At 31 December 2012 W_ZE——F+-A=+—H 6,597,764 83,886 34,312 6,715,962
Arising on acquisition of W B ARREE
subsidiaries 166,436 - 816 167,252
Additions NE - - 19,691 19,691
Written off 88 - - (202) (202)
Exchange adjustments ME o 7% 263,298 - 1,441 264,739
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=%+=-A=+—-H 7,027,498 83,886 56,058 7,167,442
AMORTISATION AND e RO E
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2012 wW-_Z——%—F—H 3,722,639 60,781 12,219 3,795,639
Charge for the year REE# 5 - 17,329 4,461 21,790
Elimination on written off 85 3 - - (16) (16)
Exchange adjustments BEE 5, 38 B - - 144 144
At 31 December 2012 RZZ—=—F+=-A=+—H 3,722,639 78,110 16,808 3,817,557
Charge for the year REE# 5 - 5,776 5,487 11,263
Elimination on written off 1 88 R 85 - - (202) (202)
Exchange adjustments BEE 5, 38 158,410 - 626 159,036
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE-=%+=-HA=+—-H 3,881,049 83,886 22,719 3,987,654
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZE-=%F+=-H=+—H 3,146,449 - 33,339 3,179,788
At 31 December 2012 RZZ—=F+-FA=+—H 2875125 5,776 17,604 2,898,405
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. B EE (&)

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. Particulars EENSTFETHERNR A ERER
regarding its impairment testing are disclosed in Note 18. Al HAFBERMF1IsHE-FTEEMELE
other intangible assets are amortised over their estimated EREMAARFEFHRRNNERERUTF
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the following TG

rates per annum:

Customer base 33.3% %3}5 = 33.3%
Computer software 20% DG 20%
IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE 18. B & E R E R =
ASSETS
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from MBEAAMS  EBaMMEELEZEE
business combinations has been allocated to the following PESRETIRSELEUNREESE
CGUs or groups of CGUs: B AR -
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
Upper Value Investments Limited Upper Value Investments
Limited 1,861,287 1,797,652
TCC (Guigang) Cement Ltd. Ak (BH)KE
BRAF 822,160 794,052
Kong On Cement Holdings Limited BRIKRERBERA 19,066 18,449
Mining Industrial Companies (note) BEIRERA( /f/fuf) 273,589 264,972
Luzhou Companies (as defined in Note 23) &N A &
(& & 201 5123) 165,183 -
Anshun Xin Tai Construction Materials ZIEZEEMBEHBR
Company Limited* (“Anshun Xin Tai”) ANE([ZIEEE]) 5,164 -
3,146,449 2,875,125
* For identification purpose * EHRER
note: During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group Kt B2_F——F+-_A=+—HLFE"
acquired the entire equity interest of TCC Jiangsu Mining AEEDWED BN AT SBRAE
Industrial Company Limited, TCC Guigang Mining Industrial ZIMARBETIRERARAR EB6R
Company Limited and TCC Yingde Mining Industrial BETREERAAIMREGRBELR
Company Limited which locate in Jiangsu, Guigang and BRAR (HEER]) 22 I
Yingde respectively (collectively referred to as “Chien BREEFAZEEERIREEM =K
Kuo”). The goodwill arising from acquisition of Chien Kuo is FRERDHKE AR RIEEN 2 &M
allocated to each of the other three subsidiaries engaged in WEAR ([REIEQA]) -

the manufacture and distribution of cement and clinker and
slag powder (“Mining Industrial Companies”).
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18. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE

ASSETS (continuea)

All of these CGUs or groups of CGUs are operating under
the segment “Manufacturing and distribution of cement,
clinker and slag powder”. During the year ended 31
December 2013, management of the Group determines that
there is no impairment of any of its CGUs or groups of CGUs

containing goodwill.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGUs or
groups of CGUs and its major underlying assumptions are

summarised below:

The recoverable amount of these CGUs or groups of CGUs
have been determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections covering a
5-year period, based on financial budgets approved by
management and a discount rate of 8.22% — 13.07% (2012:
9.12%) per annum. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated with zero growth rate. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market

development.

BRrEaERERNR @)

rAEZERsELENAREELEN
MRIE R TRIER D KR 208 kRS
MIDEHTRE-BE_FT—=F1+_H
=t HUEFE AEEEEERS HE
THEAREzReELENRRSESL
BS i 48 Bl 3R RUE -

taReELBUSRSEEEMERNZ
o] Yo ol SRR 2 B N H T B RE
LINE

ZEReELSBNIREELESBNHERZ
T%@ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%f@?%ﬁ&?

cZETE A IAERRIEEIREMLER
EHERF M BEEARTFR22%E
13.07% (=T —ZF:9.12% ) 2 HE(E
AREREEN - RAFH 2B ZEASR
ENRTHEREHRE -AMEM[ARESR
AN/ RERE 2 EREBEFEREZZEE
BEBEEEHEREN ZEHTT0R
BRZEMBERBREEEBHEMSER
ZEREMmIEL -
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19. MINING RIGHTS 19. IRTERE
HK$’000
FAET

COST R A
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZE——F—F—H 454,465
Additions NE 15,298
Exchange adjustments R S 3,819
At 31 December 2012 R—E——F+=-_A=+—H 473,582
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WEMB AR REE 13,350
Additions NE 44,300
Exchange adjustments PE W 582 16,370
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE-—=%+=ZHA=+—H 547,602
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT e R RE
At 1 January 2012 N-—E—-——E=—H—H 47,832
Charge for the year EINCIEE: Eit 24,004
Exchange adjustments PE R & 583
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-_A=+—H 72,419
Charge for the year PGSR 30,713
Exchange adjustments PE X & 2,840
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZE—=%F+=ZHA=+—H 105,972
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31 December 2013 R-E-—=5+=-A=+—H 441,630
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-RA=+—H 401,163

The mining rights are amortised using the straight-line

method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives

ranging from 3 to 30 years.

REETDABGZERE G A ERFEHN
F3E304F A5 EL A A 5 o
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20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20.BE N TR
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Cost of investments in unlisted associates ~ 3F E & QA R]Z
BEKA 1,268,977 1,142,821
Share of post-acquisition profits, FEIH IR 1R 2 m A &
and other comprehensive income, H ity 2 T U ek
net of dividend income (0B BB WA 442,650 394,186
1,711,627 1,537,007
These associates are strategic partnership for the Group, ZEBME N AAEEESEERPEE
providing access to new customers and markets in Hong EME2HEP REAZEMETIS 2K
Kong and specific region in the PRC. BE S 1ER -
Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 December RZE—=FR_F——F+-_A=+—
2013 and 2012 are as follows: B AEEz TEBMERRFEHINNT
Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interest
Name of associate and operation and voting power held Principal activity
= i B S B BEREaER
BERNAARE EE MR FrisRERELL B FEEK
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
Baoshan Kungang & The PRC 30% 30% Manufacture and
K. Wah Cement a3 distribution of
Construction cement and clinker
Materials Co. Ltd. L& N0 KR R AR
R B s E KR
BHMERRAA
Hong Kong Concrete Hong Kong 31.5% 31.5% Production and
Company Limited &5 distribution of
BILRETBR AR ready-mixed concrete

EENDHEHERT
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20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Name of associate

Place of
incorporation

and operation

Proportion of
ownership interest

and voting power held

ORI HREM s

HE—F—=F+_A=+—HIFE

20. B E NE R (&)

Principal activity

=R 3L B BEERER
BENTEE EEMR FERRELH FEER
2013 2012
=2—=F .

Prosperity Conch The PRC 25% 25% Manufacture and
Cement Company H distribution of
Limited cement and clinker
(“Prosperity Conch”) B35 K o3 S5k e R BVEL

REEGBICREREE
nAE ([REREZ])

Quon Hing Concrete Hong Kong 50% 50% Production and
Company Limited &8 distribution of

BEDRE T BRAF ready-mixed concrete

FERDHEHRR L

Yunnan Kungang & The PRC 30% 30% Manufacture and
K. Wah Cement H distribution of
Construction cement and clinker
Materials Co. Ltd. BUE & o $HIKOR R AVE

EMEMBEEKE
EMERRAA

Sichuan Taichang The PRC 30% - Manufacture and
Building Material H distribution of

Group Company
Limited”

M EEREMEE
BRAF

*

For identification purpose

*

[EXGE %l

cement and clinker

B T 5 97K BBk
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20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements, after taking into account
the fair value adjustments upon acquisition, prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

20. B¢ E NE R (&)

AEEEBZMERNR ZHBERBEES
IR e TOIM B EMBETVIRBE B
BREENRR B E R RMBRRAT
TE KR RRRBR 2 AFEAR-

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity FrEZEH & N R ER A VIS RER A
method in these consolidated financial statements. mEARR
Prosperity Conch REGZ
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Current assets A E 2,142,808 2,116,652
Non-current assets ERMEBEE 2,193,350 2,167,424
Current liabilities MBBE (476,133) (822,784)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (192,000) (248,000)
Revenue W= 2,200,597 1,980,087
Profit and total comprehensive income FEE I &
for the year PHEW B 360,466 295,246
Dividends received from the associate 7 Z U EY
during the year A NCI N 122,020 -

Exchange differences of HK$94,267,000 (2012:
HK$22,067,000) arising on translation of interests in
Prosperity Conch to presentation currency of the Group for
the year is recognised in other comprehensive income of the

Group.

RAFEBRERBEIBRZEZAAEE
I EWES 2 E X E594,267,0007% 7T
—ZT——4F:22,067,0008 L) RANEE
ZHAEE AR
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20. & QN EI R (#)

Prosperity Conch (Continued) HEEER(EF)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LB ERBERGE M B HREAER
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate ZEEATRSRESEYHERENT
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHT
Net assets of the Prosperity Conch REBBRZEEFR 3,668,025 3,213,292
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBREEEGE
interest in Prosperity Conch EEEZ 2L 25% 25%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest REFERREGIE
in Prosperity Conch HEZ RS 917,006 803,323

Aggregate information of associates that are not

individually material

FERHNERBERT 2BTESR

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
The Group’s share of profit for the year REBERF E @ T 1,496 81,098
The Group’s share of other A& G E A
comprehensive income 2HE W E (477) 6,784
The Group’s share of total AEBGEE2E
comprehensive income Wk Haza 1,019 87,882
Aggregate carrying amount of REERZLBERAIZ
the Group’s interests Ly e T
in these associates 794,621 733,684

Exchange differences of HK$19,846,000 (2012:
HK$4,469,000) arising on translation of interests in

associates, that are not individually material, to presentation

currency of the Group for the year is recognised in other

comprehensive income of the Group.

RAFEREZEIFBERNER 2B E QT
2%/\*\@&%15!@%%52@5%%@
19,846,000/ 7T ( —ZF — Z 4 : 4,469,000
;%m)ﬁé$%l2ﬁmiwﬁzﬁmﬁm
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21.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

1. 8 NAER

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHT

Cost of investments in unlisted FLEMEERA
joint ventures ZIWE KA 12,400 21,700
Share of other comprehensive income FEAG Efh 2T W 400 -
12,800 21,700

Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 December 2013
and 2012 are as follows:

RZIE—=FR_T——-F+_A=+—
B AEBALARZHBEHMNWT :

Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interest
Name of joint venture and operation and voting power held Principal activity
BEEER
REQRER EM A K E R KRR EEL A FTEXK
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—-—F
Anshun Xin Tai The PRC * 50% Manufacture and
ZIEE & A distribution of sand
and gravel aggregate
products
RERDEVABTHE®
BZESEMABR AR The PRC 50% 50% Manufacture and
= distribution of sand

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has
further acquired 50% interest in Anshun Xin Tai and Anshun
Xin Tai became the wholly-owned subsidiary upon completion

of the acquisition. Details are disclosed in Note 38.

and gravel aggregate
products (not yet
commenced
business)
SERDHEY ATHE®D
(RARFRER)

*OBECE-=F+-A=+—BLFE
W AEEEERIESEA50%Es @ )8
ECEERBTREARREEMBRR -
BT PH FE38H B o
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21.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 1. 58 NTFHEE (#)
All of these joint ventures are accounted for using the equity FiB#ZESE AR EEE MEmMER AR
method in these consolidated financial statements. AR
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not FEREAZEENRIZERER
individually material
2013 2012
—E—=F —FT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
The Group’s share of loss and total AEBEEFEEER
comprehensive expenses of the year PEMAS B (261) -

22.

Exchange differences of HK$621,000 (2012: nil) arising

on translation of interests in joint ventures, that are not

individually material, to presentation currency of the Group

for the year is recognised in other comprehensive income of

RAFEREZFHRERNERAZAEERF
CRRAAEEZRYERELZER Z5
621,000 L (ZE—ZF :E)RAEH
Z E 2 U R AR

the Group.
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 2. Hitt e mEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Long term deposits 828 828
Refundable deposits from REFBEBATENY 2
PRC government sectors 104,970 87,375

105,798 88,203
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22. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Refundable deposits from PRC government sectors of
RMB82,008,000 (2012: RMB70,464,000) (equivalent
to HK$104,970,000 (2012: HK$87,375,000)) which are
unsecured, will mature in 2014 to 2018 and carry variable
interest rate with reference to the benchmark loan rates of

financial institutions set by the People’s Bank of China. Long

term deposits are non-interest bearing.

2. HtEMEE (@)
REFBEBRFHPFIZARERE AR
#82,008,000Tt (Z T —Z—F : AR¥
70,464,0007T) (#8E 7104,970,000% 7T
(ZZ— —%:87,375,0008 70) ) B &K
B BRI NFE-T-N\FHEH I
2ERBARBITHHE 2 © B HE A
ERFERFHINEAE -REFRRE

Boe

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23. A ERE
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FET
Unlisted equity securities, at cost JEETARARE FH - LA 58,265 1,213,528
Less: Impairment losses recognised B BEHERZREEE (13,072) -
45,193 1,213,528
Non-current portion JERENEB 45,193 614,167
Current portion mEE D - 599,361
45,193 1,213,528
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)

The above unlisted investments represent investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in Hong Kong and Taiwan (2012: Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan). They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably. As at 31 December 20183,
accumulated impairment losses of available-for-sale
investments related to unlisted investments in Taiwan is
HK$13,072,000 (2012: nil), which is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount exceeded the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current

market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

As at 31 December 2012, included in the available-
for-sale investments are HK$1,153,777,000 (2013:
nil) being the carrying amount of the investments in
majority interests in several cement, clinker and concrete
manufacturing companies in the southwestern region of
the PRC (collectively as the “Manufacturing Companies”)
under Scitus Cement (China) Holdings Limited (“Scitus
Cement”). The acquisition of approximately 97.94% of
the issued share capital of Scitus Cement was satisfied
by a cash consideration of US$130,210,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,011,732,000) together with the
assignment of shareholders’ loan of HK$541,283,000
and by the Company’s issuance of 45,000,000 unlisted
warrants. The Group acquired assets and liabilities of
HK$1,573,364,000 and the net cash outflow arising on the
acquisition of Scitus Cement is HK$1,276,530,000.

2. EERE (&)

FiEFTREARRENBERAE (=
T——F:FF HEERRE) FMKLZ
FRABBABITZHFLITRATS KE
RMERAREKANBRRET = AEE
ZAFEMTHERK WEFRAER
FETEASZFE-R_T—=F+=A
=t+—H FEARAEZFLETREZA
HEERE 2 R5HREEE 213,072,000
B (ZE—ZF:8&) LHREEER
HIRAC S B A & 2 R T5 B R IR
ZEFRKRER BB BT INE

27
e

R-ZTE——F+-_A=+—8 "t =
REBREREZKE(FEERERR
A (TEEKR]) B TRHAHHENFTEAR
[ 2 KE - VR ORI T RS AR (5
BRIBERR D ZRZHERZRELZ
ARE{E1,153,777,0008 L (Z T — = :
M) o W BIEKIRLI97.94% 2 B BT
ATy % B3R 4 K {8130,210,000% 7T (18
Z R #1,011,732,000% 7T ) i [ 8 & %
5§ 74541,283,0000% 7T & A A A Al 81T
45,000,00017 Ik F MR AR HE B X AT o R &
B U E 2 EE R AER1,573,364,000% 7T
R EEENKEMEEZRSRLFER
1,276,530,000/%8 JT °
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 3. AHEERE (&)

(Continued)

On 183 February 2012, the Group received copies of
arbitration notices issued by China International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission dated 10 February
2012 together with the relevant arbitration applications in
respect of certain pre-emptive rights held by non-controlling
shareholders in the Manufacturing Companies under the
relevant joint venture agreements (the “Arbitration”). The
Group had obtained legal advice on completion of the
acquisition and its legal ownership of Scitus Cement and its

direct and indirect investee companies.

Since the completion of the acquisition of Scitus Cement on
6 January 2012 and till 31 December 2012, the Group has
not yet obtained effective control over the Manufacturing
Companies as the non-controlling shareholders and
management of the Manufacturing Companies have not
yet allowed the representatives of the Group to access the
office of the Manufacturing Companies, and have not yet
handed over the company chops, the books and records
as well as other relevant documents of the Manufacturing
Companies. Without such access of the company chops
and the books and records, the Group has not yet effectively
obtained control of the Manufacturing Companies. Hence,
the Manufacturing Companies were not considered to
be subsidiaries of the Company and therefore they were
accounted for as available-for-sale investments as at 31
December 2012. Accordingly, the financial statements of the
Manufacturing Companies had not been consolidated into
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

RZFE-—ZFZA+=H KAEERKIH
Il@#&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁééﬁﬂi?ﬁ*:ﬁ
ZATBEAZMEBAMK  ERIFE
ERRRIRIBEARE S EHENRER AR
BETELABEREBMERE ([
) AEBEH TR BWEERSEKERE
HERBEBEREERARNREACHEE
WS EEER -

BR-ZZE——F—AXNBEXKEEEK
REREZE_T——_F+A=+—H &
EEMARGREAR ZEREHE R
EARSENRZIEERBRREREEEER
BEAEERKREANRERRZWER  TF
EXERENRZARNE - RS R
UA R EAth AR B SO o FEI N AN ENGE: - BR K
Rz BRAT REBKREERISR
ERR G L AR B RBE AR
BERAWABARRNTRIZHBRARMRZE
—ZHF+ZA=1+—H8 REHEIIEH
HERERIE AL - HERRZHB|MEK
WERETAAEBHE T ——F+=
A=+ —BILFEZEEMBERE-
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

During the year, the following events have taken place:

On 3 January 20183, the Company entered into a framework

agreement with Southwest Cement Company Limited

(“Southwest Cement”), an independent third party, and

further entered into certain definitive agreements between

the subsidiaries of the Company and subsidiaries of

Southwest Cement in February 2013, under which the

subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to:

sale of the Group’s entire equity interests in six
Manufacturing Companies, including 100% equity
interests in Scitus Cement (Guizhou) Operating Co.,
Ltd, 90% equity interests in each of Zunyi Scitus
Cement Co., Ltd, Scitus Xishui Cement Co., Ltd, and
Scitus Bijie Cement Co., Ltd., 75% equity interest
in Guizhou Zunyi Ken On Concrete Co., Ltd. and
70% equity interests in Scitus Bijie Concrete Ltd.
(collectively “Guizhou Companies”), to a subsidiary of
Southwest Cement together with the assignment of the
shareholder’s loans of approximately HK$273.6 million
at a total consideration of RMB813.8 million (equivalent

to approximately HK$1,009.1 million); and

purchase of remaining interests in four Manufacturing
Companies, including 10% equity interests in each of
Scitus Naxi Cement Co., Ltd., Scitus Luzhou Cement
Co., Ltd. and Scitus Hejiang Cement Co., Ltd. and 25%
equity interests in Scitus Luzhou Concrete Co., Ltd.
(collectively “Luzhou Companies”), from a subsidiary
of Southwest Cement at a consideration of RMB53.0

million (equivalent to approximately HK$67.0 million).

A= EIE T
BE-—T—=FF-FA=+—HIFE

2. EERE (&)

REAR BHREATNEE:

R-E—=F—A=R ARRIEBFIE
=HEEAKRERAR ([FEEAR])ETZ
—DERGE RARBZMEARERA
MAKEZHBARIN -_E—=F_A—
FRIE T REWH - B ARB 2B
NABERE:

MEEKEZ —FEHBARLER
EER A HBEERRZZEHRE
BEREBEEKE(BMNEBEBERR
7] 2100% 0% 4 LA e 70 38 2 B 1= KR
BRATF - BKEERKEARAR R
EHBEEKXEERAASHEZ290%
BRE RENBEEELRETAR
NEZT5%MHE R P 8 8 B 2R
TERRBZ70%KE (ZER A
ZBAIEMAR]) EREEY
273,600,000/ 7T 2 R E K - R (E
A AR 813,800,000 (HERL
1,009,100,000/87T) : &

B PRk — I E A KE R
MERENR 2GR BERE
MRREBEIRBER AR EIMNERE
KEEBR AR R&GIEEKERR
NAEIE B Z10%8 R EMNEER
LT ABRRAAZ25%#E (ZE QT
mEMalEMAR]) REAARK
53,000,0007t (48 % 7 467,000,000
BIT) °
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 3. AHEERE (&)

(Continued)

At the end of March 2013, the Group and non-controlling
shareholders of the Manufacturing Companies have agreed
to withdraw the Arbitration and the representatives of the
Group were allowed to access the office and the factories
of the Luzhou Companies, and have obtained the company
chops, the books and records as well as the relevant
documents of the Luzhou Companies. Also, the Group has
completed all the regulatory registration procedures and
obtained effective control over the Luzhou Companies.
Upon exercise of control over the Luzhou Companies, the
Group has accounted for such transaction using acquisition
method in accordance with HKFRS 3. The financial results
of Luzhou Companies have been consolidated in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements since the date the
Group obtained effective control. The assets and liabilities
of Luzhou Companies the date of acquisition have been

disclosed in Note 38.

In addition, subsequent to obtaining control over Luzhou
Companies, the Group has further acquired the remaining
interests of each of the Luzhou Companies from a subsidiary
of Southwest Cement at a consideration of RMB53.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$67.0 million) during the year
ended 31 December 2013. The Group has completed all
the regulatory registration procedures for these transactions,
and as a result, these Luzhou Companies became the
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. The
difference between the consideration and the carrying
value of non-controlling interests in Luzhou Companies
attributable to the additional interests acquired amounting
to approximately HK$22.1 million was recognised directly in
equity and attributable to the owners of the Company. As at
31 December 2013, the remaining balance of consideration
payable of RMB8.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$10.2 million) is included in other payables and accrued

liabilities.

R-FB-—=F=ZAK AEEREERF
ZIHEBEERERBRHEMR N AEEZ
RREEENEMNRRMAER T I
EEFEMN AR 2 A RENE  BRE R
ARBEX - NEBIE XA ETE
BLFEMRSEMNAR 2 EREHI#E-
REGEMAR 2 H#E ~EEER
EEABMBREENEIRABERZEN
WA AR - BAKRERGEMNARIZE
Rzl E AR RV BEECWEATR
AREB 2 GZAPBHEHRERRA BN 2ER
WEBHZEERBED NI E38HE -

BESN - RERSIE N A B Z i 54tk - REIE
—E-ZF+ZAZ+-RALEFER K
SEEE—LRAREKEZ —HHTE AR
WESENARZFHGgERZ REAAR
#53,000,0007T (48 % 7 967,000,000/
) AEEETRZERI B ETE
RFE AL ZEBEMABKARARZ
FME2ENE AT - REETKEREIINE
mATEEMN AR IR = 2 BREE 2
2 ZF84922,100,0007 TTE B R AN A A
BENEBEEZER - R_T—=F+=
A=+—B ERNREBEZHABRBARE
8,000,0007T (48 % 7 £910,200,000/% 7T )
B ARMBEMNKIERESAEE-
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
sold its entire equity interests in Guizhou Companies with
carrying amount of HK$599.4 million at the date of disposal,
to a subsidiary of Southwest Cement together with the
assignment of the shareholder loans of approximately
HK$273.6 million at a total consideration of RMB813.8
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,009.1 million).
Accordingly, a gain on disposal of these available-for-sale
investments amounting to approximately HK$136.1 million
was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2013. As at 31 December 2013, the remaining
balance of consideration receivable of HK$201.8 million is

included in prepayment, deposits and other receivables.

In addition, on 3 January 2013, the Company entered
into a framework agreement with Southwest Cement,
under which a subsidiary of the Company has agreed
to purchase 2.06% of the issued share capital of Scitus
Cement at a consideration of RMB19.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$24.7 million) from an independent third
party. This transaction was completed in December 2013
and as a result, Scitus Cement became the indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The difference between
the consideration and the carrying value of non-controlling
interest of Scitus Cement attributable to the additional
interest acquired amounting to approximately HK$2.8
million was recognised directly in equity and attributable
to the owners of the Company. As at 31 December 2013,
the remaining balance of consideration payable of RMB6.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$7.6 million) is

included in other payables and accrued liabilities.

2. EERE (&)

REBEEZZ—=%F+ZA=+—HLHF
ERN AEERLEBHRATERKEZ
—HRBAREHEEREMNRAT ZEREE
8 /3599,400,0007% T 2 & &0 IR # - 3 [A)
8% 4)273,600,0008 L 2 RRE
#A(E B AREES13,800,0007T (HHF R
#71,009,100,000% 7T) - At - R E =
2=+ _A=Z=+t—HLEFER"
HERSEAHEEREZKEEEAOR
136,100,000 T iEm P HER - N =F
—=Ff+ZA=+—A8 EBRAREZFH%
£#R%8201,800,000/%8 7T B 5F ATETRRIA - 12
@ N E fth FE R IE -

o - RZE—=F—HA=8 KARQ AR
F/KRRT AR R a% - BR Ut AR A2 —fA
Mg AR REUKREAR19,500,000
JL (B R 424,700,000 L) A — %
BUBR=-FBEBEBKEEEITIREAZ
2.06%  ZRHERZE—=F+THA%
B RELBEKERABRNARZHEES
BN A o X 1B BT IR BB HME R PTG
BEKRIERER 2 REBE LM ERE
#)2,800,000%8 TLE BN A A RIEHE A
EREEER-R_T—=F+=-_A=+—
H - ERRE 2 FererEE A K6,000,000
7 (#8552 497,600,000 70) B 51 A H 4
ERRERESTAE-
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM INVESTEE
COMPANIES

24 R IR E N A FRIE

2013 2012

—E-—=F —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FHET

Non-current portion ERBE - 144,075
Current portion (Note 28) BN EB D (M7 it28) - 271,991
- 416,066

Amounts due from investee companies were amounts due
from the Manufacturing Companies, which were unsecured,
repayable on demand and carries interest at the range of

7%-8.76% per annum.

As disclosed in Note 23, during the year, the Group had
entered into a framework agreement with an independent
third party to sell the equity interest in Guizhou Companies.
Pursuant to the framework agreement, amounts due from
these Guizhou Companies were also assigned to the

relevant buyer upon the completion of the transaction.

FEUW 1% E N R FIB BB E QR
T SRR AEIRT REREERIZE
M E7%-8.76%5t B °

AN E23AIREE - NFA - AEEE E—
EBUB=RA L —DERDHE NLE
REIMN AR Z BAE - RIFHER 755 - FEUGZ
ZEMNRRZHIBATENR 5T EE
THEED -
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25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/TIME

DEPOSITS/CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, which carry interest at market interest

rates.

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates
which range from 0.01% to 3.05% (2012: 0.01% to 4.75%)
per annum. The pledged bank deposits and time deposits
carry interest at fixed rate ranging from 0.15% to 3.85%
(2012: 0.01% to 3.85%) per annum. Pledged bank deposits
represented deposits made to banks for general banking
facilities or as performance guarantee in relation to certain
sales or purchases contracts. The pledged bank deposits
will be released upon the settlement of relevant bank loans

or the completion of relevant sales and purchase contracts.

Majority of the cash and bank balances were denominated
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The RMB exchange rate is determined
by the Government of the PRC and the remittance of these
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions

imposed by the Government of the PRC.

25. EEBBITEREHER

RERBRITER
ReRBITEBEEALEREZ RS R
RA={AA %5 =10 A BT 5
K82 EHRTER -

RITHAMRILERTHNENFEF0.01%
£3.05% (ZZE—ZF:0.01%%4.75% )
FAE-BEARITERREREFHIZEE
FENTEFF015%E3.85% (=T — =
#F:0.01%%£3.85% )5t B - B R RITTF
HR—RETHREFERIREEETE
BENZBHAERMARITEL ZFXK
BEERRITFEIEREERBRITERK
THREBEES NEERR-

REh 2B e RBITEHKARNAREF
B MARETAIRBEREMS EEREE-
ARBEXRHDERFEE  MxERE
B th A B3R HNE X P BB B 2 SME IR
1 T AR PR o
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26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)

recognised by the Group and the movements thereon during

the year.

26 EEBEEE 8K
UTAAREMRRY T EREHELE
(BE) RRAER R 2B -

Fair value Withholding
adjustments  Accelerated  Revaluation  Revaluation tax on
on business tax  of land and of mining  undistributed
combinations  depreciation buildings rights earnings Others Total
BRERAH mE TR KABER
ZATERE RERE BFEfR HRERER BB Hit @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET TiEn TR TR Tt T FiE
At 1 January 2012 W-E--%-A-H (290,743) (84) (17,645) (4,302) (44,332) (159) (357,265)
Credit (charge) to profitor loss ~ RERBHA (k)
for the year (Note 12) (Bis12) 12,202 (39) 743 359 (5,078) 2,012) 6,175
Withholding tax paid BRENH - - - - 2,000 347 2,347
Avrising on acquisition of YWENBARRES
subsidiaries (3,926) - - - - (2,468) (6,394)
Charge to other REMZERENG
comprehensive income - - 1,293 - - - 1,293
Exchange adjustments ERAE - - (64) (34) - 4 (102)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+ZA=+—-H  (282,467) (123) (15,679) (3,977) (47,410) (4,296) (353,946)
Credit (charge) to profitor loss ~ RERBEFA (1K)
for the year (Note 12) (frz12) 9,033 28,669 744 367 (22,194) (2,843) 18,776
Withholding tax paid BRENH - - - - 14,037 725 14,762
Arising on acquisition of WENRBARREE
subsidiaries 8,044 - - - - - 8,044
Credit to other REMEZEREA
comprehensive income - - (356) - - - (356)
Exchange adjustments ERRAE (8,734) 469 (247) (122) - 3 (8,631)
At 31 December 2013 RZ-ZF+-A=+-H (273524 29,015 (15,532) (3,732) (55,567) (6,411) (325,751)
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26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)
The analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purposes is as follows:

26. EIERIBEE BE (&)

EM B ERAB ZBELEHIBL LD T A
T

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—-_F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET TAET

Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEAE (365,298) (354,812)
Deferred tax assets EAERIBEE 39,547 866
(325,751) (353,946)

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$240,924,000
(2012: HK$240,678,000) available for offset against
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. As at 31 December
2012, tax losses brought forward from prior years of
approximately HK$4,555,000 (2013:nil) had been expired
in that year. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely except the losses of approximately
HK$174,381,000 (2012: HK$172,983,000) that will expire at

various dates up to 2018.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC companies from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$4,454,686,000 (2012:
HK$2,620,781,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

REE 7 B IE B4 /240,924,000 7T

—ZT— =% :240,678,000& ) * A] AR
HE 85 R 2R B AR B A o B R R 2R g I SRR
BLATER AW ER i EBIERERIET
MEEE-R_T——-F+-A=+—8"
VAR 1T 4 2 45 88 2 T 78 /&5 18 494,555,000
B (ZE—Z=ZF:-®8)ERZFERE
o B #9174,381,0008 T (ZF — =4 -
172,983,000 L) 2 BB REZ =T
—NFRIZZEBHERI  RHERRIE
BRI R

BEPBRCEMSHE #SHPBEAFE
T NF-A—ABRAMEFMEIRZ
Ik BB TE T - B A K B A B 1
TREEELD mMEREBERAULTER
ARG R P BB AR BitiE
FI FE A 2 5 2= BE 494,454,686,0007% 7T
(ZZ—=%:2,620,781,000/ 7T ) I R
HAEVBBRERNIELBEEHBEE-
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27.

28.

B 5 SR R B 5E

EE-SFT A=t AR

INVENTORIES 27. 78
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Raw materials and consumables BB K 5 S 839,005 725,967
Work in progress £ & i 183,850 228,409
Finished goods X oo 262,658 244,037
1,285,513 1,198,413
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28. AN RIE - HERHMEURNKIE
RECEIVABLES
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Prepayments TE IR 662,938 332,117
Deposits we 180,937 174,606
Loan receivables (note a) FEWE R (Kita) 27,541 409,408
Amount due from an associate (note b) JFE U — [ B & R R RIR
(Ketpb) 58,001 84,132
Amounts due from investee companies FE W W 1% & N B FE
(Note 24) (Hi5t24) - 271,991
Dividend receivables from associates JE Wi B 5 B BR B 41,975 206,785
Value-added tax recoverable AT U [B] 42 (F X 85,914 182,018
Amounts due from joint ventures (note ¢)  FEU A & D FFIE
(Kete) 8,640 9,920
Consideration receivable for disposal of BHEETHLERER
available-for-sale investments (Note 23) FEW 2 RAE (f13223) 201,828 -
Other receivables (note d) H b & WOSRIA (7 atd ) 155,047 249,649
1,422,821 1,920,626
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28. A FIE - RE R HEMERR
RECEIVABLES (continued) (%)

notes: Biat -

(a) Loan receivables are non-interest bearing, unsecured and (a) EWERA®S  EIEE RN EE KK

repayable within one year based on agreed repayment terms.

Included in the carrying amount of loan receivables as at
31 December 2013 is accumulated impairment loss of
HK$94,455,000 (2012:nil). The management has monitored
the repayment of these loan receivables and assessed the
recoverability of these balances regularly to determine the
impairment losses. The management determined that for those
balances overdue more than one year which are generally not
recoverable, full provision of these balances will be made.
During the year, the Group has recognised impairment losses
in an amount of HK$94,455,000 (2012:nil) in respect of loan

receivables that have been overdue for more than one year.

R—FRNEE

R-B—=%F+-_A=+—8 #AE
WEREEHBEZXED 25t REBRE
94,455,000 L (ZF——_F :8\) - B
[ B B a2 5 B 3R 2 S8 SR E AT A
ZE gz AT O AR R E SR B
BERE NZSOH—FUF—REZX
el 2 ek AEE 2R AHERE - AFE
W AEBERBH—FUEZERKRER
T3 R 1B 5 1894,455,0008 L (=T — =
Fm)

(b) Amount due from an associate is unsecured, repayable within (b) MREW—MEEERRREAEER AR —
one year and carries interest with reference to the benchmark FAEEBR2EHEARRITAGEZ S
loan rates of financial institutions set by The People’s Bank of B B E B A K5 B o
China.

()  Amounts due from joint ventures are non-interest bearing, () EBUEERAIREARE EBEMARNE
unsecured and repayable on demand. Tﬁ-irféfi o

(d) During the year, the Group recognised impairment losses in (d) RAFERN - AEEDHHE M ERGRIERE

respect of other receivables of HK$9,062,000 (2012:nil).

RO B E5189,062,000/ 7T (T — 4 :
&) -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. EWWE SR
2013 2012
—E =4 —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade receivables from outsiders EUWINREAN T 2B G ER 4,009,796 2,368,917

Trade receivable from an associate R —EBE R E

B HEX 23,080 11,153
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W RIEIREAE (7,514) -
4,025,362 2,380,070
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29. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 2. BIWEB Z RN (&)

The Group’s policy is to allow a credit period of 90 — 180
days to its trade customers (including the associate). The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful debts, based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period:

AEERRERGETEESEP (BEBE
NAE)IOE180H 2 BREEH - LA T AR E
HREWE SRR (NBR RIBRAEHE) 12%
ERMBZRERD

2013 2012

—EB—=F —E——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT TAET

0 - 90 days 0Z90H 2,367,324 1,798,870
91 — 180 days 912180H 1,586,781 549,095
181 — 365 days 181£365H 71,257 32,105
4,025,362 2,380,070

Before accepting any new customers with credit limit, the
Group assesses the historical background and credibility
which are available in the market. The credit limit will be
reference to the result of research and will be reviewed once

a year.

At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables of
approximately HK$30,579,000 (2012: HK$20,324,000)
which have been aged within 181 — 365 days and past due
as at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss because management
is of the opinion that the fundamental credit quality of
these customers has not deteriorated. Hence, there is no
expectation of significant recoverability problem. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RERTFAABRERBZATFA A
SEEFMELERRTETAREZE
RKF -BRIERBEKSBMRNEREER

HETFRM— K-

REEHR BEREBESERD A
30,579,000 L (=% — = F:
20,324,0007 7T ) & BR B2 70 F-181£365H
PN 7 R 45 B R B 48 BR 1B 7N &8 B0 SR 3R 3%
EREELREBERE LARER
BRAZEEPZEAEEERLET
o At FBAS P g HIRE REIUR MR E
AEBWERZEEMRFEETMERR -
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29. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

20. ERE Z R (&)

—EEFZAZF—AILEE

EE A REEZ R E 5 R 2R

impaired
2013 2012
—EB—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FABT
0 - 90 days 02 90H 8,771 3,519
91 - 180 days 91%180H 9,889 16,805
181 — 365 days 1812 365H 11,919 -
30,579 20,324
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERREZ2D
2013 2012
—F-=F —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Balance at beginning of year REF ) = -
Allowance for doubtful debts E’\‘Téfmﬂqﬁﬁ
recognised in profit and loss RIEREE 7,514 -
Balance at end of year RERE % 7,514 -

The Group will provide fully for any receivables aged
over 365 days because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond 365 days are generally

not recoverable.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties

and customers.

7N £ 8 % ph BR #C 8 38365 B 2 {7 B ISR
EEERE RARREELER
81 HA B 18365 B 2 FE W 3R — AR 19 R MK

O] o

SETEEAETZEER
DHRHAZXRZEUTREP -

% HER
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30.

31.

B %5 3R R Y 5
HE-F—=#+-A=+—AUFE

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

0.BEXZHAEB2RE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, REB LM ZBRAEZS
at market value BmiE 39,330 38,578
Quoted investment funds, at fair value BEEEES HATE 9,957 10,559
49,287 49,137

The fair values of the held-for-trading investments are
determined based on the quoted market bid prices
available on the relevant exchanges or prices provided by
counterparty financial institutions. The quoted investment
funds can be disposed of at the prices provided by the

counterparty financial institutions on a regular basis.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
The wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, TCC
Cement Corporation, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the Buyer to dispose of its property, plant
and equipment in December 2011. Pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement, the legal title of the property,
plant and equipment is transferred to the Buyer upon (i) the
receipt of consideration of US$13.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$105.3 million) in full by December 2013;
and (i) completion of the transaction contemplated under
another agreement entered into by the associate of the
Company’s ultimate holding company and the Buyer for
disposal of a piece of land which is held by the associate
of the Company’s ultimate holding company. As at 31
December 2012, the relevant assets was classified as asset
held for sale with carrying amount of HK$40,096,000 and
deposit received from the buyer of US$7.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$55,671,000) was included in the other
payables and accrued liabilities. During the year ended 31
December 2013, a gain on disposal of HK$69,291,000 is

recognised in profit or loss upon completion of the disposal.

31.

N ERFER B Rm 2 REZ R FETIRE
HARZMAHRzmZEAEBRE TS/
HEMER EREE-AEREESH
EHTeRMETHRH 2 EREE-

PEABEHEZEE

RZE——F+ A ARAZ2ENER
A]TCC Cement Corporationf2 B 55137 B
BEiE WHEEWE BB R&E - RE
BEEME VE - BRERRXEZEEMA
BERON=ZF—=F+ = ApBEMEmR
1€18,500,0003 7T (#8E H 49105,300,000
B % RINTERAR B HEZERA A
ZHERNRHEEAREE —RBAAR A&
RIERARIZEE AR E 2 LMl
ZE—MIHEETRETIRSEER
EEH- RN -_E——-F+-_A=+—8"
HEEEW Y BEARIELEZEE AR
[ {8 440,096,000/ 7T R BB B H 2 &
©7,000,0003 7T (#8& 7 4955,671,000/%
TRt ARMENRIEREFBE HEZ
T—=F+ZA=+—HLEFE REE
FEAK B - & U 5 269,291,0007% T T

BRANER -
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32. TRADE PAYABLES 2. BEHEZ RN

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT FHET

Trade payables to outsiders ERINAANLTZE SRR 1,175,175 896,973
Trade payables to ultimate ERBEERARIZES

holding company AR 3K 20,198 41,725
Trade payables to fellow subsidiaries ERRRMBRARIZES

BRI 79,207 32,510

1,274,580 971,208

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on

UTRRBERRZENESRFTIRER

the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: HERZBREC AT
2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
0 - 90 days 0&90H 1,209,174 919,309
91 - 180 days 91£180H 30,788 25,380
181 — 365 days 1812365H 9,559 9,250
Over 365 days 365H A £ 25,059 17,269
1,274,580 971,208

The trade balances due to ultimate holding company and

the fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and

repayable in accordance with normal trading terms.

ENRERERABLRARNBEARZE
RHRAEER R RAREFTES K “:’5’\

B

fE-
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33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED

B HMENREREGFERS

LIABILITIES
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Construction cost payables FERT R AR 635,975 683,560
Deposits and receipts in RERP ke RFEWHK
advance from customers 376,620 371,652
Retention moneys B8 17 I8 66,903 82,983
Other taxes payables E b fE S R IE 173,925 74,586
Deposits received for assets held for sale  FHELEEEZE WG &
(Note 31) (K7:£31) = 55,671
Preferred distribution payables to FEA AT BB AR IR R 2
convertible preference shareholders BEDIK 14,202 14,168
Payables for land use rights and T A R ERIERE 2
mining rights J& - IR 9,600 9,300
Consideration payables for the acquisition — UHE I8 2 &) KBt & A &)
of additional interests in subsidiaries and BIMEZR Z FERRE
associates 31,003 -
Expenses accrual JEST S 236,522 188,086
Other payables Hofth JE T3R8 211,742 123,691
1,756,492 1,603,697
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34. BANK LOANS 34.8B1TER
2013 2012
—E_=4F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Secured A 241,827 2,112,138
Unsecured LTI 12,510,903 12,180,953
12,752,730 14,293,091
The loans are repayable as follows: BEERBANT
Within one year R—FA 5,752,612 4,924,279
More than one year but not exceeding BB —FENHBAMSF
two years 4,158,255 3,483,441
More than two years but not exceeding FRIE M FE N EB R F
five years 2,841,863 5,885,371
12,752,730 14,293,091
Less: Amounts due for settlement within AR —FARNERZ
one year (shown under current FRIB (BRI
liabilities) BEET) (5,752,612) (4,924,279)
Amounts due for settlement after one year 7B —F14EE 2 38 7,000,118 9,368,812
The Group’s bank loans that are denominated in currencies AEBULEBEBREENREBUIINZE
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group BT EZRITERED
entities are set out below:
2013 2012
—E-—= —E—-_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong Dollars BT 454,760 511,447
United States Dollars ETT 5,845,098 9,076,452

All bank loans of the Group are variable-rate loans which
carry interest with reference to Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”), London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
and benchmark loan rates of financial institutions set by The
People’s Bank of China.

AEBZAERTERRTBHEXTER
T2 EEBRITRAERE ([BERTAE
HED) BBERTAERFE ([RBERTTH
EHRE) RPBARRITAGE < & B

BEEERMEGE -
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34.

35.

BANK LOANS (continued)
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the

following undrawn borrowing facilities:

34.

BITER (&)
REBEEFR AEEES T M RER Y
BEEE

2013 2012
—E—=f —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET

Floating rate FEE K
— expiring within one year —-RN—FRNEMm 3,122,784 2,594,487
— expiring beyond one year —R—FRBEW 16,000 128,000
3,138,784 2,722,487

The Group had secured bank borrowings of approximately
HK$241.8 million (2012: HK$2,112.1 million) which are
secured by fixed charges of certain assets of the Group,
including property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease

payments and mining rights.

AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder was
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the non-
controlling shareholder agreed to release certain obligations
arising from the acquisition of the relevant subsidiaries
from this non-controlling shareholder in previous years.
Accordingly, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
HK$53,262,000 was written off and recognised as income in
profit or loss in 2012. During the year ended 31 December
2013, the non-controlling shareholder agreed to waive the
current account due to the non-controlling shareholder
upon the deregistration of a non-wholly owned subsidiary.
Accordingly, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
HK$13,730,000 was written off and recognised as income in

profit or loss in 20183.

35.

NEBEHB B EARITEEL241,800,000
BT (ZZ——%:2,112,100,000/8 L) °
ZEERBTEEUAEEETEAEZRE
ERCEER BEYVE KELRE B
70 & AR IE R ER A o

e — R ERBRRKIEA

FER — (IR RIB R R B EE A
ERERBEE HE-_Z——F+=A
=+—HIEFE  ZFEERKRREZ#HR
PR F 2 B A B[R] 5% FF 15 AR AR 3R W B AR
BB AR 2 ETHRS - Bt S WEEN
— i FF £ AR A% 3R 3} 1853,262,000/4 7T 37 7
—E-—FEEARRABRA-BHEZZT
—=F+-A=1+—HFE ZFEEKR
R [F B 5 o P AT 5% FF 1B IR AR SR A RS R 1R
—BETEWMBRRZAKRE Bt E#M
$H FE A — iz FF 4% AR I% 3R K18 13,730,000/
TR -ZT—=FEINERAELA -
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AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amount due to immediate holding company is carrying
interest with reference to either HIBOR or LIBOR plus a
spread, unsecured and the amount as at 31 December 2013
will be repayable on 17 December 2015. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the Group has early repaid the
balance as at 31 December 2012 which shall be repaid on
30 December 2014.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

WARRANTS

On 6 January 2012, 45,000,000 unlisted warrants of
the Company were issued to the vendors as part of
the consideration for the acquisition of Scitus Cement
and its fair value at the date of acquisition amounted
to HK$20,349,000. The warrants carried the rights to
subscribe for up to a maximum of 45,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at the subscription price of HK$6
per warrant, subject to adjustments. The warrants can be
exercised at any time during the three-year period from
the date of issue (both days inclusive). The fair value of
the warrants at the date of acquisition is calculated using
Black Scholes pricing model with major inputs including (i)
expected volatility of 51.01%; (i) risk-free rate of 0.614%;
and (iii) expected dividend yield of 2.01%.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, none (2012:
none) of the warrants have been exercised and the
fair value of the warrants as at 31 December 2013
amounted to HK$5,780,000 (2012: HK$6,669,000).
Accordingly, a decrease in fair value of HK$889,000 (2012:
HK$13,680,000) was recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of the warrants as at 31 December 2013 is calculated
using Black-Scholes pricing model with major inputs
including (i) expected volatility of 42.18% (2012: 59.01%);
(iiy risk-free rate of 0.234% (2012: 0.123%); (iii) expected
dividend yield of 2.45% (2012: 2.01%) and (iv) share price of
HK$3.80 per share (2012: HK$2.22 per share).

36.

37.

ORI EREM s
—EEFZAZF—AILEE

BAEBZER A RIKIE
ENEBERARREBALERBRITH
ERSIMBBITRERBMBEFT L
EEREAR _T—=F+-_A=+—HZ
HEBR-_ZE—RAF+_A+tHEE-
REBEE=ZZT—=F+=_A=+—HLF
EALSEEREEEN-_Z——-F+=
A=+—Bz2&% MZEBRERZ-Z
—ME+-_A=+tRHEE-

TTEESMIAE-RARESR

R-Z——%F— 758 45,000,00017 7%
NRFLTRBREBSETTER EANK

BEEKEZHFORE HRKBEZA

F 1B %20,349,00078 7t © 7% 5 R I 2 b
BREFAIZREESHRREEE T (7]
F 9% ) R B i %£45,000,0000% AN A &)

AL - AR RE TN BT H BT = F 1
F(EEREREMA)ABERTTE - BRE

FBRWE A 2 A FETRBM D7 —&F
RITEEEXNGTE ZEAZEEZHAH
EEENTETRE51.01% : (i) & K F =
0.614% : K (i)FEFT A% 2. %2.01% °

REEZZT—=F+ZA=+—HLHF
EHE( 2 ——F \)RREEET
F-mMRZE—=F+A=+—HRRK
HEZ A FEA5,780,0008 T (= F—=
£ : 6,669,000/ 7T ) ° A I - 889,000/ 7T
—Z— —%:13,680,000/% L) 2 A F &
WOENBEBER - BRREBZR =T —=
F+ZA=+—BHZRAFENKRABED
F-HRNETERRGE ZEXZEE
BB B IS ()TEET K 1842.18%
— 4 :59.01% ) : (i) [ & F £0.234%
—T——F:0.123%) : (ii)EFHRE =X
245% (ZF—ZF:2.01%) : &(v)IRE
BR3.80BIT (Z T ——F: §R2.22/
TT) °

—7
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. KWEBME L F

For the year ended 31 December 2013

In order to enlarge the market share in the PRC, the Group
completed the acquisitions of Luzhou Companies during the
year ended 31 December 2013. As detailed in Note 23, the
Group obtained effective control over the Luzhou Companies
on 31 March 2013 which are engaged in manufacture and

distribution of cement, clinker and concrete.

In order to enhance the operating efficiency, the Group
acquired additional 50% equity interest in its joint venture
in September 2013, Anshun Xin Tai from another joint
venturer. Anshun Xin Tai is engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of sand and gravel aggregate products. The

cash consideration paid was approximately HK$14,605,000.

Both acquisitions have been accounted for using the
acquisition method. The amount of goodwill arising as
a result of the acquisitions of Luzhou Companies and
Anshun Xin Tai were approximately HK$161,313,000 and
HK$5,123,000 respectively.

Acquisition related costs amounting to approximately
HK$1,344,000 have been excluded from the cost of
acquisition and have been recognised as an expense in
the year and included in the “general and administrative
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

BE-_Z—=F+=-H=+—HLEFE
RBEAHEMSGHE FEEREE_T
— =+ A=t HLEFEERKKBE
MR B o tAM F23FT st il REB R =
T—=F=-A=+—HERBEMNARZE
BRI BN A B I R RE R K
T B ROBRE L o

RRESEENRER AKER
= fE

llﬁﬁAZ%ﬁﬁl\So%Hﬂié o [
DHEWABHER BNIRE
14,605,000}%77:0

MIBWES S RARBEAR - BB E
MARRLZIBERELEZHBEEY BN
#%161,313,000/% 7T £25,123,000/8 JT °

F N WA BB AR R BUA91,344,000% 7T
W R EF AWK AR - T F R R
XUt AGFeaEa kA 2EERRZ
[—REITBFAXIBEBEAR-
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued)

The net assets acquired in the transactions, and the goodwiill

38. WM BT (&)
BE-_Z—=F+Z-HA=+—HLEE

(%)

—EEFZAZF—AILEE

RZEXZFHRARBZEEFERELZ

arising, are as follows: [EES U
Luzhou Anshun
Companies Xin Tai Total
EMN AT ZIEE A g
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER N 999,297 38,196 1,037,493
Prepaid lease payments B E B8 60,318 - 60,318
Intangible assets BEEE 816 - 816
Mining rights RIERE 13,350 - 13,350
Deposits paid for the acquisition of ~ FtUEEWE  BE K& & &
property, plant and equipment HMmBEESN i &
and other assets 43,811 46 43,857
Deferred tax assets FERIBEE 9,393 - 9,393
1,126,985 38,242 1,165,227
Current assets RBEE
Inventories & 20,960 167 21,127
Prepaid lease payments B HEERE 746 - 746
Prepayments, deposits and H/TAIE e REH A EU
other receivables (note) POE (K17F) 126,641 2,550 129,191
Trade receivables (note) FEH&E%EE (Btet) 18,455 - 18,455
Cash and bank balances Be MBITES 43,486 273 43,759
210,288 2,990 213,278
Current liabilities mEBEE
Trade payables BB ZER 48,132 254 48,386
Other payables and accrued Hip B RIBREBE
liabilities 220,037 12,075 232,112
Loan payables e B % 627,929 10,160 638,089
896,098 22,489 918,587
Non-current liabilities EkREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBEE 749 - 749
440,426 18,743 459,169
note: The trade and other receivables acquired with an aggregate Bt - BEESAAT(E /R32,717,00078 7T 2 FEI

fair value of HK$32,717,000 have gross contractual amounts
of HK$32,717,000. The best estimate at acquisition date of
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected was nil.

BHRRREMERFIAZ BETHNERE
/332,717,000 7T » THE RN AT U [Bl 2 B 5T
HRERENPBERZZERERS -
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea) 38.WIBME A |l (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued)

Fair value of equity interest held as at acquisition date
The fair value of Luzhou Companies, a group of unlisted
companies, was estimated by an independent and
professionally qualified valuer using present value
techniques. The fair value is determined using income
approach based on expected cash flows generated by
the Luzhou Companies. The calculation uses cash flow
projection of Luzhou Companies from the perspective of
market participants, covering a 5-year period at a discount
rate of 12.58% - 13.07% per annum. Cash flows beyond
5-year period are extrapolated with 3% growth rate. Other
key assumptions for the expected cash flows related to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include expected
sales and gross profit margin. Cash flows and discounts
rate reflect assumptions that market participants could use
when pricing the relevant equity interest. No material gain
or loss is recognised as the fair value, determined based on
the present value techniques, approximates their carrying
amount at the date of acquisition.

The fair value of Anshun Xin Tai, an unlisted company,
was estimated by the management using present value
techniques. The fair value is determined using income
approach based on expected cash flows generated
by the Anshun Xin Tai. The calculation uses cash flow
projection of Anshun Xin Tai from the perspective of market
participants, covering a 5-year period a discount rate of
9.12% per annum. Cash flows beyond 5-year period are
extrapolated with zero growth rate. Other key assumptions
for the expected cash flows related to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include expected sales and
gross profit margin. Cash flows and discounts rate reflect
assumptions that market participants could use when
pricing the relevant equity interest. No material gain or
loss is recognised as the fair value, determined based on
the present value techniques, approximates their carrying

amount at the date of acquisition.

BE-Z-—=F+-HA=Z=+—HLFE
(#)

RKBEABHEZRELFE

— LT ARBEMNRRZATFETIHE
VEESERGEMEARBERMEE -
REFEDNRBEEMNARMEELE 2 BHR
ERMERAWAEETE T EHAEM
REIATIG2MEAEIRE F12.58%%
13.07% 2 FHRERBZRELFH RS
HETA - NAFHZBRZEESTELI%
ZEREEEH - EHRERECHMEE
BRERESRA/ HEGEE (BEBEH
EREFR)EA -ReMERITHERM
M2 HEENEER @RI ER 2 BB
AER 2B - BRATE (RRERIME
E)EERKERASZRMERS  HE
BREAWE=NERE-

—FELTRARRIEZEE ZAFEIHE
EEERARERMGEE A FEDRER
e mEL 2 RMR S RERBEAE
BE At BRATIEEEAMS2EE
ARESFI12% 2 TREXFERIRER
FHZAEREFAHN REFH KRR
ERERTEREREH - EHRREAREL
Ht T Z2RJERS RN/ REEE (B2
REEHEREMNR)EH R RENRT
RERRRMIGLEENETEBRAER
ZEREAERZBR ARAFE (RHR
BERER) RERNWE B B2 REEM
M ERERE AR S EE -
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Non-controlling interest

The non-controlling interests in Luzhou Companies
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38. WM BT (&)
BE-Z—=F+=-H=+—HLEE

(&)
HERE

BN B U S B B RR 2 SRR R AR T

recognised at the acquisition date was measured with K2ESEENARRNKEBRZEES

reference to the proportionate share of the Luzhou

Companies’ net assets at the acquisition date and JT°
amounted to approximately HK$47,323,000.

B2t 2 H &% E 447,323,000

Goodwill arising on acquisition KEEEELEZHE
Luzhou Anshun
Companies Xin Tai Total
EMN AT ZIEEZA HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET T
Consideration paid BENRE - 14,605 14,605
Fair value of previously equity BEHLERE/
interest held as available-for-sale —FAEERRERL
investments/interest in a FRIRE 2 AT E
joint venture 554,416 9,261 563,677
Plus: non-controlling interests IRk 47,323 - 47,323
Less: Fair value of identifiable net  J&i : B YR BE Al 7 5 4 B F (B
assets acquired ZAYE (440,426) (18,743) (459,169)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEBEEEZHE 161,313 5,123 166,436

Net cash inflow (outflow) arising on acquisition

WIBEERELZHETRA (i) FHE

Luzhou Anshun
Companies Xin Tai Total
EM AT ZIEZA o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TET
Cash consideration BeRE - (14,605) (14,605)
Less: Cash and bank balances W BEREBcRER
acquired IRITHE R 43,486 273 43,759
Net cash inflow (outflow) WEEEEEZES (RAN)
arising on acquisition o F R 43,486 (14,332) 29,154
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. WHBHI B AR (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) BE-ZE—=F+-A=1+—HLEFE
(#&)

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Luzhou Companies
and Anshun Xin Tai because the cost of the combination
included a control premium. In addition, the consideration
paid for the combination effectively included amounts in
relation to expected synergies, revenue growth, future
market development and the assembled workforce for
Luzhou Companies and Anshun Xin Tai. These benefits are
not recognised separately from goodwill because they do
not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible

assets.

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group
During the year ended 31 December 2013, Luzhou
Companies and Anshun Xin Tai contributed approximately
HK$258,416,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss of
approximately HK$55,575,000 to the Group’s results in
aggregate for the period from the date of acquisition to 31
December 2013.

If the acquisition of Luzhou Companies and Anshun Xin
Tai had been completed on 1 January 2013, there would
be insignificant effect on the Group’s revenue and profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2013, nor is it intended to be a projection of

future results.

& Gf S B 15 12 il M i B - B U R B M
RARLZIBZREELEE - WIHN REHX
NZREER LERBERBRHRMREZ

TR WEER RKTHER - A REM
RAEAIRZIEEE ZKESS N -HRNZF
NMEATEA BB EEZ ERIRE
B L B oy R R

KBBEH A EFEECEE

BE-T—=—F+-_AA=+—ALFE
N BEMNARIRZIEEEN BB RERE
—E-ZHF+-AZ+—RILHEALE
E U =5 B B £9258,416,00008 T & A& A&
KB RETRERS H455,575,000%

77:0

WP EEMNARIRZIEZERER T —=
F-—A—HBHEX T@HHAE_T—=F
TZAZ+T-—HLEFEAEEZ KR
RARBEEANBERAEXNERLE -5
ZEMTERTA B WARER UK
BEBEEOR-_Z—=F—A—AxKK"
AEEERENG WEREEXEEIE
BRI RIERRIREZ 2 FEA -
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

In order to enhance the operation efficiency, the Group
completed the acquisition of the entire equity interests of
Chien Kuo in March 2012. The Group acquired the entire
equity interests of Chien Kuo, which are engaged in the
provision of limestone quarrying services to support some
of the Group’s existing subsidiaries in the PRC, from an
independent third party. The cash consideration paid
amounted to NTD1,600,000,000 together with working
capital consideration amounted to RMB64,786,000, in
aggregate equivalent to approximately HK$506,322,000.

This acquisition has been accounted for using the
acquisition method. The amount of goodwill arising
as a result of the acquisition was approximately
HK$264,972,000.

Acquisition related costs amounting to approximately
HK$2,685,000 have been excluded from the cost of
acquisition and have been recognised as an expense in
2012, and included in the “general and administrative
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

ORI HREM s
—SEFZAZH—AILEE

38. WM BT (&)

BE-ZE-—-F+-HA=Z=+—HLFE
RRALERER AEBR_T—Z_F=
AxklEER s 2H0RE-NEEF
—BBUE=ZFREER 2 BRE
ZARRHPBEAAEEETHRANE R
ARHARARRERE ENRERER
¥ & #1,600,000,000T EREEE S
KRB ARME4,786,00070 ' & HHER L
506,322,000/ 7T ©

WWBEKEERAWEEAR EAWESE
EEZEELTEL E264,972,000/8 T °

R-FE——F WEHEBEKEARED
2,685,000/8 LI REt AR AR kB
BRAR/MX L AZa B REMEE K
BSRZ [—REITBFEAX]EER-
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea) 38. WEBHI B 1 B) ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued) BE-E——-F+-A=+—HLEE
(#&)
The net assets acquired in the transactions, and the goodwill REZERXGHAREZEEFEREEZ
arising, are as follows: EEmT
Chien Kuo
#
HK$’000
FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 154,924
Intangible assets BEEE 1,010
155,934
Current assets REBEE
Inventories Ve 16,535
Prepayments, deposits and A e R E U ERIE
other receivables (note) (Hat) 6,893
Trade receivables (note) FEUNE 5 R (B75E) 42,093
Time deposits JE B 17 3K 15,990
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHE S 25,121
106,632
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables BB SR 14,082
Other payables and accrued liabilities Hith e sIERETEE 2,617
Tax payables eSS R IR 591
17,290
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAEE 3,926
241,350
note: The trade and other receivables acquired with an aggregate Biat: B S A F{E 8 5842,658,000/% T 2 &
fair value of HK$42,658,000 had gross contractual amounts W& 5K R E A EWRIE 2 BETR42
of HK$42,658,000. The best estimate at acquisition date of ¥8 542,658,000/ 7T o TEHAR AT U Rl 2 B

contractual cash flows not expected to be collected was nil. RS RNWERR REREAS -
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition

38. WM BT (&)

BE-_Z——-—F+=-A=+—HLEFE
(4&)
WHEEEEL ZEHE

Chien Kuo

2H

HK$’000

FHET

Consideration transferred EEERE 506,322
Less: Fair value of identifiable net W BWBR BRI EEREL A TE

assets acquired (241,350)

Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEBEEAZHE 264,972

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

WKIBERELZRZ ML FH

Chien Kuo
#ZE
HK$’000
THET

Cash consideration ReRE
Less: Cash and bank balances acquired

Deposit paid in prior year

B B 2 e MIRTT AR
EFENZA®

(506,322)
25,121
413,766

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

WHEEREL 2R T RHFE

(67,435)

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Chien Kuo because
the acquisition included the assembled workforce of Chien
Kuo and the benefit of expected synergies as at the date of
acquisition. These benefits were not recognised separately
from goodwill because they do not meet the recognition

criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

HRKBEEEERNEER B 2 KR
B OREMz RN WEEEZRE
EREB -ARZENETTE A BRI ET
BEZERSEE RUBRPHEDFER -
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. BB AR (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued) BE-E——-F+-A=+—HLEFE
(#&)
Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group WEBRH A EFFEZTE

Chien Kuo did not contribute significantly to the revenue
or results of the Group for the period from the date of
acquisition to 31 December 2012 as all revenue contributed
by Chien Kuo have been eliminated at consolidation. Chien
Kuo’s revenue and profit for the period from the date of
acquisition to 31 December 2012 before elimination was
HK$148,681,000 and HK$8,728,000 respectively.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2012,
there would be insignificant effect on the Group’s revenue
and profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2012. The pro forma information
was for illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2012, nor was it intended to

be a projection of future results.

HREEMERM 2B KEEREE R
BR R SRR EE A EERNEER
HRE-_T——_F+-_A=+—HIH
MW E EZEEHERER -Z2EARN
WHEBEBHREE —_T——F+_-_A=+—
H 1E B 2 s Ko A O 85 A1) 9 Bl =
148,681,000/% 7T &.8,728,000/% T °

HMEBEHEER-_T—=—F—A—H%
B rTeHHE—_T——_F+-A=+—
Eiiﬁ$%§2%ﬁ&$“ﬂ%ﬁAﬁ
ERAERNERTE - ﬁ%éﬂﬁ@f
A WARAMERMEEBEED R
——F—F—BERE AEEERER
BolmRkEEREEE NTIERIER
RIREE 28R -
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39. REA-EBR

Number of

ordinary shares

A= EIE T
BE-—T—=FF-FA=+—HIFE

ZEREAE
‘000 HK$’'000
T FET
Authorised: VETEIRUAS -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREEC10B Tz LRk
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 RZE-——%—A—H"
and 31 December 2013 —E-CF
+ZA=+—HK
—E-=F
+=A=+-A 5,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERRA:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRMEEI0E T2 & @A
At 1 January 2012 WZ_E——-%—F—H 3,295,635 329,564
Conversion of non-redeemable BN O] fE 0] ] 89 4
convertible preference shares (note) BB (H77) 8 1
At 31 December 2012 and RZZE—ZF+=A
31 December 2013 =t-BRZZ—=%
+=-A=+—8€ 3,295,643 329,565

note: During the year ended 31 December 2012, 8,000 (2013:

nil) ordinary shares had been allotted and issued to the

convertible preference shareholders of the Company upon

the conversion of the convertible preference shares. The new

shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all respects

with the existing shares in issue.

Wit

REBEE-_Z——F+A=+—HIF
[£ - R BB S R 1A B AR A R Al
BB 5 IR AR 5 BC 3% )2 %5 178,0008% (=
T-=F E)EBR-NFABETZ
FRORFBFEREETRERNE

CEET R
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40. SHARE CAPITAL - NON-REDEEMABLE 40. R4 — A o] FE B A 85 A 42 O R
CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (EER])
(“PREFERENCE SHARES”)
Number of
convertible
preference
shares
TERELERHA
‘000 HK$’000
TR FHET
Authorised: AR -
Preference shares of HK$0.10 each SREE0I0B T ZBER
At 1 January 2012, 31 December WZZE——F—H—H"
2012 and 31 December 2013 ZE—ZHF+ZA=t+-Bk
—E-=ZF+ZR=+—H 494,345 494,345
Issued and fully paid: BERETRARKRAE:
Preference shares of HK$0.10 each FREBECI0B T ZBER
At 1 January 2012 wWZZE——F—HA—H 494,342 49,434
Conversion of preference shares (note) EIRERR (A1) (8) (1)
At 31 December 2012 and R-F-——H+-A=t—8K
31 December 2013 —E-ZH+-HA=+—H 494,334 49,433

The preference shares are non-redeemable, carry no voting

right and each of the preference share is convertible into one

ordinary share any time after issue.

BEBRRAAER  THERER A8 —
P8 SE AL AT R B AT IR E I R P 88 8 — AR
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40. SHARE CAPITAL - NON-REDEEMABLE

CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES
(“PREFERENCE SHARES”) (continued)

The preference shareholders are entitled to receive dividend
pari passu with ordinary shareholders on an as converted
basis. In addition, they are also entitled to preferred
distribution at a rate of 1.0% per annum on the issue price,
at HK$4.9 per preference share, payable semi-annually in
arrears. The preferred distribution is non-cumulative. The
Directors may, in their sole discretion, elect to defer or not to
pay a preferred distribution. If the board of Directors elects
to defer or not to pay a preferred distribution, the Company
shall not pay any dividends, distributions or make any other

payment on any ordinary shares.

note: During the year ended 31 December 2012, 8,000 (2013: nil)
convertible preference shares had been converted into the
same number of ordinary shares by the subscription and the
exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the preference

shares.

ORI HREM s
—Z=FF A=+ —HILFE

40. RA — A A B B A B4R E St IR

(TMBER]) (&)

BARKRBEREIZE KA LR T ERR
REEARSERMWBEIMBR S LI KBE
NEREREITESRELRL.BITAGE
1.0% 2 L R WHBED IR BEDIREF
FHEARSEN - B DR RIE - EHA]
PREMBFTERLCEXTIRNEELEDIK i
EFeRBTRATINELED /)E'HIJZS
RABAZ M EA L BRZ MR

& SR 1 H A AT LA A 3K

Mt BEZT——F+-A=+—RALFE"
8,000 (=T — =4 : &) Al 8B L%
B AR RITEEERME 2 EBEM
EERABERSE 2Bk
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41. SHARE BASED PAYMENT MNUBROEAREZRS

TRANSACTIONS

Equity settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the Directors to grant
options to selected Eligible Persons as incentives or rewards
for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date of 23 May 2006.
The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Persons to the
grant of options shall be determined by the Directors from
time to time on the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to his
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group. Eligible Persons means any person

falling within one of the following classes:

() any Director or proposed Director (whether executive
or non-executive, including any independent non-
executive Director), employee of any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder, a person who
controls the Company or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder (a “Category A Eligible Person”);

or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any controlling shareholder or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder (a

“Category B Eligible Person”);

and, for the purposes of the Scheme, shall include any
company controlled by one or more persons belonging to

any of the above classes of persons.

R&ﬁﬁ%ZﬁﬁE*%
ApmlRBBkEstE ([%E8])

EE&%%%T%EJJ ' H%E%Hx’f%éﬁ%#éiéﬁ
BAL FRBREHANKREMEZER S
BEER BB - %A 8 2 B
RARTFE HRAER (I _TTRFHHA
“T=ZH)RBER-EAAERALTERE
BEZER BHESITRREESFHR
RAKEERIIERMEZERMIEESR
BzERimEE-AEBALTEREEMBER
THEP—FZAL:

() AEBEIMAKE R F A EREK
RBHARB Z AL HEMAZER
BEREFZ AR ZEAEFHIREE
= (TWAMITHIFNT  BIRETAE
UHHTER) RE ([AEAERA
1) 8k

(i) AEEEMAE QA SRR
AR RERRRES 2 A FEITZ
ERFEHFZEMFEA ([BESER
AE]):

IW

MaLZr8mE  AREE LA EF—8
Z—HREZHALTEZERRE
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41. SHARE BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

Equity settled share option scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of adoption of
the Scheme. The Company can grant share options to
subscribe up to 77,292,200 shares of the Company under
the Scheme. The 10% limit may be refreshed with the

approval of shareholders of the Company.

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Any option
to be granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company (or any of their respective
associates) must be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding any independent non-

executive Director who is the grantee of the options).

If a grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director (or any of their
respective associates) will result in the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted to such person under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares in issue; and in excess of HK$5 million, such further

grant of options is required to be approved by shareholders.

MN.URBDENFTEZRS (#)

URAEE BRETE (&F)
RIBZAEREZBREMS R 2RH
BE - TRBBZTEBRMNE BB BT
R1910% o AR B AT IR R Z 5 &1 8
B4 - DA R BB & %77,292,200/% A& A 7] B
17 o S AR AR B ETS - 5%10% LR A F
B

REEARRBBIRF LI E  E AL RME
o] —FNE KL R AT e X 2 BB R P8 K2
ZEERTEKTETZRNDEB  TEEB
BARRRPEARBEEEITRM1% < LA
EEX ARAEBIBABHEERR (3
WEEAZEMBEA)RHBERE AL
BIUMTES (TRERNS RBEEA
RAZEBILIFRTES )i

HMAXERBEKBIIENTES (IHF
FEBZEABEA) R L EAERE &8
BREEREERE B HIEE 1218 A
B A 1T AR B ez st & AR REA E Ath
BAEGT BB iRz A TR 2 BARE
(BRREETE EFHERMRITEZER
) MB BT REBEITZRNBEE LB
B #1717 0.1% K #8:55,000,000/8 7T » Al
E-SRONBRERCKRRIE -
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41. SHARE BASED PAYMENT MNUBRODEXNAREZRS (#)

TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

Equity settled share option scheme (Continued)

The option period commences on the Commencement Date
(the date upon which the options are deemed to be granted
and accepted) of such options and ends on the close
of business on the day immediately preceding the tenth

anniversary thereof.

The exercise price per share shall be determined by the
Board, being at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares on the date on which an option is offered to an
Eligible Person, which must be a business day (“Offer Date”);
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date, and (iii) the

nominal value of one share.

Share options do not contain rights on the holders to

dividends or vote at shareholders meetings.

As at 31 December 2013, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Scheme was 30,940,000 (2012:
33,180,000), representing 0.94% (2012: 1.01%) of the
ordinary shares of the Company in issue at that date. The
vesting condition of the options granted is the service period

of the relevant Directors or employees.

URALE ZBRETE (&)
ERERENZSZEREZEHA (BR
ﬁé%&?ﬁ%aﬁﬂj&m%%ﬁmz BE) R
WHREZEE+BEFABRII—EEXA4
55 JE o

BREBRHITEEERESSET NED
BERUT=ZEFR2&Ea%E: EA&EE
BALTREEREER (LAREER)
(TBHEBD ZBROKTHE: W\BEED
BHAAEXSBZROFHKRTE: &
(i) — R 1 T {E -

BREY EHHRE AREREHNKR
SELREZEN-

R-ZTE—=F+-A=+—8 BE%
FHEEREERKRITEZBREMS R
2 B 1h 8 B &30,940,0000% (=& — =
£ : 33,180,000/ ) * # & RN A Q& R %
AEBTEEK 2094% (= — 4
1.01%) - BEREBERIE BBIEGREH
EENEES ZRBER-
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41.SHARE BASED PAYMENT MNUBRBEIAREZRS (2)
TRANSACTIONS (continueq)
Equity settled share option scheme (Continued) URAGEEBRESS (&)
Details of specific category of the share options are as Bk 2B THEMNZFHERT
follows:
Number of
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price  share option
REBH FEH fTEH THEE  BREHE
HK$
BT
27 May 2011 27 May 2011 to 27 February 2012 to 26 May 2014 4.42 6,188,000

26 February 2012
—E2——FRA=-+ttHA ZTE——FAA=-+tHE ZE—-F-AZ+tHZE
R A=+H —E-ERA=-+H

27 May 2011 27 May 2011 to 27 February 2013 to 26 May 2014 4.42 9,282,000
26 February 2013

—FT——FHA=Z++tH =ZE——FHEA=-t+t+tHE ZET—=F-A=+t+HZE
—E-=f"HAZ+XH —ZE-mEFRAZF+XH

27 May 2011 27 May 2011 to 27 February 2014 to 26 May 2014 4.42 15,470,000
26 February 2014
ZET——FRA=Z++tH ZE——FHRAZ+tHE ZT—MOF-_A=t+tHZE

—E-NMFE-R=+RH —ET-NERAZ+XH
30,940,000
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TRBEFRNESEAETRENMBZEZA
share options held by Directors and certain employees NAIEREC EEIFN
during the year:
Outstanding at Forfeited  Outstanding at Forfeited  Outstanding at
1 January during 31 December during 31 December
2012 2012 2012 2013 2013
R-Z-=% R-Z--% RZB-=%
-A-B RZB--%f +ZA=+-B RZB-=% +ZA=t+-H
Name of Directors/employees EZE#% /B R AT 28k R AT 2Rk i K AT B
Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie EK 10,450,000 - 10,450,000 - 10,450,000
Wu Yih Chin RENR 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Employees E& 24,870,000 (4,140,000) 20,730,000 (2,240,000) 18,490,000
Total @t 37,320,000 (4,140,000) 383,180,000 (2,240,000) 30,940,000
Exercisable at the end of RBRERHRY F1E

the reporting period 7,700,000 15,470,000
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41.

42.

B %5 $Rh R Y 5
HE-F—=#+-A=+—AUFE

SHARE BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

Equity settled share option scheme (Continued)

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$5,465,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
HK$13,363,000) in relation to share options granted under
the Scheme by the Company.

RESERVES

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the fair value of the combined net
assets value of the subsidiaries involved in the Group
reorganisation in September 1997 and the assets, liabilities
and undertakings which relate to the import and distribution
of cement carried out by Hong Kong Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited prior to the Group reorganisation (the
“Relevant Business”), as if they were acquired by the
Group when the subsidiaries and the Relevant Business
commenced operations, and the nominal value of the

Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable
to wholly-foreign owned enterprises, certain PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate an amount of not
less than 10% of its annual after tax profit to the statutory
reserve fund, which may be used to increase the paid-up

capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

41.

42.

LR ZNREZRS (£)

URAGEE 2 BRESTE (&)
AEBEOREBEEZT—=F+=-A=+—
BIEFERAARBBRZITEED 2 BR
TR X 48 #95,465,0008 L (=&
— % :13,363,000& 7T ) °

e

BABRER
AEBZHABBEAEER-ANLF
NAETEAS R MBRARZEHEE
FE UARBREMBARRAEEER
A2 BEBKEERAFEEZARERD K
DWER ([BRAXK]) MR AEERE
HAKBUBENEREHCEE AE
RAEz AP E BESBRREZAR
AERTRMEECZR-

EERBES
REEBERRIEBELE Z2HEDE
BETHEMNBARABTIREFK
P& M10% .2 RIRIR BIE A E R HE
T % BRI AEZE BB 2 B
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43. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries with maximum of HK$1,250 (HK$1,000 before 1
June 2012) per employee per month and are charged to
the profit and loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit plans
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified

contributions.

43. R 18 X5t 8

REBERBEARGMEREES
ERSHEHBESTEZEERILE
RIKEFEE ([aEestEl]) - A
REBMEEBZEAGEETADLFE
EmABUNEESA12508 T (R
—ZF XA —HAAE1,0008 L)  WHIR
BaiEestERARNKEERETME -
BESHECEERBYEEESHH
BAKEEESHER -AEEZEEM
A—BRBEABESTEEL AN2HER
BA MEMAEEZEEEN 2 HHKR
HARATEEN - AIAEE 2 B+ 8 RERE
BERESTERARETAEE-
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43.

44

B %5 $Rh R Y 5
HE-F—=#+-A=+—AUFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
approximately HK$56,661,000 (2012: HK$45,960,000)
represents contributions payable to these plans by the

Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank loans and amount due to immediate
holding company net of cash and bank balances, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained earnings. The Directors
review the capital structure on an annual basis. As part of
this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associates with each class of capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as

the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

43.

44.

RKERHE (2)
AEBRZEHE ZHRAEE 2L K&
ez Eat &l 2 B FE L) /256,661,00078
T (=Z — =4 :45,960,0008 L) ' % &
AERGA B REM 2 E R R RER
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 45. ¢ T A
Categories of financial instruments SRIAZER
2013 2012
—E—_=4F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Financial assets TREE
FVTPL BRATEFARER
— held for trading investments —HERGRBZIRE 49,287 49,137
Loans and receivables (including B R EBGRIA (B
cash and cash equivalents) RekReEE) 7,710,971 6,919,351
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 45,193 1,213,528
Financial liabilities cTHEAE
Amortised cost KR 15,868,757 16,717,072
Derivative financial instruments — warrants T4 &gt T & — 5,780 6,669

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, amounts due from investee companies, trade
and other receivables, loan receivables, bank deposits
and bank balances, trade and other payables, bank loans,
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder, amount due
to immediate holding company and derivative financial
instruments — warrants. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include credit risk, interest
rate risk, currency risk, other price risk and liquidity risk and
the policies applied by the Group to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely

and effective manner.

MERREEBZEERECR

AEBZEZoMTEABERAKRE &
W EARIFIE BRESHERREM
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk, which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties,
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the amount of contingent liabilities
in relation to financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in Note 46. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

The Group mainly trades on terms based on prepayments
and letters of credits in most of the transactions. Thus, the
management considers that the risk is adequately monitored
and does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its

obligations.

45. ¢ T H (&)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continueqd)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for all loan
receivables (2012: 100%), 97.9% (2012: 97.3%) of the trade
receivables and all consideration receivable for disposal of
available-for-sale investments (2012: nil) as at 31 December
2013.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group also has concentration
of credit risk with (i) loan receivables due from six (2012:
six) borrowers within the government sector in the PRC;
(i) financial guarantee issued by the Group to an associate
(2012: nil); and (iii) consideration receivable for disposal of
available-for-sale investments due from a buyer which is
engaged in cement manufacturing in the PRC.

In order to minimise the credit risk on the loan receivables
and consideration receivable, the management of the
Group closely monitor the follow-up action taken to recover
any overdue amounts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each debtor at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk on the loan
receivables is significantly reduced.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to the pledged bank deposits, time deposits
and amounts due from investee companies. The Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to floating-rate bank loans, amount due to immediate
holding company, amount due from an associate and
bank balances. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise. The fair value interest rate risk on bank
deposits is insignificant as the fixed deposits are short-
term.

45. ¢ T H (&)

BREBEERRERK (£)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR, LIBOR and
benchmark loan rates of financial institutions set by The
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s bank
loans, amount due from an associate and amount due

to immediate holding company.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to variable interest
rates for financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount due from an associate and the bank balances
in the PRC net of bank loans at the end of the reporting
period and the net balance was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2013 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$15,049,000 (2012: HK$17,618,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on

its variable-rate bank loans.

45. ¢ T H (&)
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45. ¢ T H (&)
MEERETEREREE (4£)

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE (&)
(i) Currency risk (i)  EEERE

The Group is mainly exposed to United States Dollars
(*USD”) and HKD.

Amount due to immediate holding company, bank
balances and bank loans of the Group are denominated
in foreign currencies. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency loan. However, management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 5% in exchange rate
of USD and HKD against functional currency of RMB
respectively, while all other variables are held constant.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting

period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.

AEEETEFRET([ET]) RE
TURLR o

AEBEZERNEBERAFRE R
THEBMBRITERAINEIE - A&
BRI A B OMNE B2 SN
B - A - BIRE R A ST ARR NS
Rk WHRAEFEREELFEKX
SNEE R B2

BRE DM

TRANAEEBRET BT AR
ﬂJﬁEEMAEﬁ%ZE%ﬂ%E5%Z/—\
BEBHIHRE MAAHEMAE
REFTE UL BRENITE a%réj
REBZINEHEERRRB RRRE
HIRIRINEE K% BB FHRHME

2013 2012
—E—=F —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
(Decrease) increase in post-tax profit 2<% & & £ 1 3% Fl
for the year OR2) 1
- if RMB weakens against USD —MARBHETLIHE (182,138) (138,389)
— if RMB strengthens against USD —fMARBHETRE 182,138 138,389
- if RMB weakens against HKD — (W AR ABITLIHE (17,054) (19,179)
— if RMB strengthens against HKD — AR H B TR 17,054 19,179
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)~ Other price risk
The Group’s equity investments and the investment
funds with underlying equity investments at the end
of the reporting period exposed the Group to equity
security price risk. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is
from listed equity securities in Hong Kong and quoted
investment funds. The warrants issued by the Company
are also exposed to the equity price risk but the
management consider the exposure is insignificant to
the Group. Available-for-sale investments also exposed
to price risk but no sensitivity analysis is presented as

the available-for-sale investments are measured at cost.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks in respect

of held-for-trading investments at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective held-for-trading
investments had been 20% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$9,857,000
(2012: HK$9,827,000) as a result of the changes in fair

value of held-for-trading investments.

45. ¢ T H (&)
MEERETEREREE (4£)

m5EEE (&)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank

loans and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2013, the Group has
available unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$3,138,784,000 (2012: HK$2,722,487,000). Details of

which are set out in Note 34.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from

interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

ORI HREM s
—Z=FF A=+ —HILFE

45. ¢ T H (&)

BREBEERREREK (£)

mBE L E R

FREERDESRARMNE AEEERR
RFEEEERR/RARKFIZRAEEAEHF
B URAEEEERTESLAERS
MERBZHZE-EEBERERITERZ
BRABN LERTEERZHZHE -

AEBKERITERERRBDES 2
EZRR-R=_T—=F+=A=+—8"
AEEEAHAMEABA 2 RITERTE
€ #)/43,138,784,0008 7L (—= T — =&
2,722,487,000% 7T ) - H &F 1H & M
34 o

TRHAVNAEEHTESBAEBEZEBS
RIZIEAE R - A R IDBRBEAKEBN R Z
EFARNZERABETARTRRASRER
-RTESRABENIHADREGE
BEEANMEE ZXEEMNERAERE
ME - MMFSRAZBHE  AIRITRE
HRBERE AR M EGFE
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

45. ¢ T H (&)
MEEREERERKE (F)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELERE (&)
Ligquidity risk tables T E TR R
Weighted ~ Repayable Total
average on 1-3 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand months tolyear 1-5years  cash flows amount
mE¥Y RERE = RER
fl= #E -Z=fHA B-F -E5% RERAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TR TR TR TR TET
2013 ZE-zf
Non-derivative FTESHER
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables ENESEAR
EtbERTE - - 2415120 65,407 - 2480527 2480527
Bank loans FTER 5.4 - 1270822 4793182 7,084,236 13,148,240 12,752,730
Amount due to immediate ENERERARFE
holding company 1.6 - 2,633 7,600 645,634 655,767 635,500
Financial guarantee contract BREREY - 153,600 - - - 153,600 -
153,600 3,688,475 4,866,189 7,729.870 16,438,134 15,868,757
2012 —E-CE
Non-derivative FTESHER
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables ERESRAR
Eth A - 6,528 2,014,613 51,899 - 2073040  2,072,99
Bank loans RITER 5.1 - 2,187,059 2,985,695 9,666,017 14,838,771 14,293,091
Amount due to a JEf — LSRR IR R 5B
non-controlling shareholder - 13,730 - - - 13,730 13,730
Amount due to immediate EREBERARANE
holding company 1.5 - 1,229 3,688 330,417 335,334 325,500
Long term payable REEMFE 6.9 - 200 611 12,252 13,063 11,755
20,258 4,203,101 3,041,893 10,008,686 17,273,938 16,717,072
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amount included above for financial guarantee contract
is the maximum amount the Group could be required
to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed
amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty
to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of
the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are

guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

Save as disclosed under the heading “current liabilities”
and “non-current liabilities” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and “contingent liabilities” and “pledge of
assets” disclosed in Notes 46 and 49 and apart from intra-
group liabilities, the Group did not have any bank overdrafts
or loans, or other similar indebtedness (other than normal
trade bills and payables), mortgages, charges or guarantees
or other material contingent liabilities as at the close of

business of 31 December 2013.

ORI HREM s
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45. ¢ T H (&)

BREBEERREREK (£)

mBELEE (F)

SFALAMBRERAEN I SBIHERZ
BFTELHRR RAIANKEREZ B
CREBEZ2EEREELIEREE R
BEHREHARZESR ~EERBRAABE
BARB L PSR < /1 LTS
BEHFHTREEREHBR AT
B# MiRHEARZAEMERBURK S F
H%%ﬁﬁ%%%@%ﬂﬁﬁﬁf%ﬁ%

/_\b ,|E

WEFBN R LB EREMREE 2 =E
CRENEE LY%%Z# i%ﬂ%%%
FEA R T AR R

BRREaMBIRAEXRA RSB EE] R I3
MEVEEIET RS AR T46%49
B [XABBEIRIEEER] RE
BERAFRHBEN RZTE—Z=ZF1+=A
ST -HEEREAERRE NEEHEE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%m~ﬁﬁ@ﬁwﬁﬁ(*&
B RBRENFIARIN) =B Hadsk
%ﬁ&ﬁﬁékﬁ%%ﬁ

203



204 TCC International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
OB iR ERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z _-F—=F+_-H=+—HIFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. €T B (&)
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities TREEREMEGEZATE
Fair value measurements of the Group’s financial assets AEFHEHEER CHMEBH A FETS
and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on BEMEER LN FENE

a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities TEENTIcHEERSRBENIRS
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting WMERKREATEAZ TR BHEZ
period. The following table gives information about how the EeMmEERERMABGENRATENETES
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities ERER (L H R A ERN &
are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and AR URAFEFERERAFEHN=E
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy W ABBAIHEEEES AN TFERER
into which the fair value measurements are categorised KFE(E—EE=H) -

(levels 1 and 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to

the fair value measurements is observable.

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived e F—RATEFERENMBRANEE
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for SBERNERMIGHNME CRFE)

identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from e F_HATVHEFEREITEEE &
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level MEMNEEXBENTERZ (BEA
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either B ZME (REER) BN
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from AEE: &
prices); and

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from e F=HATVTHEFEREBFEILIEER
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or AJERR ISR (A B S A SR
liability that are not based on observable market data AEMNEESBENMGERM-

(unobservable inputs).
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

Fair value measurements of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on

a recurring basis (Continued)

ORI HREM s
—Z=FF A=+ —HILFE

45. ¢ T H (&)

EHEEREMEBEZQATE (F)

FEEYEBAEREBABYAFET
EHREREAFEHE (F)

Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s)
financial liabilities 31 December 2013 hierarchy and key input(s)
R-B-=%+=ZA=+-H HETER
LREE/SRERE ZAFE DFEER TERAHE
Financial assets — Held-for- Listed equity securities in Hong Kong: Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
trading investments - Cement industry - HK$39,330,000; and active market
Quoted investment funds
in Taiwan — HK$9,957,000
TREE-RIEXRIAEZ REB ET2RAESR E—R RERTSMBREERE
RE —7KJB1T3—39,330,0008 7T &
ReRBZBEREES—9,957,000/ T
Financial liabilities — Derivative HK$5,780,000 Level 3 Black-Scholes pricing
financial instruments — model with details of
warrants (Note) key inputs disclosed in
Note 37
ﬁﬁ’%%—ﬁi BMIA- 5,780,000/% 7T E=R Ahr—SFRiTEERE
RRARAERE (H17T) FEHARB 2 FER
BRI 37

note: No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the impact of changes
in the relevant unobservable data under the Black-Scholes
pricing model as the management considers that the

exposure is insignificant to the Group.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values. In addition, available-for-sale investments are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that

their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Met: ERERBENMAN R -SRI EEE
BTz HEBTTBEREBREHHTEY
REEWASEXN FAITEEBEEH &
REE DT o

EXERR REHRARKREMBHREA
ARZeREE R ABZEEESRR
NHEMEE W AARHERE TN ERE
HREANBREFE FERSEAGER
FEAFZEEERE HEETA/EAF
BELAISEAE-
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45.

46.

B 5 ER R B 5E
—ZE+ZAZF—HILEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

Fair value measurements of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on

a recurring basis (Continued)

45.

eI A (2
LREERSRMEBEATYE (£)

FEEYEBAEREBABYAFET
EHREREAFEHE (F)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of warrants: RREB2E=BRTFEFEZHE:
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZE——F—H—H -
On issue of warrants FITRIRBEE 20,349
Fair value change $1E“ (13,680)
At 31 December 2012 R-TE——"F+-A=+—H 6,669
Fair value change NEEEY (889)
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+ZHA=+—H 5,780

There were no transfers between Levels in both years.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group provided a corporate
guarantee jointly with other shareholders of an associate
to a bank in respect of banking facilities granted to that
associate in aggregate amounted to RMB400,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$512,000,000) (2012: nil),
of which RMB246,158,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$315,082,000) (2012:

the associate. Pursuant to the corporate guarantee

nil) has been utilised by

agreement, the Group has provided the guarantee amount
proportioned to its equity interest in the associate, which
represents RMB120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$153,600,000) (2012: nil).

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material

contingent liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.

46.

RRFEEAES Rz HILEEE-

HAREE
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F— R A2 AR R SR 2 A A
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47. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital expenditure in respect of the following

47. B R &L

AEEF TIEB 2RI NBERRES Y

items contracted but not provided for in the consolidated BRERBHEZEARNT L
financial statements:
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Acquisition of property, plant and BEME  BE L&H
equipment 1,252,573 769,541
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note) W B AR (#aF) - 210,800
1,252,573 980,341
note: As at 31 December 2012, amount represents consideration Kiat: W_E——F+_A=+—H Z&¥EiE

contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements for the acquisition of a group of subsidiaries
operating cement businesses in the PRC. The acquisitions
were subject to certain conditions before completion
amongst which, includes the approval by the regulatory
government bodies in other jurisdictions. The deposits paid
had been included in the consolidated statement of financial

position as deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries.

During the year, the Group entered into agreement with
the seller and has agreed to acquire 30% interest in the
associate and therefore has transferred such deposits to

settle the consideration payable for acquisition of associates.

BRIERNEAM MR BEEZWE
—HENPEEENOREB LB AR 2
RE WBERAR TRATERE T
- B B i ADARE R BT T #
Wzt - ENFTRERNGRA MBRRE
RINEREBEHBRARN 25T &

RER KAEEESFHEIVHE CRE
Ui 2 N B 2 30% s - kB BB
REEERENBRE AR ERNRE-
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48.

49.

B 5 ER R B 5E
—ZE+ZAZF—HILEE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
the Group had
outstanding commitments for future minimum lease

At the end of the reporting period,

payments under non-cancellable operating leases with fellow
subsidiaries which fall due as follows:

8. M E KA

R R - A S B 5 B2 AR B 2 A 2]
T2 ATHEZ @EENZ BRRERE
PEREAMABIT AR EERBMT

2013 2012

—E—=F —ET—_fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT FET

Within one year —FR 4,968 6,227
In the second to fifth years inclusive “HFEFERF

(BREEMF) 19,872 19,872

Over five years BBRF 43,073 48,041

67,913 74,140

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEROHESEASEREENHSHE

Group for certain of its rented land based on current rental
payment. Leases are negotiated for lease term of thirty years
and the rental is repriced every two years based on the
market rent.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, assets with the following carrying
amounts have been pledged to secure bank loans of the
Group (Note 34) or as a security for the letters of credit

49.

ETHELHENZES HOLBAZ
HBR0F MEEMFRETSES
BREMEE—R-

EEEA

R-Z—ZF+-A=+—B ATEE
Bz AEDER WERAEEZRTE
2 (H3E34) SUFARITHA R BB EBE

and similar obligations provided by banks in regard to the RERE ERAEIBEUEETCETSR

Group’s purchase of plant and equipment or as performance AMETEEANIERBNER:
guarantee in relation to certain sales or purchases contracts.

2013 2012

—E—=F —E-CF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Property, plant and equipment WE BB REE 1,572,276 3,659,099

Prepaid lease payments FEHEERIE 140,736 950,374

Mining rights PR 101,576 108,242

Pledged bank deposits 2EMIRITER 20,653 180,568

1,835,241 4,898,283
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In addition to the transactions and balances set out in Notes
9, 28, 29, 32, 35, 36 and 48, the Group entered into the

following material related party transactions during the year:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z T —=F+-HA=+—HIF/E

50.EAETRS
Br OB FEQ ~ 28 29 32 - 35 ~ 36 )k 48FTilt
ZRGREEMRIN RAEE - REB DT
THEXBEALTRS:

2013 2012
—E2-= —ET—_F
notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Wiz FTEx FET
()  Rental expenses payable to iy ENF—FERRWBARZ
a fellow subsidiary HeER (@) 6,189 6,196
(i) Purchases of cement and clinker (i) M&RLIZER A RIBEKE
from ultimate holding company K (b) 70,826 94,150
(i) Transportation and management (i) &I RKK B AR 2 EH
services fee payable to NMEBRGE
fellow subsidiaries (a) 285,235 301,419
(v) Maintenance service and one- (iv) ERRERMEBRRZE
off implementation service fee BURG 2 HEERBE R
of a computer software system —REZARBE
payable to fellow subsidiaries (a) 34,863 19,208
(v)  Purchases of clinker from a v) M—EZEEATEERH
related party (note 1) (Haz1) (b) = 11,593
(v Management fee payable to (vi) BN —2@EATZEIRE
a related party (note 2) B (ffit2) (@) 10,187 7,927
(vii) Trademark fee payable to (vi) B —RBEATZHIEZ
a related party (note 2) FRB (Hit2) () 2,507 2,477
(viil) Sales of raw materials to (viii) [A)—fE B & A RIHE
an associate R A F (b) 27,958 9,032
(ix) Purchase of raw materials from (ix) M—EEEAGEE
an associate R K (b) 25,925 6,689
(x) Sales of cement to an associate  (x) A — A& R AIHEEKE (b) 85,921 55,494
(xi) Interest income from an associate (xi) KB —MEE R A2 FE
YA (@) 5,132 5,786
(xi) Sales of cement and raw materials  (xii) A& & A 7S KE K&
to joint ventures R (b) 364 5,252
(xii) Sales of slag powder to (xii) (A1 —FBAEATIHE
a related party (note 1) WBEW (Hat1) (b) - 1,452
(xiv) Rental expenses payable to (xiv) B —RBEEALTZ
a related party (note 2) He&A (Wit2) (@) 2,818 -
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50. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

notes:

(1)  The related party is a subsidiary of the non-controlling

shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company.

(2) The related party is the holding company of a non-controlling

shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company.

(@)  The prices of these transactions were determined between the

parties with reference to the agreements signed.

(b)  The prices of these transactions were determined between the

parties with reference to market prices.

During the year, the remuneration of key management
personnel which represents the short-term benefits of
Directors remuneration is approximately HK$7,176,000
(2012: HK$9,809,000) as set out in Note 11.

50 BEALRS

[UJEH
~

Byt

(1) ZEEBEALRARE—MEIEREZIEE
P B IR 2 B /B8 2 )

(2 ZEEATRARR—REMEREZIEE
P B R 2 R R X B

(@) %EXSHZEBREANNEFTZEEHTZ
R E -

ERGZBRBFTNED 2EMIGER

WM EIITE - RFEFR TEEEA
BrHM(EEEMe 2 RHENNA
7,176,000/ 7T ( —=Z— =4 : 9,809,000/
JL) °
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Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

51. K& 2 5]
ARAR =T~
—t+—HBZz=xEZE

ORI HREM s

el S —

EPE—=FL - H=A1—HIFE

=FR-E——_F+=H

MEBARZFBNT:

Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRALER/
WEARER BMAY EEE SMEXEE EEEREERLA TEEK
2013 2012
—E-=F —E2—CF
Shares held directly:
BEBAZRS:
Ulexite Investments British Virgin Island (‘BVI")/ Ordinary US$200 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong L% 1R200%E T REER
RERUEE ([HE
BRER]) /B
Upper Value Investments BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$11,600 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited ABERHE/BH EL@k11,600% T RERR
Shares held indirectly:
REHE 2K
Anhui King Bridge Cement The PRC Registered capital 60% 60%  Manufacture and
Ltd. H US$15,000,000 distribution of
ZHRRBKR HffEx slag powder
BRAE" 15,000,000 7 RER D HRED
Chiefolk Company Hong Kong Ordinary 70% 70%  Investment holding
Limited B HK$1,000,000 BEER
& R%1,000,00078 7T
Guizhou Kalili Rui An The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and
Jian Cai Co., Ltd.” H RMB389,660,500 distribution of
EMA R EM HftERARE cement and clinker
BBEREM 389,660,5007 SE RA AR R AR
Guizhou Kong On Cement The PRC Registered capital 65% 65%  Manufacture and
Company Limited* H US$20,300,000 distribution of
BEMBERKE HHER cement and clinker
BRAR" 20,300,000% 7T HE R A HKR R AR
HKC Investments Limited Taiwan Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRRERGERA R & NT$155,000,000 REER
LAk
155,000,000%7 & #
Hong Kong Cement Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Import and distribution of cement
Company Limited B 3#A%10,000%8 7 EORAHEKR
Jiangsu TCC Investment The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd.*! H US$100,000,000 REZK
IHARRA HHER
BRAR" 100,000,000% T



212

TCC International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ORI IR EM s

For the year ended 31 December 2013

51. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EE- ST ASt—ALEE

51.MB Q= (&)

Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRALER/
WEARER EMRL EEBY aMEAEE EEERRERLA TEER
2013 2012
—2-=f —E-CF
Shares held indirectly: (Continued)
HEREZRG: (£)
Jurong TCC Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Mining of limestone
Co., Ltd.* # US$223,000,000 and production and
ABETKE FMER sales of cement and
BRAF" 223,000,000% 7T cement products
RERRAR
EERHE
OB RKRE @
Koning Concrete Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
BE L@AR100%8 T REER
Scitus Hejiang Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% - Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.* # RMB23,250,000 distribution of cement
BIEEKE AR BERA KR
ARG AR 23,250,000
Scitus Luzhou Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% - Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.* H RMB395,000,000 distribution of
BMERKE AfER cement and clinker
BRAFR" AR 395,000,000 BERDH
OB R A
Scitus Luzhou Concrete The PRC Registered capital 100% - Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.* H RMB25,000,000 distribution of concrete
EMEEERL BaliE-w BERAHERT
ARG AR%25,000,0007
Scitus Naxi Gement The PRC Registered capital 100% - Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.* H RMB146,510,000 distribution of cement
ENWEEEKR BallE-v HERD KR
BRAF" AR 146,510,0007
TCC Anshun Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and
Company Limited*" F US$94,990,000 distribution of
A (RIE)KE BRUE-E cement and clinker
BRAF" 94,990,000% 7 BERDH
TOR R A
TCC Chongging Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and
Company Limited*! # US$100,000,000 distribution of
Ak (EE)KE AR cement and clinker
BRARM 100,000,000% 7T BERDH
OB R # B
TCC (DongGuan) Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Transshipment cement
Gompany Limited*! H S$20,000,000 and cement products
Al (RE)KE HHEX BEKRRKEER
BRAR" 20,000,000 7T
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51.MB Q=) (&)

ORI HREM s

hb s — S — —

EPE—=FL - H=A1—HIFE

Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRALER/
WEARER EMRL EEBY aMEAEE EEERRERLA TEER
2013 2012
—2-=f —E-CF

Shares held indirectly: (Continued)

HEREZRG: (£)

TCC Fuzhou Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.*! # US$16,250,000 distribution of cement

BMaRAKR AR BERDHKE
BRARM 16,250,000% 7T

TCC Fuzhou Yangyu Port The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of port
Co., Ltd." # US$5,000,000 facility services

BM AR FIEEE i A R REEER RS
AR AR 5,000,000 ¢

TCC Guangan Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and
Company Limited*! H US$56,990,000 distribution of

Ak (BR)KE AfER cement and clinker
BRAA" 56,990,000 7T HERDH

OB R A

TCC (Guigang) Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and
Ltd." # US$217,875,900 distribution of

Ak (BE) KR HMER cement and clinker
BBRRAM 217,875,900% HERDH

KRR

TCC Guigang Mining The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of limestone
Industrial Company H US$5,000,000 quarrying services
Limited* HHER REARARBRBRS

EERREEREIR 5,000,000% 7T
BRAR

TCC Hong Kong Cement BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$10 100% 100%  Property holding
Development Limited RERLES/BE Deferred™* US$90 BENE

EBERI0ET
BER 90E T

TCC Jiangsu Mining The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of limestone
Industrial Company # US$4,000,000 quarrying services
Limited" HHER REARAR KRS

IHARBETLR 4,000,000% 70
BRAA"

TCC Liaoning Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% 83.89%  Manufacture and
Company Limited (“TCC H RMB371,000,000 distribution of
Liaoning ")*! RRIE- cement and clinker

Bk (BE)KE AR #371,000,0007C HERDH
ERAR([6REE]) OB R A

TCC Liuzhou Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 70% 70%  Investment holding

ARMMNERAR BE L3@AR10,000%8 T RERR
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51. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

51.MB Q= (&)

Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRALER/
WEARER EMRL EEBY aMEAEE EEERRERLA TEER
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-ZF

Shares held indirectly: (Continued)

HEREZRG: (£)

TCC Liuzhou Construction The PRC Registered capital 42%* 42%™  Manufacture and
Materials Company H US$13,500,000 distribution of
Limited” FMER slag powder

By Ri =271 13,500,000% 70 HERDHBED
BRAF

TCC Shaoguan Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing and
Co., Limited*! F US$10,000,000 distribution of

ak (B8E) Kk HMER cement and clinker
BRAFN 10,000,000 7T (not yet commenced

business)
KRR EH
(HARRER)

TCC Yingde Cement The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd" i US$219,400,000 distribution of

Ak (RE) KR BRUE-E cement and clinker
BRAA" 219,400,000% 70 BERDH

OB R A

TCC Yingde Mining The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of limestone
Industrial Company Limited* # US$11,500,000 quarrying services

HEARRETR AR REARARRRSE
ARG 11,500,000 7T

Yingde Dragon The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and
Mountain Cement # RMB428,110,000 distribution of
Co, Ltd."! HMER cement and clinker

EEEIKRER AR %428,110,0007 HERSD
BEEAR OB R # B

*

Registered as equity joint venture under the PRC law.

* Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprise under the PRC
law.

** A subsidiary of a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

and, accordingly, is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of

the Company’s control over it.

The deferred shares of TCC Hong Kong Cement Development
Limited are non-voting, carry no rights to dividends and are
only entitled to a return of capital when the surplus exceeds
Us$1,000,000,000,000,000,000,000.

*1

*k

BRAREBEPEIAPIEMZEE AR

BRRBREPEEMEMZIIEBEE R
®,

ARBAZ—RIEEWMBRAZHEBR
Al AR A AR EERAESE
BIHE—FHKM B R A AR

TCC Hong Kong Cement Development
Limited 2 i iE J& 30 B B % =4 - TR A
MERKKRS 2N BEERKER
1,000,000,000,000,000,000,0003 7t ¥ -
FERERERK -
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51. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results, assets, or liabilities of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

In the opinion of the Directors, none of its subsidiaries that

have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

During the year, the Group has further acquired the
remaining (i) equity interests in Luzhou Companies at
a total consideration of RMB53.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$67.0 million); (i) 16.11% equity interests
in TCC Liaoning at a consideration of RMB144.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$181.3 million); and (iii)
2.06% equity interests in Scitus Cement at a consideration
of RMB19.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$24.7
million). Consideration of RMB196.1 million (approximately
equivalent to HK$246.7 million) was paid in cash and
remaining of RMB20.9 million (approximately equivalent to
HK$26.7 million) is included in other payables and accrued
liabilities. An amount of HK$45.0 million, HK$106.3 million
and HK$27.5 million proportionate share of carrying amount
of net assets of Luzhou Companies, TCC Liaoning and
Scitus Cement has transferred to equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The difference of HK$94.3 million
between the decrease in non-controlling interest and
consideration payable has been debited to other reserve and

credited to exchange fluctuation reserve.

ORI HREM s
—SEFZAZH—AILEE

51. B A8 (&)

ERIANEZARIEFEAKEES
BESRBZARFMBAR -EERA-
HINHMHBRRZHB SERBRIT
EO

EEZRA MERAFERERNAEE
MBARUASEMSBEKX-

RER RNEBE-FOHABRBEARYE
53,000,0007T (#8% # 4767,000,000/7% 7T )
WHEEMN AR 2 TRIE: (AREAR
#:144,500,0007T (48 % 7 £9181,300,000
BB A REE 28R T16.11%AR 1 ;
R (i) A R (B A R #19,500,0007T (#0557
#124,700,0007% 7T ) W BE B EKEZHB T
2.06%Rx 1 - X B A R#196,100,0007T
(1855 7 49246,700,000/% 70) B LA & &
- i #4258 A R #20,900,0007C (FHE R
#126,700,0007% 7T ) 51| A E fth F& 1+ 30 I8 K
BB - DHEMNRA AREERE
BRI 2 /% & B R E {845,000,000/% 7T *
106,300,000/% 7t 27,500,000 T & &
BEARRAREE ARIEER B D IR
1 = B PE T (B 2 £ 5894,300,000 T2
B E Mt E R A ET AIMNEZ B R -
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2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“TTHhNE CE-TF —E——% T ZEBE-Z=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET FET FET THET
Results ES
Revenue U & 3,953,940 8,125,854 11,266,196 11,304,232 12,970,794
Profit for the year, attributable AN RFEE AEMN
to owners of the Company RAEEEF 120,254 784,053 1,637,880 610,000 1,674,569
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment %1% - BB &% & 8,815,063 12,816,206 15,864,953 16,193,824 17,045,737
Prepaid lease payments ENBEERA 907,934 1,599,818 1,745,207 1,817,385 1,882,811
Intangible assets BYEE 812,578 2,648,561 2,647,565 2,898,405 3,179,788
Mining rights g 205,512 398,562 406,633 401,163 441,630
Interests in associates and BENERR
loan to an associate G NRER 131,208 1,416,976 1,456,066 1,537,007 1,711,627
Interests in joint ventures BENBER - - - 21,700 12,800
Other financial assets Hith e mEE 85,470 110,460 87,975 88,203 105,798
Deposits paid for acquisition of ~ KRB E - BE &
property, plant and equipment =R #ERHEMEE
and other assets YRZE® 245,969 712,127 578,050 291,637 312,376
Deposits paid for acquisition of & U B KT 8 & &) 3% f+f
subsidiaries Ak 804,410 - 720,666 74,400 =
Available-for-sale investments I HERE 54,509 59,772 57,501 614,167 45,193
Amounts due from investee = WNCIE- |
companies - - - 144,075 -
Pledged bank deposits BIRFRITER - 2,360 3,970 4,578 10,217
Deferred tax asset EREHIEEE - 1,275 879 866 39,547
Current assets MEEE 3,017,279 7,263,395 9,297,158 9,327,449 9,919,201
Total assets MEE 15,079,932 27,029,512 32,866,623 33,414,859 34,706,725
Liabilities &f
Current liabilities mEBAE 6,804,239 6,325,390 8,380,865 7,562,724 9,013,728
Other non-current liabilities HithERBER 1,560,867 9,431,101 8,829,807 9,712,736 7,641,398
Deferred tax liabilities FEEREEE 202,634 364,091 358,144 354,812 365,298
Total liabilities mefd 8,567,740 16,120,582 17,568,816 17,630,272 17,020,424
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